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STANDARDs OVERVIEW

SA 200 Series

SA 300 Series

SA 400 Series

SA 500 Series

SA 600 Series

SA 700 Series

Practical Insight into Audit Reports
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STANDARDS DETAILS

S. No. of

No. | ‘Standard Title of the Standard

1 SQC1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements

2 SA 200 Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit
in Accordance with Standards on Auditing

3 SA 210 Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements

4 SA 220 Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements

5 SA 230 Audit Documentation

6 SA 240[E] | The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial
Statements

7 SA 250[E] | Considerationof Laws and Regulationsinan Audit of Financial Statements

8 SA 260 Communication with Those Charged with Governance

9 SA 265 Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control to Those Charged with
Governance and Management

10 | 5A 299 Responsibility of Joint Auditors

11 | sA 300 Planning an Audit of Financial Statements

12 | SA315 Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement through
Understanding the Entity and its Environment

13 | SA320 Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit

14 | SA330 The Auditor's Responses to Assessed Risks

15 | SA402[E] | AuditConsiderations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organization

16 | SA 450 Evaluation of Misstatements Identified during the Audits

17 | SA500 Audit Evidence

18 | SA501 Audit Evidence - Specific Considerations for Selected Items
19 | SA505 External Confirmations

20 | SA510 Initial Audit Engagements-Opening Balances

21 | SA 520 Analytical Procedures
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22 | SA530 Audit Sampling
23 | SA540[E] | Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates,
and Related Disclosures
¢ 24 | SA550 Related Parties
25 | SA560 Subsequent Events
! 26 | SA570 Going Concern
27 | SA580 Written Representations
28 | SA 600 Using the Work of Another Auditor
29 | SA610 Using the Work of Internal Auditors
30 | SA620[E] Using the Work of an Auditor's Expert
31 | SA700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements
32 | SA701 Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor's Report
33 | SA705 Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor's Report
34 | SA706 Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the
Independent Auditor's Report
35 |SA710 Comparative Information - Corresponding Figures and Comparative
Financial Statements
36 | SA720[E] The Auditor's Responsibility in Relation to Other Information

@ 7507545533 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com




CA Rishabh Jain m

GUIDANCE NOTES AND STATEMENTS

Guidance 1)  Guidance Notes are primarily designed to provide guidance to members on

Notes matters, which may arise in the course of their professional work, and on
which they may desire assistance in resolving issues, which may pose
difficulty.

2) Guidance Notes are recommendatory in nature.

Duties of | a) A member should ordinarily follow recommendations in a
member guidance hote relating to an auditing matter except where he
is satisfied that in the circumstances of the case, it may not
be necessary to do so.

b) Similarly, while discharging his attest function, a member
should examine whether the recommendations in a guidance
hote relating to an accounting matter have been followed or
not.

¢) If the same have not been followed, the member should
consider, adisclosure in his report if necessary.

Examples a) Guidance note on Independence of Auditors.
b) Guidance note on Audit u/s 44AB of the Income-tax Act.

Statements | 1)  Statements on Auditing are issued with a view to secure compliance by
professional accountants on matters, which in the opinion of the Council
are critical for the proper discharge of their functions.

2) Compliance of Statements is Mandatory in nature.

Duties of a) To examine whether 'Statements' relating to accounting
member matters are complied with in the presentation of financial
statements covered by their audit. In the event of any
deviation from the 'Statements’, it will be their duty to
make adequate disclosures in their audit reports so that the
users of Financial statements may be aware of such
deviations; and

b) If,foranyreason,amember,hasnotbeenabletoperforman
audit in accordance with such 'Statements' his report
should draw attention to the material departures
therefrom.

Examples Statement on Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003
(Revised 2016)

(@) 7507545533
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SA 200

Overall Objectives of an Independent
Auditor and the Conduct of Audit in
Accordance with Standards on Auditing

Overall

1) While auditing the financial statements, the auditor has following
objectives of objectives:
iive; Aucifiop a) Toobtainreasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatements thereby enabling the auditor to
express an opinion on whether financial statement are prepared as per
applicable Financial reporting framework (FRF)and
b) Toreportonfinancial statements and communicate as per SAs.

2) If reasonable assurance cannot be obtained and qualified opinion is
insufficient then as required by SA's, Auditor should either disclaim the
opinion or withdraw from engagement.

Ethical 1) The Auditor shall comply with relevant Ethical Requirements, including
requirements independence.

2) Therelevant Ethical Requirements ordinarily includes Code of Ethics issued
by ICAI. The fundamental principles are:

a) Integrity;
b) Objectivity;
c) Professional competence and due care;
d) Confidentiality; and
e) Professional behavior
3) The Code describes independence as comprising both independence of mind

and independence in appearance.

Professional

It is necessary to make proper decisions during audit. For example, decisions

Judgment about:
a) Materiality
b) Audit risk
c) Nature, Timing and Extent of AuditProcedure
d) Sufficiency & Appropriateness of evidence
Sufficient & | 1) Sufficiency refers to quantum of evidence whereas appropriateness refers
appropriate to its quality. He should consider SA 500.
Audit 2) TItisrequiredtoreduceaudit risktoanacceptable low level.
Evidence 3) Audit risk is a technical risk. It consists of risk of material misstatements
and Audit and detection risk.
Risk 4) However, due to inherent limitations of audit, audit risk cannot be reduced

to Zero.
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Preparation 1) Audit is conducted on the premise that Management & TCW6 have some

of financial fundamental responsibilities,
statement 2)

Audit of the financial statements does not relieve them of their
responsibilities.

Purpose of 1) To enhance the confidence of intended users of financial statements.
an Audit 2) To form an opinion on the true and fair view of the framework,
3) His opinion does not assure

a) future viability of entity or

b) efficiency or effectiveness, with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the entity

4) However, in some cases, applicable law & regulation may require auditor to
express opinion on some specific matters. Then auditor should undertake
further work (As in The Companies Act, 2013)

Reasonable 1)

Auditor is required to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
Assurance

financial statements are free from material misstatements. Thus auditor
obtains sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to reduce audit risk to
an acceptable low level,

2) However, reasonable assurance is not absolute assurance. This is due to
inherent limitations of an audit.

NOTE 1 - INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF AUDIT

The process of audit suffers from certain inbuilt limitations due to which an auditor cannot obtain
an absolute assurance that financial statements are free from misstatement due to fraud or error.
These fundamental limitations arise due to the following factors: -

The Nature of Financial Reporting:

a) Preparation of financial statements involves making many judgments by management. These
judgments may involve subjective decisions or a degree of uncertainty. Therefore, auditor
may not be able to obtain absolute assurance that financial statements are free from material
misstatements due to frauds or errors.

b) One of the premises for conducting an audit is that management acknowledges its
responsibility of preparation of financial statements in accordance with applicable financial
reporting framework and for devising suitable internal controls.

c) However, such controls may not have operated to produce reliable financial information due to
their own limitations.

d) Consider, for example, that management of a company has devised a control that all purchase
bills should reflect stamp and sighatures of an authorised person in “Goods Receiving Section”
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of the company stating the date and time of receiving goods in premises.

e) Itisanexampleof internal control devised by the company to ensure that only those purchase
bills are produced for payment for which goods have been actually received.

f) Now, what happens if concerned accountant and authorised person in "Goods Receiving

Section” collude. It is a case of overriding of internal controls devised by the company due to

’ collusion between two persons. Such a probable collusion is one of limitations of internal
| controlsitself.

. The Nature of Audit Procedures:

a) The auditor carries out his work by obtaining audit evidence through performance of audit
procedures. However, there are practical and legal limitations on ability of auditor to obtain
audit evidence.

b) For example, an auditor does not test all transactions and balances. He forms his opinion only
by testing samples. It is an example of practical limitation on auditor's ability to obtain audit
evidence.

¢} Management may not provide complete information as requested by auditor. There is no way
by which auditor can force management to provide complete information as may be requested
by auditor. In case he is not provided with required information, he can only report. It is an
example of legal limitation on auditor's ability to obtain audit evidence.

d) Themanagement may consist of dishonest and unscrupulous people and may be, itself, involved
infraud.

e) It may be engaged in concealing fraud by designing sophisticated and carefully organized
schemes which may be hard to detect by the auditor. I+ may produce fabricated documents
before auditor to lead him to believe that audit evidence is valid. However, in reality, such
documents could be fake or non-genuine.

f) Anauditorisnot anexpert in authentication of documents. Therefore, he may be led to accept
invalid audit evidence on the basis of unauthentic documents.

g) Itisquitepossible that entity may have entered into some transactions with related parties.

h) Such transactions may be only paper transactions and may not have actually occurred. The
auditor may not be aware of such related party relationships or audit procedures may not be
able to detect probable wrong doings in such transactions.

Not in nature of investigation:

v Audit is not an official investigation. Hence, auditor cannot obtain absolute assurance that
financial statements are free from material misstatements due to frauds or errors.

Timeliness of financial reporting and decrease in relevance of
information over time:

a) The relevance of information decreases over time and auditor cannot verify each and every
matter. Therefore, a balance has to be struck between reliability of information and cost of
obtaining it.
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b) For example, an auditor who is conducting audit of a company since last two years. During these
two years, he has sought detailed information from management of company regarding various
matters.

c) During his third year stint, he chooses to rely upon some information obtained as part of audit
procedures of second year. However, it could be possible that something new has happened and
that information is not relevant. So, the information being relied upon by auditor is not timely
and may have lost its reliability.

Future Events:

a) Future events or conditions may affect an entity adversely. Adverse events may seriously
affect ability of an entity to continue its business.

b) The business may cease to exist in future due to change in market conditions, emergence of
new business models or products or due to onset of some adverse events.

c) Therefore, it is in view of above factors, that an auditor cannot provide a guarantee that
financial statements are free from material misstatements due to frauds or errors.
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Agreeing the Terms
SA 210 of Audit Engagement

Introduction | 1y g4 210 dealswith the auditor's responsibilities in agreeing the terms of the
audit engagement with management and, where appropriate, those charged
with governance.

2) This includes establishing that certain preconditions for an audit,

responsibility for which rests with management and, where appropriate,
those charged with governance, are present.

Objective The objective of the auditor is to accept or continue an audit engagement only
when the basis uponwhich it is to be performed has been agreed, through:
a) Establishingwhether the preconditions for an audit are present; and
b) Confirming that there is a common understanding between the auditor and
management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance of the
terms of the audit engagement.
Agreement 1) Except in the cases where it is required under law to get accounts audited
on Audit (for example in case of companies), audit is a matter of contract between
Engagement auditor and client.
Terms

2) Itis, therefore,important, both for the auditor and client, that each party
should be clear about the nature of the engagement. It must be reduced to
writing and should exactly specify the scope of the work.

3) Theauditor shall agree the terms of the audit engagement with management
or those charged with governance, as appropriate.

4) The agreed terms of the audit engagement shall be recorded in an audit
engagement letter or other suitable form of written agreement.

5) Theaudit engagement letter is sent by the auditor to his client.

6) Itisintheinterestof both the auditor and the client to issue anengagement
letter so that the possibility of misunderstanding is reduced to a great
extent. Such a letter includes:-

a) Theobjective and scope of the audit of the financial statements;
b) Theresponsibilities of the auditor;
¢) Theresponsibilities of management;

d) Identification of the applicable financial reporting framework for the
preparation of the financial statements; and

e) Reference to the expected form and content of any reports to be
issued by the auditor and a statement that there may be circumstances
inwhich areport may differ from its expected form and content.

7) If law or regulation prescribes in sufficient detail the terms of the audit

Page- 1A.7
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engagement, the auditor need not record them in a written agreement,
except for the fact that such law or regulation applies and that
management acknowledges and understands its responsibilities.

Preconditions
for an Audit

As per SA 210 "Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements”, preconditions for
an audit may be defined as the use by management of an acceptable financial
reporting framework in the preparation of the financial statements and the
agreement of management and, where appropriate, those charged with
governance to the premise onwhich an audit is conducted.

In order to establish whether the preconditions for an audit are present, the
auditor shall:

1) Determine whether the financial reporting framework is acceptable; and

2) Obtain the agreement of management that it acknowledges and
understands its responsibility:

a) For the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework; including where relevant
their fair representation;

b)  For theinternal control as management considers necessary: to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

To provide the auditor with:
(i) Access to all information of which management is aware that is
relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as
records, documentation and other matters;

(i) Additional information that the auditor may request from
management for the purpose of the audit; and

(iii) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom the
auditor determines it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Limitation on
Scope Prior
to Audit
Engagement
Acceptance

If management or those charged with governance impose a limitation on the
scope of the auditor's work in the terms of a proposed audit engagement such
that the auditor believes the limitation will result in the auditor disclaiming an
opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall not accept such a limited
engagement as an audit engagement unless required by law or regulation to do so.

What happens
if
preconditions
for an audit
are not

present?

If the preconditions for an audit are not present, the auditor shall discuss the
matter with management. Unless required by law or requlation to do so, the
auditor shall not accept the proposed audit engagement:

a) If the auditor has determined that the financial reporting framework to be
applied in the preparation of the financial statements is unacceptable or

(@) 7507545533

@ www.ekafvamacademy.com




CA Rishabh Jain SA 200 Series

b) If the agreement of management is not obtained on matters relating to
understanding of responsibility of management on preparation of financial
statements, internal controls for preparation of financial statements,
providing access to all information to auditor and unrestricted access to
persons within the entity.

Recurring 1)

P Recurring audit is an audit which is performed by an auditor over years. On
udits

recurring audits, the auditor shall assess whether circumstances require
the terms of the audit engagement to be revised and whether there is a
need to remind the entity of the existing terms of the audit engagement.

2) The auditor may decide not to send a new audit engagement letter or
other written agreement each period.

3) However, the following factors may make it appropriate to revise the
terms of the audit engagement or to remind the entity of existing terms:

a) Any indication that the entity misunderstands the objective and
scope of the audit.

b) Anyrevised or special terms of the audit engagement.

¢) Arecentchange in senior management, board of directors.

d) Asignificant change in ownership

e) Asignificant change in nature or size of the entity's business.
f)  Achangeinlegal or regulatory requirements.

g) A change in the Financial reporting framework adopted in the
preparation of the Financial statements

h) A changeinother reporting requirements.

Acceptance ) . .
of a Change The auditor shall not agree to a change in the terms of the audit engagement
in the Terms where there is no reasonable justification for doing so. (Refer Note 1 for
of the Audit | Detalls.)

Engagement

Request from Entity to change the Terms of Audit Engagement-When Reasonable Justification
Exists?

1) A request from the entity for the auditor to change the terms of the audit engagement may
result from

a) achange in circumstances affecting the need for the service,
b) amisunderstandingas to the nature of anaudit as originally requested  or

¢) arestriction on the scope of the audit engagement, whether imposed by management or
caused by other circumstances.
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d) Theauditor considers the justification given for the request, particularly the mphca‘hons
of a restriction on the scope of the audit engagement.

2) A change in circumstances that affects the entity's requirements or a misunderstanding
concerning the nature of the service originally requested may be considered a reasonable basis
for requesting a change in the audit engagement.

3) Incontrast,achange may not be considered reasonable if it appears that the change relates to
information that isincorrect, incomplete or otherwise unsatisfactory.

‘ 4) Anexample might be where the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding receivables and the entity asks for the audit engagement to be changed to a review
engagement to avoid a qualified opinion or a disclaimer of opinion.

What should auditor consider before agreeing to change the audit engagement to the
engagement providing lower level of assurance?

1) If, prior to completing the audit engagement, the auditor is requested to change the audit
engagement to an engagement that conveys a lower level of assurance, the auditor shall
determine whether there is reasonable justification for doing so.

2) Before agreeing to change an audit engagement to a review or a related service, an auditor
who was engaged to perform an audit in accordance with SAs may also need to assess any legal
or contractual implications of the change.

3) If the auditor concludes that there is reasonable justification to change the audit engagement
to a review or a related service, the audit work performed to the date of change may be
relevant to the changed engagement.

4) However, the work required to be performed and the report to be issued would be those
appropriate to the revised engagement. In order fo avoid confusing the reader, the report on
the related service would not include reference to:

a) Theoriginal audit engagement or

b)  Any procedures that may have been performed in the original audit engagement, except
where the audit engagement is changed to an engagement to undertake agreed- upon
procedures and thus reference to the procedures performed is a normal part of the
report.

5) If the terms of the audit engagement are changed, the auditor and management shall agree on
and record the new terms of the engagement in an engagement letter or other suitable form of
2 written agreement.

Recourse available to auditor in situation of nonagreement to a change in terms of engagement
and lack of permission from management to continue original audit engagement

If the auditor is unable fo agree to a change of the terms of the audit engagement and is hot
permitted by management to continue the original audit engagement, the auditor shall:

a) Withdraw from the audit engagement where possible under applicable law or regulation and

b) Determine whether there is any obligation, either contractual or otherwise, to report the
circumstances to other parties, such as those charged with governance, owners or regulators.

Page- 1A.10
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Practical Insight into draft engagement letter

RJ & Co. 24, MG Road,
Chartered Accountants Mumbai
10th August XXXX

To the Board of Directors of Pristine Products Limited

The objective and scope of the audit
You have requested that we audit the financial statements of Pristine Products Limited, which

comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 20XX, the Statement of Profit & Loss, Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by

means of this letter. The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements '

The responsibilities of the auditor
We will conduct our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control. However, we will
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communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies in internal control

relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

Transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, fogether with the inherent limitations of internal

control, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with SAs.

The responsibilities of management
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, where appropriate, those charged

with governance acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:

a) For the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
the financial reporting Standards. This includes:

(i) Theresponsibility for the preparation of financial statements on a going concern basis.
(i) The responsibility for selection and consistent application of appropriate accounting
policies, including implementation of applicable accounting standards along with proper

« explanation relating to any material departures from those accounting standards.

(iii) Theresponsibility for making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

. so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity at the end of the

financial year and of the profit or loss of the entity for that period.

b) For such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error and

c) Toprovideuswith:

(T) Access,at all times, to all information, including the books, accounts, vouchers and other
records and documentation, of the company, whether kept at the head office of the
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company or elsewhere, of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation

of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters,

(i) Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the
audit and

(iii) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary
to obtain audit evidence. This includes our entitlement to require from the officers of
the company such information and explanations as we may think necessary for the
performance of our duties as auditor. As part of our audit process, we will request from
management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance, written
confirmation concerning representations made fo us in connection with the audit.

Fees
Our feesbill for I XXXXXX (plus applicable taxes) and out of pocket expenses will be raised after

completion of audit work.

Reporting

We will report to the members of Pristine Products Limited as a body, whether in our opinion, the
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 20XX, and its
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. The form and content of our report

may need to be amended in the light of our audit findings.
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgement of, and

agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements including our
respective responsibilities.

For RJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number

(Signature)
(Name of the Member)
(Designation)
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SA 2920 Quality Control for an

Audit of Financial Statements

INTRODUCTION

1) Based upon quality control system of firm, quality control policies pertaining to audit
engagements are decided by engagement teams.

2) Engagement partner of a team is responsible for quality control procedures of a particular
audit engagement inaccordance with SA 220.

3) Therefore, SA 220 is premised on the basis that the firm is subject to SQC 1. Within the
context of the firm's system of quality control, engagement teams have a responsibility to
implement quality control procedures that are applicable to the audit engagement and provide
the firm with relevant information to enable the functioning of that part of the firm's system
of quality control relating to independence.

OBJECTIVE OF SA 220

As per SA 220, the objective of the auditor is to implement quality control procedures at the
engagement level that provide the auditor with reasonable assurance that: -

a) Theaudit complies with professional standards and regulatory and legal requirements and

b) The auditor's report issued is appropriate in the circumstances.

SA 220 is modelled on lines of SQC 1. It describes responsibilities of engagement partner in
relation to following matters: -

a) Leadership responsibilities for quality on audits

b) Relevant ethical requirements

¢) Acceptance and Continuance of client relationships and audit engagements.

d) Assignment of engagement teams

e) Engagement performance

f) Monitoring

Leadership Responsibilities for Quality on Audits

1) Leadership responsibility of an engagement partner is to take responsibility for the overall

quality on each audit engagement.

2) Theactions of the engagement partner and appropriate messages to the other members of the
engagement team, in taking responsibility for the overall quality on each audit engagement,
emphasise
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a) Theimportance o audit quality of: -
i) Performing work that complies with professional standards and regulatory and legal
requirements;
ii) Complyingwith the firm's quality control policies and procedures as applicable;
iii) Issuingauditor's reports that are appropriate in the circumstances; and
iv) The engagement feam's ability to raise concerns without fear of reprisals.
b) The fact that quality is essential in performing audit engagements.

Relevant ethical requirements
The responsibilities of an engagement partner in relation to ethical requirements in an audit
engagement are as under: -

1) Identifyingathreat to independence regarding the audit engagement that safeguards may not
be able to eliminate or reduce to anacceptable level.

2) Reporting by engagement partner to the relevant persons within the firm to determine
appropriate action, which may include eliminating the activity or interest that creates the
threat, or withdrawing from the audit engagement, where withdrawal is legally permitted.

Acceptance and Continuance of Client Relationships and audit

Engagements
1) The responsibility of an engagement partner in this regard in an audit engagement is on lines of
SQC 1 which requires the firm should obtain such information as it considers necessary in the
circumstances before accepting an engagement with a new client, when deciding whether to

continue an existing engagement, and when considering acceptance of a new engagement with an
existing client.
2) Informationlike
a) integrity of principal owners,
I b) competence of engagement team and consideration of necessary capabilities including
time and resources,
8 c) compliance with relevant ethical requirements and
d) significant matters arisen during current or previous audit engagement and their
implications
3) This will assist the engagement partner in determining whether the conclusions reached
regarding the acceptance and continuance of client relationships and audit engagements are
appropriatfe.
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Assignment of engagement teams

It should be ensured by engagement partner that the engagement team and any auditor's experts

who are not part of the engagement team, collectively have the appropriate competence and
capabilities to perform the engagement in accordance with professional standards and regulatory
and legal requirements.

Engagement Performance

1) Engagement partner has the responsibility for direction, supervision and performance of

audit engagement in accordance with professional standards and regulatory and legal

requirements. He is responsible for auditor's report being appropriate in circumstances.

2) Further, review of audit documentation before issue of audit report is his responsibi lity. It has
to be ensured that sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained to support the
conclusions reached and for issuance of auditor's report.

3) Engagement partner is also responsible for ensuring undertaking appropriate consultation on
difficult or contentious matters by engagement team not only within the team but also with
others at appropriate level within or outside the firm.

4) For audits of financial statements of listed entities, and those other audit engagements, if
any, for which the firm has determined that an engagement quality control review is required,
the engagement partner shall:

a) Determine that anengagement quality control reviewer has been appointed.

b) Discuss significant matters arising during the audit engagement, including those
identified during the engagement quality control review, with the engagement quality
control reviewer.

c¢) Not date the auditor's report until the completion of the engagement quality control
review.

5) If differences of opinion arise within the engagement team, with those consulted or, where
applicable, between the engagement partner and the engagement quality control reviewer,
the engagement team shall follow the firm's policies and procedures for dealing with and
resolving differences of opinion.

Monitoring
1) Aneffective system of quality control includes a monitoring process designed to provide the
firm with reasonable assurance that its policies and procedures relating to the system of
quality control are relevant, adequate, and operating effectively.
2) The engagement partner shall consider the results of the firm's monitoring process as
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evidenced in the latest information circulated by the firm and, if applicable, other network
firms and whether deficiencies noted in that information may affect the audit engagement.
3) Theengagement partner should document following matters pertaining to an audit engagement:
a) Issues identified with respect to compliance with relevant ethical requirements and how
they were resolved.
b) Conclusions on compliance with independence requirements that apply to the audit
engagement, and any relevant discussions with the firm that support these conclusions.
= ¢) Conclusions reached regarding the acceptance and continuance of client relationships
and audit engagements.
d) The nature and scope of, and conclusions resulting from, consultations undertaken
during the course of the audit engagement.
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Practical Insight into Checklist for A/C Analysis

Client Acceptance / Continuance Check-list

Client:
Accounting period:
Date
=l Checklist for Client Acceptance Completed Date Remarks
No. by
1 Proposal
2 Background Check From Markets
4 Engagement compliance checklist
5 Client Acceptance Form
6 Request by Client o confirm willingness to act as Auditors
7 Communication made with the previous auditors and due
time elapsed after such communication.
8 Letter of willingness
9 Letter of Appointment/ ratifictaion with copy of resolution
from the client.
10 Information to ROC about Acceptance
1 Engagement Budget
12 Engagement Letter
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“@Quality Control for firms that Perform Audits &
SQC- 1 Reviews of Historical Financial Information, &
other Assurance & Related Services Engagements”

1) SQC 1 requires that the firm should establish a system of quality control designed to
provide it with reasonable assurance that the firm and its personnel comply with
professional standards and regulatory and legal requirements and that reports issued by the
firm or engagement partners are appropriate in the circumstances.

2) Firm's system of quality control should consist of policies designed to achieve these
objectives.

ELEMENTS OF SYSTEM OF QUALITY CONTROL

1) The firm's system of quality control should include policies and procedures addressing each of
the following elements: -

a) Leadership responsibilities for quality within the firm

b) Ethical requirements

c) Acceptanceand continuance of client relationships and specific engagements
d) Humanresources

e) Engagement performance

f)  Monitoring

2) Quality control policies and procedures should be documented and communicated to the firm's
personnel. By communicating, the firm recognizes the importance of obtaining feedback on its
quality control system from its personnel.

3) Therefore, the firm encourages its personnel to communicate their views or concerns on quality
control matters.

Leadership responsibilities for quality within the firm

1) SQC 1 requires firms to establish policies and procedures designed to promote an internal
culture based on the recognition that quality is essential in performing engagements.

2) Such policies and procedures should require the firm's chief executive officer or the firm's
managing partners to assume ultimate responsibility for the firm's system of quality control.

3) The example set by firm's leadership encourages an inner culture that recognizes high quality
audit work.

4) Further, persons assigned operational responsibilities for the firm's quality control system by

the firm's chief executive of ficer or managing partners should have sufficient and appropriate
experience, ability and the necessary authority to assume that responsibility.
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Ethical requirements

1) The firm should establish policies and procedures designed to provide it with reasonable
assurance that the firm and its personnel comply with relevant ethical requirements contained
in the Code of ethics issued by ICAT.

2) TheCodeestablishes the fundamental principles of professional ethics which include

a) integrity,
P = b) objectivity,
c) professional competence and due care,
d) confidentiality and
e) professional behaviour.
3) Observance of “Independence” in all engagements is the basic requirement.

The firm should establish policies and procedures designed to provide it with reasonable
assurance that the firm, its personnel and (including experts contracted by the firm and
network firm personnel) maintain independence where required by the Code.

4) Suchpolicies and procedures should enable the firm to: -
a) Communicate itsindependence requirements to its personnel

b) Identify and evaluate circumstances and relationships that create threats to
independence, and to take appropriate action to eliminate those threats or reduce them to
an acceptable level by applying safeguards, or, if considered appropriate, to withdraw
from the engagement.

5) There should exist a mechanism in the firm by which engagement partners provide the firm
with relevant information about client engagements and personnel of firm promptly notify firm
of circumstances and relationships that create a threat to independence.

6) All breaches of independence should be promptly notified to firm for appropriate action. Its
objective is to ensure that independence requirements are satisfied.

7) At least annually, the firm should obtain written confirmation of compliance with its policies
and procedures on independence from all firm personnel required to be independent in terms of
the requirements of the Code.

, Acceptance and Continuance of Client Relationships and Specific
Engagements

1) A firm before accepting an engagement should acquire vital information about the client. Such
aninformation should help firm to decide about: -

a) Integrityof Client
b) Competence (including capabilities, time and resources) to perform engagement
c) Compliance with ethical requirements
2) The firm should obtain such information as it considers necessary in the circumstances before
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accepting an engagement with a new client, when deciding whether to continue an existing
engagement, and when considering acceptance of a new engagement with an existing client.

3) Where issues have been identified, and the firm decides to accept or continue the client
relationship or a specific engagement, it should document how the issues were resolved.

4) With regard to the integrity of a client, matters that the firm considers include, for
example:

a)  The identity and business reputation of the client's principal owners, key management,
related parties and those charged with its governance.

b) Thenature of the client's operations, including its business practices.

¢) Information concerning the attitude of the client's principal owners, key management and
those charged with its governance towards such matters as aggressive interpretation of
accounting standards and the internal control environment.

d) Whether the client is aggressively concerned with maintaining the firm's fees as low as
possible.

e) Indications of aninappropriate limitation in the scope of work.

f) Indications that the client might be involved in money laundering or other criminal
activities.

9) The reasons for the proposed appointment of the firm and non-reappointment of the
previous firm.

5) If thereis any conflict of interest between the firm and client, it should be properly resolved
before accepting the engagement. Where the firm obtains information that would have caused
it to decline an engagement if that information had been obtainable earlier, policies and
procedures on the continuance of the engagement and the client relationship should include
consideration of:

a) The professional and legal responsibilities that apply to the circumstances, including
whether there is a requirement for the firm to report o the person or persons who made
the appointment or, in some cases, to regulatory authorities; and

b)  The possibility of withdrawing from the engagement or from both the engagement and
the client relationship.

Human resources

1) The firm should establish policies and procedures designed to provide it with reasonable
assurance that it has sufficient personnel with the capabilities, competence, and commitment
to ethical principles necessary to perform its engagements in accordance with professional
standards and regulatory and legal requirements and to enable the firm or engagement partners
to issue reports that are appropriate in the circumstances.

2) Suchpolicies and procedures should address relevant HR issues including
a) Recruitment,
b) Compensation,
¢) Training,
d) Career development,

. 7507545533 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com

Page- 1A.23



SA 200 Series CA Rishabh Jain

e) Performance evaluationetc.
3) There should be emphasis on the continuing professional development of firm's personnel.

Engagement Performance

1) Consistency in quality of engagement performance is achieved through briefing of engagement

teams of their objectives, processes for complying with engagement standards, processes of

P engagement supervision and fraining, methods of reviewing performance of work, appropriate
documentation of work performed.

2) Consultation should take place in difficult or contentious matters pertaining to an engagement.
Consultation includes discussion, at the appropriate professional level, with individuals within
or outside the firm who have specialized expertise, to resolve a difficult or contentious matter.

3) A firm needing to consult externally, for example, a firm without appropriate internal
resources, may take advantage of advisory services provided by other firms or professional and
regulatory bodies.

4) Significant judgments made in an engagement should be reviewed by an engagement quality
control reviewer for taking an objective view before the report is issued. The extent of the
review depends on the complexity of the engagement and the risk that the report might not be
appropriate in the circumstances.

5) The review does not reduce the responsibilities of the engagement partner. Engagement
quality control review is mandatory for all audits of financial statements of listed entities.

6) In respect of other engagements, firm should devise criteria fo determine cases requiring
performance of engagement quality control review.

7) There might be difference of opinion within engagement team, with those consulted and
between engagement partner and engagement quality control reviewer. The report should only
be issued af ter resolution of such differences.

8) In case, recommendations of engagement quality control reviewer are not accepted by
engagement partner and matter is not resolved to reviewer's satisfaction, the matter should
be resolved by following established procedures of firm like by

p a) consultingwith another practitioner or firm, or
b) aprofessional or regulatory body.
9) Besides, the firm should establish policies and procedures for engagement teams to complete

the assembly of final engagement files on a timely basis after the engagement reports have
been finalized.

10) The assembly of engagement files should be completed in not more than 60 days after date of
auditor's report in case of audit engagements and in other cases within the limits appropriate
to engagements.

11) Policies and procedures should be designed to maintain the confidentiality, safe custody,
integrity, accessibility and retrievability of engagement documentation. Unless otherwise
specified by law or regulation, engagement documentation is the property of the firm.

7507545533 Page- 1A.24 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com



CA Rishabh Jain SA 200 Series

12) The firm may, at its discretion, make portions of, or extracts from, engagement documentation
available to clients, provided such disclosure does not undermine the validity of the work
performed, or, in the case of assurance engagements, the independence of the firm or its
personnel.

13) Engagement documentation has to be retained for a period of time sufficient to permit those
performing monitoring procedures to evaluate the firm's compliance with its system of quality
control, or for alonger period if required by law or regulation.

14) 1In the specific case of audit engagements, the retention period ordinarily is no shorter than
seven years from the date of the auditor's report, or, if later, the date of the group auditor's
report.

Monitoring

The firm should ensure that policies and procedures relating to the system of quality control are
relevant, adequate, operating effectively and complied with in practice.

Such policies and procedures should include an ongoing consideration and evaluation of the firm's
system of quality control, including a periodic inspection of a selection of completed engagements.

AUDIT QUALITY

1) The purpose of an independent audit is to provide confidence to users of audited financial
statements. Therefore, high audit quality is essential to maintain confidence in the
independent assurance provided by the auditors.

2) It is the responsibility of auditor to maintain high audit quality.

3) SQC 1 and SA 220 both deal with quality control.

4) Whereas SQC 1 deals with all engagements including audits, reviews and other assurance
and related service engagements, SA 220 applies to audit engagements only.

5) Further, SQC 1 applies to entire firm. However, SA 220 applies to a particular audit
engagement.

Audit Quality _ D
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SA 230 Audit Documentation

Audit documentation: SA 230 on "Audit Documentation”, audit documentation refers to the
record of audit procedures performed, relevant audit evidence obtained, and conclusions the
auditor reached. (terms such as “working papers” or “work papers” are also sometimes used.)

OBJECTIVE OF THE AUDITOR

The objective of the auditor is to prepare documentation that provides:
a) A sufficient and appropriate record of the basis for the auditor's report; and

b) Evidence that the audit was planned and performed in accordance with SAs and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements

NATURE OF AUDIT DOCUMENTATION

Audit documentation provides:

a) evidence of the auditor's basis for a conclusion about the achievement of the overall
objectives of the auditor; and

o

) evidence that the audit was planned and performed in accordance with SAs and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements.

PURPOSE OF AUDIT DOCUMENTATION

The following are the purpose of Audit documentation:
a) Assisting the engagement team to plan and perform the audit.

b) Assisting members of the engagement team to direct and supervise the audit work, and to
discharge their review responsibilities.

¢) Enabling the engagement team to be accountable for its work.
d) Retaining a record of matters of continuing significance to future audits.
e) Enabling the conduct of quality control reviews and inspections in accordance with SQC 1.

f) Enabling the conduct of external inspections in accordance with applicable legal,
regulatory or other requirements.
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FORM, CONTENT AND EXTENT OF AUDIT DOCUMENTATION

1) The auditor shall prepare audit documentation that is sufficient to enable an experienced
auditor, having no previous connection with the audit, to understand:

a) The nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed.

- b) The results of the audit procedures performed, and the audit evidence obtained and
c) Significant matters arising during the audit and the conclusions reached thereon and
g significant professional judgements made in reaching those conclusions.

2) Further in documenting the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed, the
auditor shall record:

a) The identifying characteristics of the specific items or matters tested.
b) Who performed the audit work and the date such work was completed; and
c) Who reviewed the audit work performed and the date and extent of such review.

3) The auditor shall document discussions of significant matters with management, those
charged with governance, and others, including the nature of the significant matters
discussed and when and with whom the discussions took place.

4) If the auditor identified information that is inconsistent with the auditor's final conclusion
regarding a significant matter, the auditor shall document how the auditor addressed the
inconsistency.

The form, content and extent of audit documentation depend on

factors such as:
a) The size and complexity of the entity.

b) The nature of the audit procedures to be performed.
¢} The identified risks of material misstatement.

d) The significance of the audit evidence obtained.

e) The nature and extent of exceptions identified.

f) Theaudit methodology and tools used.

; TIMELY PREPARATION OF AUDIT DOCUMENTATION

1) Preparing sufficient and appropriate audit documentation on a timely basis helps to enhance
the quality of audit and facilitates the effective review and evaluation of the audit
evidence obtained and conclusions reached before the auditor's report is finalized.

2) Documentation prepared after the audit work had been performed is likely to be less
accurate than prepared at the time such work is performed.
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EXAMPLES OF AUDIT DOCUMENTATION

1) Audit documentation may be recorded on paper or on electronic or other media.
2) Audit Documentation include:

a)  Audit programmes.

b)  Analyses.

c) Issues memoranda.

d)  Summaries of significant matters.

e) Letters of confirmation and representation.

f)  Checklists.

g)  Correspondence (including e-mail) concerning significant matters.

3) The auditor may include copies of the entity's records (for example, significant and specific
contracts and agreements) as part of audit documentation. Audit documentation is not a
substitute for the entity's accounting records.

4) The auditor need not include in audit documentation superseded drafts of working papers
and financial statements, notes that reflect incomplete or preliminary thinking, previous
copies of documents corrected for typographical or other errors, and duplicates of
documents.

AUDIT FILE

Audit file may be defined as one or more folders or other storage media, in physical or electronic
form, containing the records that comprise the audit documentation for a specific engagement.

ASSEMBLY OF THE FINAL AUDIT FILE

1) The auditor shall assemble the audit documentation in an audit file and complete the
administrative process of assembling the final audit file on a timely basis after the date of
the auditor's report.

2) SQC 1 "Quality Control for Firms that perform Audits and Review of Historical
Financial Information, and other Assurance and related services”, requires firms to
establish policies and procedures for the timely completion of the assembly of audit files.

3) An appropriate time limit within which to complete the assembly of the final audit file
is ordinarily not more than 60 days after the date of the auditor's report.

4) The completion of the assembly of the final audit file after the date of the auditor's report
is an administrative process that does not involve the performance of new audit procedures
or the drawing of new conclusions.

5) Changes may, however, be made to the audit documentation during the final assembly
process, if they are administrative in nature.
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6) Examples of such changes include:
a) Deletingor discarding superseded documentation.
b) Sorting, collating and cross-referencing working papers.
c) Signing off on completion checklists relating to the file assembly process.

d) Documenting audit evidence that the auditor has obtained, discussed, and agreed with the
relevant members of the engagement feam before the date of the auditor's report.

7) After the assembly of the final audit file has been completed, the auditor shall not delete or
2 discard audit documentation of any nature before the end of its retention period.

8) SQC 1 requires firms to establish policies and procedures for the retention of engagement
documentation. The retention period for audit engagements ordinarily is no shorter than
seven years from the date of the auditor's report, or, if later, the date of the group auditor's
report.

DOCUMENTATION OF SIGNIFICANT MATTERS AND RELATED

SIGNIFICANT PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENTS

1) Judging the significance of a matter requires an objective analysis of the facts and
circumstances.
Examples of significant matters include: (Matters that give rise to significant risks.)
a) Resultsof audit procedures indicating
(i) that the financial statements could be materially misstated, or

(i) a need to revise the auditor's previous assessment of the risks of material
misstatement and the auditor's responses to those risks.

b) Circumstances that cause the auditor significant difficulty in applying necessary audit
procedures.

c) Findings that could result in a modification to the audit opinion or the inclusion of an
Emphasis of Matter Paragraph in the auditor's report.

2) Animportant factor in determining the form, content and extent of audit documentation of
« significant matters is the extent of professional judgment exercised in performing the work
and evaluating the results.

. 3) Documentation of the professional judgments made, where significant, serves to explain the
auditor's conclusions and to reinforce the quality of the judgment.

4) Such matters are of particular interest to those responsible for reviewing audit
documentation, including those carrying out subsequent audits, when reviewing matters of
continuing significance (for example, when performing a retrospective review of accounting
estimates).
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COMPLETION MEMORANDUM OR AUDIT

DOCUMENTATION SUMMARY

1) The auditor may consider it helpful to prepare and retain as part of the audit
documentation a summary (sometimes known as a completion memorandum) that describes-

a) the significant matters identified during the audit and
b) how they were addressed.

2) Such a summary may facilitate effective and efficient review and inspection of the audit
documentation, particularly for large and complex audits.

3) Further, the preparation of such a summary may assist auditor's consideration of the
significant matters. It may also help the auditor o consider whether there is any individual
relevant SA objective that the auditor cannot achieve that would prevent the auditor from
achieving the overall objectives of the auditor.

OWNERSHIP OF AUDIT DOCUMENTATION

1) Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1 provides that, unless otherwise specified by law or
regulation, audit documentation is the property of the auditor.

2) He may at his discretion, make portions of, or extracts from, audit documentation available
to clients, provided such disclosure does not undermine the validity of the work performed,
or, in the case of assurance engagements, the independence of the auditor or of his
personnel.

Practical Insight into Form, Content and Extent of Audit Documentation

XYZ Co

Statutory Audit for the year ended 31st March 2011 W.P. Ref.: C-3

Date: June-29-2011
Cash & Bank Prepared by: MF
Cash on hand Reviewed by: SM/SK

Objective
To verify whether cash balance is fairly stated.

Particulars In W/P Ref 31-Mar-11 ~ 31-Mar-10Q Variation % variation Out W/P Ref

Cash on hand - = - T #Dv/Or C-2

Work Done
We have obtained the cash certificate for Nil balance as on 31st March 2011. Hard Copy ref. C-3.1
We have scrutinize the entire Cash book.

Observation
There were no cash transactions during the year.

Conclusion
The cash balance is fairly stated.
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Practical Insight into Draft Audit Program

(Refer along with SA 300)

SM/SK

SM/SK

SM/SK

SM/SK

SM/ISK

SM/SK

SM/SK

XYZ Co :
. W.P. Ref.: Audit Programme
Statutory Audit for the year ended 31st March 2011 Date: June-29-2011
Prepared by: MF
Cash & Bank
Audit Programme
Particulars W/P Ref Performed B: Reviewed B
1 Obtain a schedule for balances with banks as at March 31, 2011. Verify C,E\V Cc-2 MF
whether the same agrees with the Trial Balance.
2 Obtain cash certificate for year ended 31 March 2011. E C-3 MF
3 Obtain resolution and ensure all formalities have been done to open new No New
bank accounts. Bank
C MF
Accounts
Opened
4 Verify whether the bank balance as per the books agrees with the v C4 MF
extemnal confirmations received from banks.
5 Verify reconciling items which are of material amounts for cheques
issued but not presented for payment, obtain the bank statement for C C5 MF
subsequent monts and verify whether the items appearing in the March, 2011
reconciliation have been subsequently cleared.
6 Verify re-statement of foreign currency balances at year end rate, \' Cc6 MF
ensure the same have been comectly restated and the unrealised exchange
gain loss has been comectly accounted for.
7 For FDs obtain the FDR and trace the balances to the same. V.E C-7 MF
8 Test cutoffs of cash and bank transactions E,C c-8 MF

SM/SK

(&) 7507545533

Page- 1A.32

@ www.ekatvamacademy.com




CA Rishabh Jain SA 200 Series

(@) 7507545533 Page- 1A.33



S A. 2 4 0 The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to
Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements

MEANING OF FRAUD

SA 240 "The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements”
defines the term 'fraud' as-

“an intentional act by one or more individuals among management, those charged with
governance, employees, or third parties, involving the use of deception to obtain an unjust or
illegal advantage”.

Although fraud is a broad legal concept, for the purposes of the SAs, the auditor is concerned with
fraud that causes a material misstatement in the financial statements.

Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant to the auditor -
a) misstatements resulting from fraudulent financial reporting and
b) misstatementsresulting from misappropriation of assets.

[ Frauds j
|

l

Misappropriation Fraudulent
of Assets Financial Reporting

Misappropriation Fraudulent
of Assets Financial Reporting
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GENERAL CONTENT (FOR REFERENCE)

Scope of Specifically, it expands on how SA 315 and SA 330 is to be applied in relation to
this SA risks of material misstatement due to fraud.

Responsibility | 1) The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests

for the with both those Charged with governance of the entity and management.

Prevention and| 2) Management and those charged with governance should place a strong

Detection of emphasis on fraud prevention.

Fraud 3) This involves a commitment to creating a culture of honesty and ethical
behavior.

Responsibilities| 1) An auditor is responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the
of the Auditor financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement.

2) Asdescribedin SA 200, due to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is
an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements-of the financial
statements will not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned
and performed in accordance with the SAs.

3) The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error. This is
because fraud may involve carefully organized schemes designed to conceal
it

4) It is difficult for the auditor to determine whether misstatements in
Judgment areas such as accounting estimates are caused by fraud or error.

5) The risk of the auditor not detecting, a material misstatement resulting
from management fraud is greater than for employee fraud as management
can manipulate accounting records.

6) The auditor is responsible for maintaining an attitude of professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

Note:

If auditor can prove in the court of law using his working papers (SA 230)
that he has performed his audit procedures in compliance with all applicable
SA's and has followed all the basic principles governing an audit then he may
not be held responsible for non-detection of certain material misstatements.
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S A 2 60 (Revised) Communication with those Charged
with Governance and Management

SCOPE OF THIS SA

SA 260 deals with the auditor's responsibility to communicate with those charged with governance
inan audit of financial statements.

OBJECTIVES OF AUDITOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH SA 260

The objectives of the auditorare: -

a) To communicate clearly with those charged with governance the responsibilities of the auditor
in relation to the financial statement audit, and an overview of the planned scope and timing of
the audit;

b) To obtainfrom those charged with governance information relevant to the audit;

c) To provide those charged with governance with timely observations arising from the audit that
are significant and relevant to their responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process
and

d) To promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those charged with
governance.

DETERMINING APPROPRIATE PERSONS

WITH WHOM TO COMMUNICATE

The auditor shall determine the appropriate person(s) within the entity's governance structure
with whom to communicate.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED BY AUDITOR

Following matters are required to be communicated by auditor with those charged with governance:

The auditor's responsibilities in relation to the
financial statement audit

The auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance the responsibilities of the
auditor in relation to the financial statement audit, including that:

a) The auditor is responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements
that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance
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b)

and

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with
governance of their responsibilities.

Planned scope and timing of the audit

The auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance an overview of the planned
scope and timing of the audit, which includes communicating about the significant risks identified by
the auditor.

Significant findings from the audit

The auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance: -

a)

b)

The auditor's views about significant qualitative aspects of the entity's accounting pracfices,
including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. When
applicable, the auditor shall explain to those charged with governance why the auditor
considers a significant accounting practice, that is acceptable under the applicable financial
reporting framework, not to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the entity

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity: -

() Significant matters arising during the audit that were discussed, or subject to
correspondence, with management;

(i) Written representations the auditor is requesting
Circumstances that affect the formand content of the auditor's report, if any and

Any other significant matters arising during the audit that, in the auditor's professional
judgment, are relevant to the oversight of the financial reporting process.

COMMUNICATION OF AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE

IN CASE OF LISTED ENTITIES

Inthe case of listed entities, the auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance: -

a)

b)

A statement that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and,
when applicable, network firms have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and

(i) Al relationships and other matters between the firm, network firms, and the entity that,
in the auditor's professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on
independence. This shall include total fees charged during the period covered by the
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financial statements for audit and non-audit services provided by the firm and network
firms to the entity and components controlled by the entity. These fees shall be allocated
to categories that are appropriate to assist those charged with governance in assessing
the effect of services on the independence of the auditor and

(ii) The related safeguards that have been applied to eliminate identified threats to
independence or reduce them to anacceptable level.

THE COMMUNICATION PROCESS

LY

1) The auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance the form, timing and
expected general content of communications.

2) The auditor shall communicate in writing with those charged with governance regarding
significant findings from the audit if, in the auditor's professional judgment, oral
communication would not be adequate.

3) Written communications need not include all matters that arose during the course of the audit.

4) The auditor shall communicate in writing with those charged with governance regarding
auditor independence when required in case of listed entities. The auditor shall communicate
with those charged with governance on a timely basis.

ADEQUACY OF THE COMMUNICATION PROCESS

1) Theauditor shall evaluate whether the two-way communication between the auditor and those
charged with governance has been adequate for the purpose of the audit. :

2) If it has not, the auditor shall evaluate the effect, if any, on the auditor's assessment of the
risks of material misstatement and ability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, and
shall take appropriate action.

DOCUMENTATION

Where matters required by SA 260 to be communicated are communicated orally, the auditor shall
include them in the audit documentation, and when and to whom they were communicated. Where
matters have been communicated inwriting, the auditor shall retain a copy of the communication as
part of the audit documentation.
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NOTE 1- SIGNIFICANCE OF COMMUNICATION

WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Communication from auditor is important with those charged with governance. An effective

two-way communication is important in assisting: -

a) The auditor and those charged with governance in understanding matters related to the audit
in context, and in developing a constructive working relationship. This relationship is developed
while maintaining the auditor's independence and ob jectivity.

b) Theauditor inobtaining from those charged with governance information relevant to the audit.
For example, those charged with governance may assist the auditor in understanding the entity
and its environment, in identifying appropriate sources of audit evidence, and in providing
information about specific transactions or events; and

c) Those charged with governance in fulfilling their responsibility to oversee the financial
reporting process, thereby reducing the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements.

Note 2 - WHO ARE "THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE"?

1) The person(s) or organization(s) (e.g., a corporate trustee) with responsibility for overseeing
the strategic direction of the entity and obligations related to the accountability of the
entity.

2) Thisincludes overseeing the financial reporting process. For some entities, those charged with
governance may include management personnel, for example, executive members of a
governance board of a private or public sector entity, or an owner-manager-.

3) Governance structures vary by entities, reflecting influences such as different cultural and
legal backgrounds, and size and ownership characteristics. For example, in some entities, a
supervisory board exists that is separate from executive board.

4) Inotherentities, both supervisory and executive functions are performed by asingle board. In
some enfities, those charged with governance hold positions that are an integral part of the
entity's legal structure. For example, company directors.

5) Insome cases, some or all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the
entity. In others, those charged with governance and management comprise different
persons,

6) Inmost entities, governance is the collective responsibility of a governing body, such as a
board of directors, a supervisory board, partners, proprietors, a committee of management,
trustees, or equivalent persons.

7) Insome smaller entities, however, one person may be charged with governance, for example,
the owner-manager where there are no other owners, or a sole trustee.

8) Such diversity means that it is not possible to specify for all audits the persons with whom the
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auditor is to communicate particular matters. Also, in some cases, the appropriate persons with
whom to communicate may not be clearly identifiable from the applicable legal framework or
other engagement circumstances, for example, entities where the governance structure is not
formally defined, such as some family-owned entities and some not-for-profit organizations.

9) Insuch cases, the auditor may need to discuss and agree with the engaging party the relevant
persons with whom fo communicate.

10) In deciding with whom fo communicate, the auditor's understanding of an entity's governance
structure and processes obtained inaccordance with SA 315 is relevant.

: 11) The appropriate persons with whom to communicate may vary depending on the matter to be
communicated.
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S A. 2 6 5 Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control
to those Charged with Governance and Management

SCOPE OF THIS SA

1) SA 265 deals with the auditor's responsibility o communicate appropriately to those charged
with governance and management deficiencies in internal control that the auditor has identified
inanaudit of financial statements.

2) The auditor is required to obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
when identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement.

3) In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinionon the effectiveness of internal control.

4) The auditor may identify deficiencies in internal control not only during this risk assessment
process but also at any other stage of the audit.

5) SA 265 specifies which identified deficiencies the auditor is required to communicate o those
charged with governance and management.

OBJECTIVE OF AUDITOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH SA 265

The objective of the auditor is fo communicate appropriately to those charged with governance and
management deficiencies in internal control that the auditor has identified during the audit and
that, in the auditor's professional judgment, are of sufficient importance to merit their respective
attentions.

MEANING OF "DEFICIENCY IN INTERNAL CONTROL” AND

"SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY IN INTERNAL CONTROL"

1) Deficiency ininternal control - This exists when: -

a) A control is designed, impiemented or operated in such away that it is unable to prevent,
ordetect and correct, misstatements in the financial statements on a timely basis or

b) A confrol necessary to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements in the financial
statements ona timely basis is missing.

2) Significant deficiency in internal control - A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in
internal control that, in the auditor's professional judgment, is of sufficient importance to
merit the attention of those charged with governance.

3) Thesignificance of a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control depends not
only on whether a misstatement has actually occurred, but also on the likelihood that a
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4)

misstatement could occur and the potential magnitude of the misstatement.

Significant deficiencies may, therefore, exist even though the auditor has not identified
misstatements during the audit.

Examples of matters that the auditor may consider in determining

1)

2)
3)

4)
5)

6)

7)

8)

1)

2)

whether a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal

control constitutes a significant deficiency

The likelihood of the deficiencies leading to material misstatements in the financial
statementsinthe future.

The susceptibility to loss or fraud of the related asset or liability.

The subjectivity and complexity of determining estimated amounts, such as fair value
accounting estimates.

The financial statement amounts exposed to the deficiencies.

The volume of activity that has occurred or could occur in the account balance or class of
transactions exposed to the deficiency or deficiencies.

The importance of the controls to the financial reporting process, for example:

a) General monitoring controls (such as oversight of management).

b) Controlsover the prevention and detection of fraud.

c) Controls over the selection and application of significant accounting policies.

d) Controlsover significant transactions with related parties.

e) Controls over significant transactions outside the entity's normal course of business.

f) Controls over the period-end financial reporting process (such as controls over non-
recurring journal entries).

The cause and frequency of the exceptions detected as a result of the deficiencies in the
controls.

The interaction of the deficiency with other deficiencies in internal control.

les of indicators of significant deficiencies in internal control

Evidence of ineffective aspects of the control environment, such as: -

a) Indications that significant transactions in which management is financially interested are
not being appropriately scrutinised by those charged with governance.

b) Identification of management fraud, whether or not material, that was not prevented by
the entity's internal control.

€) Management's failure to implement appropriate remedial action on significant
deficiencies previously communicated.

Absence of a risk assessment process within the entity wher‘e such a process would ordinarily

be expected to have been established.
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3) Evidence of an ineffective entity risk assessment process, such as management's failure to
identify a risk of material misstatement that the auditor would expect the entity's risk
assessment process to have identified.

4) Evidence of an ineffective response to identified significant risks (e.g., absence of controls
over such arisk).

5) Misstatements detected by the auditor's procedures that were not prevented, or detected
and corrected, by the entity's internal control.

6) Disclosure of amaterial misstatement due to error or fraud as prior period items in the current
year's Statement of Profit and Loss.

7) Evidence of management's inability to oversee the preparation of the financial statements.

DETERMINATION OF SIGNIFICANT

DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL

1) Theauditor shall determine whether, on the basis of the audit work performed, the auditor has
identified one or more deficiencies in internal control.

2) If the auditor has identified one or more deficiencies in internal control, the auditor shall
determine, on the basis of the audit work performed, whether, individually or in combination,
they constitute significant deficiencies.

COMMUNICATION OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IN

INTERNAL CONTROL TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

1) The auditor shall communicate. in writing significant deficiencies in internal control identified
during the audit to those charged with governance on a timely basis.

2) Theauditor shall also communicate to management at an appropriate level of responsibility ona
timely basis: -

a) Inwriting, significant deficiencies in internal control that the auditor has communicated
or intends to communicate fo those charged with governance, unless it would be
inappropriate to communicate directly fo management in the circumstances; and

b) Other deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit that have not been
communicated to management by other parties and that, in the auditor's professional
Jjudgment, are of sufficient importance to merit management's attention.

3) The auditor shall include in the written communication of significant deficiencies in internal
control: -

a) Adescriptionof the deficiencies and an explanation of their potential effects; and
b) Sufficient information to enable those charged with governance and management to
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understand the context of the communication.
4) Inparticular, the auditor shall explain that:

a) The purpose of the audit was for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial
statements;

b)  The audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control; and

¢) The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that the auditor has
identified during the audit and that the auditor has concluded are of sufficient importance
to merit being reported to those charged with governance.

NOTE 1 - WHY COMMUNICATION OF SIGNIFICANT

DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL IS NECESSARY?

Communicating significant deficiencies in internal control in writing to those charged with
governance reflects the importance of these matters and assists those charged with governance
in fulfilling their oversight responsibilities.
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(Revised) Responsibility of
A 299 Joint Auditors

Scope The practice of appointing more than one auditor to conduct the audit of large
entities has been in vogue for a longtime, sometimes voluntarily by the
shareholders or sometimes due to the requirements of laws or regulations. Such
auditors, known as joint auditors, conduct the audit jointly and report on the
financial statements of the entity

Definition A joint audit is an audit of Financial Statements of an entity by two or more
auditors appointed with the objective of issuing the audit report. Such auditors
are described as joint auditors.

Special Considerations while carrying out Joint Audit

Audit 1) The Engagement partner and other key members from each of the joint
Planning, Risk auditors should be involved in planning the audit.

Assessment | 2) The Joint auditors shall jointly establish an overall audit strategy that
and Allocation sets the scope, timing and direction of the audit, and that guides the
of Work development of the audit plan.

3) Prior to the commencement of the audit, the joint auditors shall discuss
and develop a joint audit plan. In developing the joint audit plan, the
Joint auditors shall:

a) Identify division of audit areas and common audit areas

b)  Ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement

c) Consider and communicate among all joint auditors the factors
that are significant

d) Consider the results of preliminary engagement activities or
similar engagements performed earlier.

e) Ascertfain the nature, timing and extent of resources necessary
to accomplish the engagement.

4) Risks of material misstatement need to be considered and assessed by each
of the joint auditors and shall be communicated to other joint auditors.

Documentation| q) The joint auditors shall discuss and document the nature, timing, and the

of Work extent of the audit procedures for common and specific allotted areas of

Allocated audit to be performed by each of the joint auditors.

b) The joint auditors shall obtain common engagement letter and common
management representation letter.

c) After identification and allocation of work among the joint auditors, the
work allocation document shall be signed by all the joint auditors.
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d) Documentation of allocation of work helps in avoiding any dispute or
confusion which may arise among the joint auditors regarding the scope of
work to be carried out by them.

Responsibility | 1) In respect of audit work divided among the joint auditors, each joint
of Joint auditor shall be responsible only for the work allocated to such joint
Auditors auditor including proper execution of the audit procedures.

2) On the other hand, all the joint auditors shall be jointly and severally
responsible for:

a) The audit work which is not divided among the joint auditors and is
carried out by all joint auditors;

b) Decisions taken by all the joint auditors under audit planning in
respect of common audit areas concerning the NTE of the audit
procedures to be performed by each of the joint auditors.

c) Matters which are brought to the notice of the joint auditors by any
one of them and on which there is an agreement among the joint
auditors onsuch matters.

d) Examining that the Financial Statements of the entity comply with
the requirements of the relevant statutes:;

e) Presentation and disclosure of the Financial Statements as required
by the applicable FRF;

f)  Ensuring that the audit report complies with the requirements of the
relevant statutes, the applicable Standards on Auditing and the other
relevant pronouncements issued by ICAI.

3) Itshallbethe responsibility of each joint auditor to determine the NTE of
audit procedures to be applied in relation to the areas of work allocated to
said joint auditor.

Note:

Where, in the course of the audit, a joint auditor comes across matters which
are relevant to the areas of responsibility of other joint auditors and which
deserve their attention, or which require disclosure or require discussion with,
or application of judgment by other joint auditors, the said joint auditor shall
communicate the same to all the other joint auditors in writing prior to the
completion of the audit.

Audit a) Joint auditorsare required to issue common audit report.
Conclusion b) However, in case of any disagreement among joint auditors with regard to
and Reporting the opinion or any matters to be covered by the audit report, they shall

express their opinion in a separate audit report.

c) A joint auditor is not bound by the views of the majority of the joint
auditors regarding the opinion or matters to be covered in the audit report
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and shall express opinion formed by the said joint auditor in separate audit
report in case of disagreement.

d) In case of separate reports, the audit report(s) issued by the Joint
auditor(s) shall make a reference to the separate audit report(s) issued
by the other joint auditor(s). Such reference shall be made under the
heading "Other Matter Paragraph” as per SA 706.

Review of Each joint auditor is entitled to assume that the other joint auditors have
work by other| cqrried out their part of the audit work and the work has actually been
Joint auditor | performed inaccordance with the SA's,

Communication| q) When the Joint auditors expect to modify the opinion in the auditor's
with TCW6 report, they shall communicate with TCW6 the circumstances that led
to the expected modification and the proposed wording of the
modification to ensure compliance with SA 705.

b) If the joint auditors expect to include an EOM or an OM paragraph in the
auditor's report, the joint auditors shall communicate with TCWG
regarding this expectation and the proposed wording of this paragraph to
ensure compliance with SA 706.

ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF JOINT AUDIT

Joint Audit basically implies pooling together the resources and expertise of two or more firms to
perform anexpert job inagiven time period which may be difficult to accomplish acting individually.

Advantages

In specific terms the advantages that flow may be the following:
a) Sharing of expertise.

b) Advantage of mutual consultation.

¢) Lowerworkload.

d) Betterquality of performance.

e) Improvedservicetotheclient.

f) Inrespect of multi-national companies, the work can be spread using the expertise of the local
firms which are inabetter position to deal with detailed work and the local laws and regulations.

9) Lower staff development costs.
h) Lower costs to carry out the work.
i)  Asenseof healthy competition towards a better performance.
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Disadvantages

The general disadvantages may be the following:

a) Thefeesbeingshared.

b) Psychological problem where firms of different standing are associated in the joint audit.
¢) General superiority complexes of some auditors.

d) Problemsof co-ordination of the work.

e) Areasof work of common concern being neglected.

f) Uncertainty about the liability for the work done.
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Practical Insight into Engagement Terms of Joint Audit

Auditor 1 Auditor 2
STATUTORY AUDITOF -----ccccmmmeem I+d.
STATEMENT OF JOINT RESPONSIBILITIES OF AUDITORS

1.0. INTRODUCTION:
Auditor 1 and Auditor 2 have been appointed as the joint auditors for the purpose of conducting

the statutory audit of Co LTD (‘the Company') for the year ending March 31,
2023. The Consolidated financial statements of would cover the
financial statements of and its subsidiaries and joint ventures namely,

, and their subsidiaries
and any other entities which would become subsidiaries/associates at a later date (herein after
collectively referred to as 'the subsidiaries). The allocation of work areas between the joint
auditors, as mutually agreed, has been annexed herewith. The joint auditors would be mutually
and jointly responsible for the overall consolidation of financial statements, corporate and
secretarial matters and tax reviews.

2.0. INTEREST ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND WORK:

As per mutual discussions between Auditor 1 and Auditor 2, the responsibility for the work to be
performed, has been delineated. In terms of SA 299 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, it has been mutually decided between both the joint auditors as follows:

(a) Each joint auditor is responsible for the work allocated to him, whether or not he has
prepared a separate report on the work performed by him;

(b) Where, inthe course of his work, any of the joint auditors comes across matters which are
relevant fo the other joint auditor, and which deserve their attention, or which requires
disclosure or requires discussion with, or application of judgement by the other joint
auditor, they would communicate the same to the other joint auditor in writing.

(c) Ifanymatterof the nature referred to inparagraph (b)above, is brought to the attention
of the Company or the joint auditor, after the audit report has been submitted, the other
joint auditor would not be responsible for these matters.

(d) The joint auditors are jointly and severally responsible for:

(i) in respect of the audit work which is not divided among the joint auditors and is
carried out by both of them; ’

(i) inrespect of decisions taken by both the joint auditors concerning the nature, timing
or extent of the audit procedures to be performed by any of the joint auditors. It
may, however, by clarified that both the joint auditors are responsible only in respect
of the appropriateness of the decisions concerning the nature, timing or extent of
the audit procedures agreed upon among them: proper execution of these audit
procedures is the separate and specific responsibility of the joint auditor concerned;

(iii) inrespect of the matters which are brought to the notice of the joint auditors by any
one of them and onwhich there is an agreement among the joint auditors;
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(iv) for examining that the financial statements of the entity comply with disclosure
requirements of the relevant statute; and

(v) for ensuring that the audit report complies with the requirements of the relevant
statute.

(e) Each jointauditor is entitled to assume that the other joint auditor has carried out their part of
the audit work inaccordance with generally accepted audit procedures. It is not necessary fora
Jjoint auditor to review the work performed by the other joint auditor or perform any tests in
’ order to ascertain whether the work has actually been performed in such a manner. Each joint
auditor is entitled to rely upon the other joint auditor for bringing fo his notice any departure
from generally accepted accounting principles or any material error noticed in the course of the
audit.

(f) Each of the joint auditors confirms that there are no independence issues as regards their
appointment / functioning as the statutory auditors of the Company is concerned.

3.0. JURISDICTION

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of India. Any
dispute arising out of the Services or this Agreement shall be subject to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the courts of New Delhi, to which the parties hereby agree to submit for these

purposes.

On behalf of On behalf of

Auditor 1 Auditor 2

Partner Partner
Place: Pune

Date: July____, 2023

We are in agreement with the above terms and conditions.

o Onbehalf of
ColLTD

(Managing Director)
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Practical Insight into SBI Joint Auditor's Report

OSBI| Z=

The Sankes 1 #eary

In terms of our report of even date

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Shah

Partner: M. No. 033632
Firm Regn. No. 105049W
UDIN:22033632AIXHQQ3021

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Anuj Dhingra

Partner: M. No.512535

Firm Reg.No.000235N/N500089
UDIN:22512535AIXKXX2970

For Guha Nandi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dr. B. S. Kundu

Partner: M. No. 051221
Firm Regn. No. 302039E
UDIN:22051221AIXPYM6914

For V Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Aniruddha Sengupta
Partner: M. No. 051371
Firm Regn. No. 311017E
UDIN:22051371AIXHWT8422

Place — Mumbai
Date — May 13, 2022
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For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Heneel K Patel

Partner: M. No. 114103
Firm Regn. No. 109574W
UDIN:22114103AIXKLG7230

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Parveen Kumar

Partner: M. No. 088810

Firm Regn. No. 009571N/N500006
UDIN:22088810AIXJER5275

For M C Bhandari & Co.
Chartered Accountants

M R Jain

Partner: M. No. 050919
Firm Regn. No. 303002E
UDIN:22050919AIXHIH2828

For Suri & Co.
Chartered Accountants

V Natarajan

Partner: M. No. 223118
Firm Regn. No. 004283S
UDIN:22223118AIXKPX8986
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For Umamaheswara Rao & Co.
Chartered Accountants

L Shyama Prasad

Partner: M. No. 028224
Firm Regn. No. 004453S
UDIN:22028224AIXHMB2621

For Prem Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Prem Behari Gupta
Partner: M. No. 080245
Firm Regn. No. 000425N
UDIN:22080245AIXKLC5297

For K C Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Chirag Bakshi

Partner: M. No. 047164
Firm Regn. No. 106237W
UDIN:22047164AIXKOQ4739

For Talati & Talati LLP
Chartered Accountants

Anand Sharma

Partner: M. N0.129033

Firm Regn. No. 110758W/W100377
UDIN:22129033AIXMPT2135
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Planning An Audit Of
SA 300 Financial Statements

Introduction |

SA 300- Planning an audit of financial statements deals with the auditor's responsibility to plan
an audit of financial statements. It states that objective of the auditor is to plan the audit so that it
will be performed inan effective manner.

Why Planning an audit is necessary? Its Benefits:

1) Planning an audit is necessary to carry out it effectively in a timely manner. Besides ensuring
compliance with professional standards, it helps in performing audit engagement effectively.

2) Adequate planning benefits the audit of financial statements in several ways, including the
following:

a) Helping the auditor to devote appropriate attention to important areas of the audit.
b) Helping the auditor identify and resolve potential problems ona timely basis.

c) Helping the auditor properly organize and manage the audit engagement so that it is
performedinaneffective and efficient manner.

d) Assisting in the selection of engagement team members with appropriate levels of
capabilities and competence to respond to anticipated risks, and the proper assignment of
work to them.

e) Facilitating the direction and supervision of engagement team members and the review
of theirwork.

f) Assisting, where applicable, in coordination of work done by auditors of components and
experts.

Therefore, planning an audit ensures that audit risk is reduced to an acceptable low level. When
audit work is adequately and properly planned, it reduces the risk of inappropriate opinion by the
auditor.

. PLANNING PROCESS- ELEMENTS OF PLANNING

. [ Elements of Planning}
v
_ v v
[ Prelummar)t u { Planning activities J
Engagement activities
v

v
[ Establishing overall ] L Developing an ]

~ audit strategy Audit Plan
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The elements of planning can be categorized as under: -
(I) Preliminary engagement activities
(IT) Planning activities

- I) Prelimiﬁ_ary eng_dgeme_nf activities

The auditor considers whether relationship with client should be continued and whether ethical
requirements including independence continue to be complied with. It includes: -

(A) Performing procedures regarding the continuance of the client relationship
(B) Evaluating compliance with ethical requirements, including independence
(C) Establishing anunderstanding of terms of engagement

(A) Performing procedures regarding the Continuance of Client
Relationships and Audit Engagements

Acceptance and Continuance of Client Relationships and Audit Engagements

1) It should be ensured that appropriate procedures regarding the acceptance and continuance
of client relationships and audit engagements have been followed and that conclusions reached
inthis regard are appropriate.

2) The firm should obtain information considered necessary in the circumstances before
accepting an engagement with a new client, when deciding whether to continue an existing
engagement, and when considering acceptance of a new engagement with an existing client.

3) Matterssuchas
a) Integrity of principal owners and key management,
b) Competence of engagement team to perform the audit engagement and

c) Implications of matters that have arisen during current and previous audit engagement
may need to be considered.

4) Besides, in case of initial engagements, communication with predecessor auditor should be
made, where there has been a change of auditors.

(B) Evaluating compliance with ethical requirements
including independence

1) The auditor shall continuously evaluate compliance with ethical requirements including
independence. "Independence” means that the judgement of a person is not subordinate to
the wishes or direction of another person who might have engaged him.

2) Throughout the audit engagement, the engagement partner shall remain alert, through
observation and making inquiries as necessary, for evidence of non-compliance with relevant
ethical requirements by members of the engagement team.

3) If matters come to the engagement partner's attention that indicate that members of the
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engagement team have not complied with relevant ethical requirements, the engagement
partner, in consultationwith others in the firm, shall determine the appropriate action.

4) The engagement partner shall form a conclusion on compliance with independence

requirements that apply to the audit engagement. Indoing so, the engagement partner shall: -

a) Obtain relevant information from the firm to identify and evaluate circumstances and
relationships that create threats fo independence

b) Evaluate information on identified breaches, if any, of the firm's independence policies

and procedures to determine whether they create a threat to independence for the audit
engagement and

¢) Take appropriate action 'ro eliminate such threats or reduce them to an acceptable level
by applying safeguards, or, if considered appropriate, to withdraw from the audit
engagement, where withdrawal is permitted by law or regulation.
d) The engagement partner shall promptly report to the firm any inability to resolve the
matter for appropriate action.
Besides, consideration for client continuance and compliance with ethical requirements, preliminary
engagements activities also include establishing an understanding of terms of engagement.

Establishing an understanding of terms of engagement

1) It is in the interests of both the entity and the auditor that the auditor sends an audit
engagement letter before the commencement of the audit to help avoid misunderstandings
with respect to the audit. .

2) TItensuresthatthereisno confusionwith the chenT regarding terms of the engagement.

3) Performing preliminary engagement activities assists the auditor in identifying and evaluating
events or circumstances that may affect auditor's ability to plan and perform audit
engagement.

II) PLANNING ACTIVITIES

Planning activities involve:
(A) Establishing the overall audit strategy
(B) Developing an audit plan

A) OVERALL AUDIT STRATEGY

Establishment of Overall Audit Strategy

The auditor shall establish an overall audit strategy that sets the scope, timing and direction of
the audit, and that guides the development of the audit plan.

In establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor shall: (Factors)
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a) Determination of Characteristics of Audit: Identify the characteristics of the engagement
that define its scope;

b) Reporting Objectives: Ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement to plan the
timing of the audit and the nature of the communications required:

c) Team's Efforts: Consider the factors that are significant in directing the engagement feam's
efforts;

d) Preliminary Work: Consider the results of preliminary engagement activities and, where
applicable, whether knowledge gained on other engagements performed by the engagement
partner for the entity is relevant; and

e) Nature, timing and Extent of Resources: Ascertain the Nature, timing & extent of resources
necessary to perform the engagement.

Above Fac‘rors in De‘ra_il_

Identify the characteristics of the
engagement that define its scope

1) Tt is important for auditor to identify scope of the engagement. Only a well identified scope
canlead to establishment of a sound audit strategy.

2) Thereare many characteristics of engagement defining its scope.
3) Someof characteristics are as under: -
a)  Applicable financial reporting framework applicable to the entity
b) Nature of business segments to be audited including the need for specialized knowledge
c¢) Industry specific reporting requirements required by industry regulators
d) Expected use of audit evidence obtained in previous audits

Ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement to plan the timing

of the audit and the nature of the communications required.

The ascertaining of reporting objectives of engagement helps the auditor to plan timing of
different audit procedures and also nature of communications. Some of the instances are given
under: -

1) Theentity's timetable for reporting

2) Organization of meetings to discuss of nature, timing and extent of audit work with
management

3) Discussion with management regarding the expected type and timing of reports to be issued
including the auditor's report

4) Discussion with management regarding the expected communications on the status of audit
work throughout the engagement.
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5) Expected nature and timing of communications among engagement team members, including
the nature and timing of team meetings and timing of the review of work performed.

Consider the factors that, in the auditor's professional judgment,
are significant in directing the engagement team's efforts

1) The auditor needs to direct efforts of engagement team towards matters that in his
. professional judgment are significant.

2) Preliminary identification of material classes of transactions, account balances and disclosures
help auditor inestablishing overall audit strategy.

3) More energies need to be devoted to significant matters to obtain desired outcomes. Few
examples are listed as under: -

a) Volume of transactions which may determine whether it is more efficient for the auditor
torely oninternal control

b) Significant industry developments such as changes in industry regulations and new
reporting requirements.

c) Significant changes in the financial reporting framework, such as changes in accounting
standards.

d) Other significant relevant developments, such as changes in the legal environment
affecting the entity.

Consider the results of preliminary engagement activities and

where applicable, whether knowledge gained on other
engagements performed by the engagement partner for the

entity is relevant

Considering results of preliminary engagement activities and knowledge gained from similar
engagements goes a long way in establishing sound audit strategy.

Examples are listed as under: - ‘
1) Results of previous audits that involved evaluating the operating effectiveness of internal
control, including the nature of identified deficiencies and action taken to address them.

2) The manner in which the auditor emphasizes to engagement team members the need to
maintain a questioning mind and to exercise professional skepticism in gathering and
evaluating audit evidence.
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Ascertain the nature, timing and extent of resources

necessary to perform the engagement.

1)  Selection of engagement team and assignment of audit work to team members is a significant
factor in establishing overall audit strategy.

2) Experienced team members may be assigned in areas where there is higher risk of material
misstatement.

Similarly, engagement budgeting and devotion of more time to areas of higher risk of material
misstatement are to be kept in mind.

BENEFITS OF OVERALL AUDIT STRATEGY

The process of establishing the overall audit strategy assists the auditor to determine, subject to
the completion of the auditor's risk assessment procedures, such matters as:

a) Employment of Qualitative Resources: The resources to deploy for specific audit areas, such
as the use of appropriately experienced team members for high risk areas or the involvement
of experts on complex matters.

b) Allocation of Quantity of Resources: The amount of resources to allocate to specific audit
areas, such as the number of team members assigned to observe the inventory count at
material locations, the extent of review of other auditors' work in the case of group audits, or
the audit budget in hours to allocate to high risk areas.

¢) Timing of Deployment of Resources: When these resources are to be deployed, such as
whether at aninterim audit stage or at key cut-off dates.

d) Management of Resources: How such resources are managed, directed and supervised, such
as when team briefing and debriefing meetings are expected to be held, how engagement
partner and manager reviews are expected to take place (for example, on -site or off-site),
and whether fo complete engagement quality control reviews.

B) DEVELOPMENT OF AUDIT PLAN

1) Once the overall audit strategy has been established, an audit plan can be developed to
address the various matters identified in the overall audit strategy, taking into account the
heed to achieve the audit objectives through the efficient use of the auditor's resources.

2) Understanding client's business is one of the important principles in developing an audit plan.
Infact, without adequate knowledge of client’s business, a proper audit is not possible. Gaining
knowledge of client's business is, therefore, one of the foremost requirements to develop
audit plan.

3) Description of Audit Plan

The auditor shall develop an audit plan that shall include a description of:
(a) The nature, timing and extent of planned risk assessment procedures, as determined
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under SA 315 "Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement through
Understanding the Entity and Its Environment”.

(b) The nature, timing and extent of planned further audit procedures at the assertion level,
as determined under SA 330 "The Auditor's Responses to Assessed Risks".

(c) Other planned audit procedures that are required to be carried out so that the
. engagement complies with SAs.

4) The auditor plans what type of audit procedures are to be performed, their timing and how
much work should be done taking into account sample size etc.

5) The audit plan is more detailed than the overall audit strategy that includes the nature,
timing and extent of audit procedures to be performed by engagement team members.
Planning for these audit procedures takes place over the course of the audit as the audit
plan for the engagement develops.

6) For example, planning of the auditor's risk assessment procedures occurs early in the audit
process. However, planning the nature, tfiming and extent of specific further audit procedures
depends on the outcome of those risk assessment procedures. In addition, the auditor may
begin the execution of further audit procedures for some classes of transactions, account
balances and disclosures before planning all remaining further audit procedures.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN OVERALL

AUDIT STRATEGY AND AUDIT PLAN

1) Audit strategy sets the broad overall approach to the audit whereas audit plan addresses the
various matters identified in the overall audit strategy.

2) Audit strategy determines scope, timing and direction of audit. Audit plan describes how
strategy is going to be implemented.

3) Theaudit planis more detailed than the overall audit strategy that includes the nature, timing
and extent of audit procedures to be performed by engagement team members.

4) Planning for these audit procedures takes place over the course of the audit as the audit plan
for the engagement develops.

- 5) Once the overall audit strategy has been established, an audit plan can be developed to address
the various matters identified in the overall audit strategy, taking into account the need to
achieve the audit objectives through the ellcient use of the auditor's resources.

6) Theestablishment of the overall audit strategy and the detailed audit plan are not necessarily
discrete or sequential processes, but are closely inter-related since changes in one may result
in consequential changes to the other.
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OVERALL AUDIT STRATEGY AND THE AUDIT PLAN-

THE AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

The overall audit strategy and the audit plan remain the auditor's responsibility. It is the auditor
who is responsible for establishing overall audit strategy and developing audit plan. However, as
discussed earlier, auditor may discuss elements of planning with entity's management without
compromising effectiveness of audit.

NATURE OF AUDIT PLANNING - A CONTINUOUS

AND ITERATIVE PROCESS

1)  Planning is not a discrete phase of an audit, but rather a continual and iterative process that
often begins shortly after (or in connection with) the completion of the previous audit and
continues until the completion of the current audit engagement.

2) Planning, however, includes consideration of the timing of certain activities and audit
procedures that need to be completed prior to the performance of further audit procedures.

3) For example, planning includes the need to consider, prior to the auditor's identification
and assessment of the risks of material misstatement, such matters as:

a) Theanalytical procedures to be applied as risk assessment procedures.

b) Obtaining a general understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to
the entity and how the entity is complying with that framework.

¢) Thedetermination of materiality.

d) Theinvolvement of experts.

e) Theperformance of other risk assessment procedures.

AUDIT PROGRAMME

1) Audit programme is a list of examination and verification steps to be applied and set out in
such a way that the interrelationship of one step to another is clearly shown and designed,
keeping in view the assertions discernible in the statements of account produced for audit or on
the basis of anappraisal of the accounting records of the client.

2) An audit programme consists of a series of verification procedures to be applied to the
financial statements and accounts of a given company for the purpose of obtaining sufficient
evidence to enable the auditor to express an informed opinion on such statements.

3) Inother words, an audit programme is a detailed plan of applying the audit procedures in the
- given circumstances with instructions for the appropriate techniques to be adopted for
accomplishing the audit objectives.
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CONSTRUCTING AN AUDIT PROGRAMME

1) The audit planning ideally commences at the conclusion of the previous year's audit, and along
with the related programme, it should be reconsidered for modification as the audit
progresses. Such consideration is based on the auditor's review of the internal control, his
preliminary evaluation thereof, and the results of his compliance and substantive procedures.

2) While developing an audit programme, the auditor may conclude that relying on certain internal
controlsis an ellective and ellcient way to conduct his audit.

3) However, the auditor may decide not to rely on internal controls when there are other more
efficient ways of obtaining sullcient appropriate audit evidence. The auditor should also
consider the timing of the procedures, the coordination of any assistance expected from the
client, the availability of assistants, and the involvement of other auditors or experts.

4) Further, the auditor normally has flexibility in deciding when to perform audit procedures.
However, in some cases, the auditor may have no discretion as to timing, for example, when
observing the taking of inventories by client personnel or verifying the securities and cash
balances at the year-end.

For the purpose of programme construction, the following points should be kept in mind:
a) Stay within the scope and limitation of the assignment.

b) Prepare a written audit programme setting forth the procedures that are needed to
implement the audit plan.

¢} Determine the evidence reasonably available and identify the best evidence for deriving the
necessary satisfaction.

d) Apply only those steps and procedures which are useful in accomplishing the verification
purpose in the specific situation.

e) Include the audit objectives for each area and sufficient details which serve as a set of
instructions for the assistants involved in audit and help in controlling the proper execution of
the work.

f) Consider all possibilities of error.
5 g) Co-ordinate the procedures tobe applied to relateditems.

AUDIT PROGRAMME- DESIGNED TO PROVIDE AUDIT EVIDENCE

1) As per SA 500 Audit Evidence may be defined as the information used by the auditor in
arriving at the conclusions on which the auditor's opinion is based. Audit evidence includes both
information contained in the accounting records underlying the financial statements and other
information.

2) Evidence is the very basis for formulation of opinion and an audit programme is designed to
provide for that by prescribing procedures and techniques. What is best evidence for testing
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the accuracy of any assertion is amatter of expert knowledge and experience.

3) This is the primary task before the auditor when he draws up the audit programme.
Transactions are varied in nature and impact; procedures to be prescribed depend on prior
knowledge of what evidence is reasonably available in respect of each transaction,

4) An auditor picks up evidence from a variety of fields and it is generally of the following
broad types:

a)  Documentary examination,

b)  Physical examination,

c)  Statementsand explanation of management, officials and employees,
d)  Statementsand explanations of third parties,

e)  Arithmetical calculations by the auditor,

f)  Stateof internal controls and internal checks,

g)  Inter-relationship of the various accounting data,

h)  Subsidiary and memorandum records,

i) Minutes,

J)  Subsequent action by the client and by others.

Example:

(i) Forcashinhand, the best evidence is 'count’

(i)  Forinvestment pledged with a bank, the banker's certificate.

(iii) For verifying assertions about book debts, the client's ledger invoices, debit notes,
credit notes, monthly accounts statement sent to the customers are all evidence: some
of these are corroborative, other being complementary. Inaddition,

(iv) balance confirmation procedure is of ten resorted to, to obtain greater satisfaction about
the reliability of the assertion.

ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF AN AUDIT PROGRAMME

Advantages

The advantages of an audit programme are:

a) Itprovides the assistant carrying out the audit with total and clear set of instructions of the
work generally to be done.

b) Itis essential, particularly for major audits, to provide a total perspective of the work to be
performed.

c) Selection of assistants for the jobs on the basis of capability becomes easier when the work is
rationally planned, defined and segregated.

d) Without a written and pre-determined programme, work is necessari ly to be carried out on
the basis of some 'mental’ plan. In such a situation there is always a danger of ignoring or
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f)

9)
h)

overlooking certain books and records. Under a properly framed programme, the danger is
significantly less and the audit can proceed systematically.

The assistants, by putting their signature on programme, accept the responsibility for the
work carried out by them individually and, if necessary, the work done may be traced back to
the assistant.

The principal can control the progress of the various audits in hand by examination of audit
programmes initiated by the assistants deputed to the jobs for completed work.

It serves as a guide for audits to be carried out in the succeeding year.

A properly drawn up audit programme serves as evidence in the event of any charge of
negligence being brought against the auditor. It may be of considerable value in establishing
that he exercised reasonable skill and care that was expected of professional auditor.

Disadvantages

Some disadvantages are also there in the use of audit programmes but most of these can be
removed by following some concrete steps.

a)

b)

c)

d)

The work may become mechanical and particular parts of the programme may be carried out
without any understanding of the object of such parts in the whole audit scheme.

The programme of ten tends to become rigid and inflexible following set grooves; the business
may change in its operation of conduct, but the old programme may still be carried on. Changes
in staff or internal control may render precaution necessary at points different from those
originally decided upon.

Inefficient assistants may take shelter behind the programme i.e. defend deficiencies in their
work on the ground that no instruction in the matter is contained therein.

A hard and fast audit programme may kill the initiative of efficient and enterprising
assistants.

All these disadvantages may be eliminated by imaginative supervision of the work carried onby the
assistants; the auditor must have a receptive attitude as regards the assistants; the assistants
should be encouraged to observe matters objectively and bring significant matters to the notice of
supervisor / principal.

EVOLVING ONE AUDIT PROGRAMME -

1)

2)

NOT PRACTICABLE FOR ALL BUSINESSES

Businesses vary in nature, size and composition; work which is suitable to one business may not
be suitable to others; efficiency and operation of internal controls and the exact nature of the
service to be rendered by the auditor are the other factors that vary from assignment to
assignment.

Onaccount of such variations, evolving one audit programme applicable to all business under all
circumstances is not practicable.
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3) However, it becomes a hecessity to specify in detail in the audit programme the nature of work
to be done so that no time will be wasted on matters not pertinent to the engagement and any

1)

2)

3)

4)

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)
6)

special matter or any specific situation can be taken care of.

THE ASSISTANT TO KEEP AN OPEN MIND

To start with, an auditor having regard to the nature, size and composition of the business and
the dependability of the internal control and the given scope of work, should frame a
programme which should aim at providing for a minimum essential work which may be termed as
astandard programme.

As experience is gained by actually carrying out the work, the programme may be altered to
take care of situations which were left out originally, but are found relevant for the particular
concern.

Similarly, if any work originally provided for proves beyond doubt to be unnecessary or
irrelevant, it may be dropped. The assistant engaged in the job should be encouraged to keep an
open mind beyond the programme given to him.

He should be instructed to note and report significant matters coming to his notice, to his
seniors or Yo the partners or proprietor of the firm engaged for doing the audit.

PERIODIC REVIEW OF THE AUDIT PROGRAMME

There should be periodic review of the audit programme to assess whether the same continues
to be adequate for obtaining requisite knowledge and evidence about the transactions.

Unless this is done, any change in the business policy of the client may not be adequately known,
and consequently, audit work may be carried on, on the basis of an obsolete programme and, for
this negligence, the whole audit may be held as negligently conducted and the auditor may have
to face legal consequences.

The utility of the audit programme can be retained and enhanced only by keeping the
programme as also the client's operations and internal control under periodic review so that
inadequacies or redundancies of the programme may be removed.

However, as a basic feature, audit programme not only lists the tasks to be carried out but also
contains a few relevant instructions, like the extent of checking, the sampling plan, etc. So
long as the programme is not officially changed by the principal, every assistant deputed on the
Job should unfailingly carry out the detailed work according to the instructions governing the
work.

Many persons believe that this brings an element of rigidity in the audit programme.

This is not true provided the periodic review is undertaken to keep the programme as up-to-
date as possible and by encouraging the assistants on the job to observe all salient features of
the various accounting functions of the client.
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DOCUMENTATION

The auditor shall document:
a) Theoverall audit strategy:;
b) Theaudit plan; and

c) Any significant changes made during the audit engagement to the overall audit strategy or the
audit plan, and the reasons for such changes such changes.

ASPECTS TO BE KEPT IN MIND WHILE

MAINTAINING DOCUMENTATION

1) Record of Key Decisions: The documentation of the overall audit strategy is a record of the
key decisions considered necessary to properly plan the audit and to communicate significant
matters to the engagement feam

2) Record of Nature, Timing and Extent of Risk Assessment Procedures: The documentation of
the audit plan is a record of the planned nature, timing and extent of risk assessment
procedures and further audit procedures at the assertion level in response to the assessed
risks. It also serves as a record of the proper planning of the audit procedures that can be
reviewed and approved prior to their performance. The auditor may use standard audit
programs and/or audit completion checklists, tailored as needed fo reflect the particular
engagement circumstances.

3) Record of reasons for Change in Audit Plans: A record of the significant changes to the overall
audit strategy and the audit plan, and resulting changes to the planned nature, timing and
extent of audit procedures, explains why the significant changes were made, and the overall
strategy and audit plan finally adopted for the audit. It also reflects the appropriate response
o the significant changes occurring during the audit.

CHANGES TO PLANNING DECISIONS DURING

THE COURSE OF THE AUDIT

1) The auditor shall update and change the overall audit strategy and the audit plan as necessary
during the course of the audit.

2) Asaresult of
a) unexpectedevents,
b) changes inconditions, or
c) theauditevidence obtained from the results of audit procedures,

3) the auditor may need to modify the cverall audit strategy and audit plan and thereby the
resulting planned nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures, based on the revised
consideration of assessed risks.
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4) This may be the case when information comes fo the auditor's attention that differs
significantly from the information available when the auditor planned the audit procedures.

5) For example, audit evidence obtained through the performance of substantive procedures may
contradict the audit evidence obtained through tests of controls.

PLANNING SUPERVISION AND REVIEW OF

WORK OF ENGAGEMENT TEAM MEMBERS

1) The auditor shall plan the nature, timing and extent of direction and supervision of
engagement team members and the review of their work.

2) The nature, timing and extent of the direction and supervision of engagement team members
and review of their work vary depending on many factors, including:

a) Thesize and complexity of the entity.
b) The area of the audit.
¢) Theassessed risks of material misstatement

d) The capabilities and competence of the individual team members performing the audit
work.

OTHER IMPORTANT NOTES

Involvement of key engagement team members in planning audit

The engagement partner and other key members of the engagement team shall be involved in
planning the audit including planning and participating in the discussion among engagement team
members. The involvement of the engagement partner and other key members of the engagement
team in planning the audit draws on their experience and insight, thereby enhancing the
effectiveness and efficiency of the planning process.

Discussion of elements of planning with entity's management

The auditor may decide to discuss elements of planning with the entity's management to facilitate
the conduct and management of the audit engagement. When discussing matters included in the
overall audit strategy or audit plan, care is required in order not to compromise the effectiveness of
the audit.
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Identifying and Assessing the Risk of Material
SA 215  misstatement Through Understanding the Entity
and its Environment

Introduction to As per SA 315 - “Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material
SA 315 Misstatement through Understanding the Entity and its Environment”,
the objective of the auditor is to identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, at the financial statement
and assertion levels, through understanding the entity and its
environment, including the entity's internal control, thereby providing a
basis for designing and implementing responses to the assessed risks of
material misstatement.

This will help the auditor to reduce the risk of material misstatement to
anacceptably low level.

Risk Assessment | 1) The qudit procedures performed to obtain an understanding of the

Procedures and entity and its environment, including the entity's internal control, to
Related Activities identify and assess the risks of material misstatement, whether due
[Refer Note 1] to fraud or error, at the financial statement and assertion level are

defined as risk assessment procedures.
2) Therisk assessment procedures shall include the following:
a) Inquiries of management, and of others within the entity
b) Analytical procedures.
¢) Observation and inspection.

3) The auditor shall consider whether information obtained from the
auditor's client acceptance or continuance process is relevant to
identifying risks of material misstatement.

4) Where engagement partner has performed other engagements for
the entity, consider whether information obtained is relevant to
identifying risks of material misstatement.

5) If auditor uses his previous experience, consider if changes have
occurred since the previous audit.

6) The engagement partner and other key engagement team members
shall discuss the susceptibility of the entity's financial statements
to material misstatement.

7) Risk assessment procedures by themselves, however, do not provide
sufficient appropriate audit evidence on which to base the audit
opinion.
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The Required
Understanding of
the Entity and Its
Environment,
Including the
Entity's Internal
Control

[Refer Note 2]

The auditor shall obtain an understanding of the following:

1) Relevant industry, regulatory, and other external factors including
AFRF

2) Thenature of the entity, including: -
a) its operations:
b) its ownership and governance structures;
c) the types of investments; and
d) the way that the entity is structured and how it is financed:

3) Theentity's selection and application of accounting policies, including
the reasons for changes thereto.

4) The entity's objectives and strategies, and those related business

risks that may result in risks of material misstatement.
5) Themeasurement and review of the entity's financial performance.

Objective of
the Auditor

The objective of the auditor as stated in SA 315 is to identify and assess
the risks of material misstatement.

The auditor shall identify and assess the risks of material misstatement

at:

a) The financial statement level; and

b) The assertion level for classes of transactions, account balances, and
disclosures;

To provide a basis for designing and performing further audit procedures.

For this purpose, the auditor shall:

a) Identify risks throughout the process of obtaining an understanding
of the entity and its environment, including relevant controls that
relate to the risks, and by considering the classes of transactions,
account balances, and disclosures in the financial statements

b) Assess the identified risks, and evaluate whether they relate more
pervasively to the financial statements as a whole and potentially
affect many assertions

c) Relate the identified risks to what can go wrong at the assertion level,
taking account of relevant controls that the auditor intends to test and

d) Consider the likelihood of misstatement, including the possibility of
multiple misstatements, and whether the potential misstatement is of
amaghitude that could result ina material misstatement.
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Information 1) Information obtained by performing risk assessment procedures and
obtained by related activities may be used by the auditor as audit evidence to
performing risk support assessments of the risks of material misstatement.

assessment 2) In addition, the auditor may obtain audit evidence about classes of
procedures - transactions, account balances, or disclosures and related assertions
Us-ed as audit and about the operating effectiveness of controls, even though such
evidence procedures were not specifically planned as substantive procedures or

as tests of controls.

3) The auditor also may choose to perform substantive procedures or
tests of controls concurrently with risk assessment procedures
because it is efficient to do so.

Why understanding| 1) Understanding the entity and the environment in which it operates is

the entity and its very signiﬁcqnf.

environment is 2) It helps the auditor in planning the audit and in identifying areas

significant? requiring special attention. Gaining knowledge about client's business
is one of the important principles in developing an overall audit plan.

3) In fact, without adequate knowledge of client's business, a proper

audit is not possible.

Risks that Require
Special Audit

In exercising judgment as to which risks are significant risks, the auditor
shall consider the following:

Consideration a) Whether the riskis arisk of fraud:
b) Whether the risk is related to recent significant economic,
accounting, or other developments;
c) Thecomplexity of transactions;
d) Whether the risk involves significant transactions with related
parties;
e) The degree of subjectivity in the measurement of financial
information; and
f) Whether the risk involves significant unusual transactions.
Risks for which | oy gych risks may relate to the ihaccurate or incomplete recording of
Substantive routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the
Procedures alone characteristics of which often permit highly automated processing
do Not Provide with little or no manual intervention.
Sufficient b) Insuch cases, the entity's controls over such risks are relevant to the

Appropriate Audit
Evidence

audit and the auditor shall obtain anunderstanding of them.
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Material The auditor shall communicate material weaknesses in internal control
Weakness in identified during the audit on a timely basis to management at dn
Internal Control | appropriate level of responsibility, and, as required by SA 260 & 265.

A) Inquiries of Management and Others Within the Entity:

Much of the information obtained by the auditor's inquiries is obtained from management and those
responsible for financial reporting. However, the auditor may also obtain information, or a dillerent
perspective in identifying risks of material misstatement, through inquiries of others within the
entity and other employees with dillerent levels of authority.

Example:

a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

b)

Inquiries directed foward internal audit personnel may provide information about internal audit
procedures performed during the year relating to the design and effectiveness of the entity's
internal control and whether management has satisfactorily responded to findings from those
procedures.

Inquiries of employees involved in initiating, processing or recording complex or unusual
Transactions may help the auditor to evaluate the appropriateness of the selection and
application of certain accounting policies.

Inquiries directed foward in-house legal counsel may provide information about such matters as
litigation, compliance with laws and regulations, knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the entity, warranties, post-sales obligations, arrangements (such as joint ventures)
with business partners and the meaning of contract.

Inquiries directed towards marketing or sales personnel may provide information about
changes in the entity's marketing strategies, sales trends, or contractual arrangements with
its customers.

Inquiries directed to the risk management function (or those performing such roles) may
provide information about operational and regulatory risks that may affect financial reporting.

Inquiries directed to information systems personnel may provide information about system
changes, system or control failures, or other information system- related risks.

B) Analytical Procedures:

Analytical procedures performed as risk assessment procedures may identify aspects of the
entity of which the auditor was unaware and may assist in assessing the risks of material
misstatement in order to provide a basis for designing and implementing responses to the
assessed risks.

Analytical procedures performed as risk assessment procedures may include both financial
and non-financial information, for example, the relationship between sales and square
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footage of selling space or volume of goods sold.

¢) Anadlytical procedures may help identify the existence of unusual transactions or events, and
amounts, ratios, and trends that might indicate matters that have audit implications. Unusual or
unexpected relationships that are identified may assist the auditor in identifying risks of
material misstatement, especially risks of material misstatement due to fraud.

d) However, when such analytical procedures use data aggregated at a high level (which may be
the situation with analytical procedures performed as risk assessment procedures), the results
of those analytical procedures only provide a broad initial indication about whether a material
misstatement may exist.

e) Accordingly, in such cases, consideration of other information that has been gathered when
identifying the risks of material misstatement together with the results of such analytical
procedures may assist the auditor inunderstanding and evaluating the results of the analytical
procedures.

C) Observation and Inspection:

Observation and inspection may support inquiries of management and others and may also provide
information about the entity and its environment.

Examples of such audit procedures include observation or inspection of the following:
a) Theentity's operations
b) Documents (such as business plans and strategies), records, and internal control manuals

c) Reports prepared by management (such as quarterly management reports and interim financial
statements) and those charged with governance (such as minutes of board of directors'
meetings)

d) Theentity's premises and plant facilities.

" NOTE 2 - UNDERSTANDING THE ENTITY AND ITS ENVIRONMENT

As per SA-315, "Identifying and Assessing the Risk of Material Misstatement through
Understanding the Entity and Its Environment”, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the
following:

A) Relevant industry, regulatory and other external factors
including the applicable financial reporting framework.

1) Relevant industry factors include industry conditions such as the competitive environment,
supplier and customer relationships, and technological developments. Examples of matters the
auditor may consider include

a) marketand competition,
b) whether entity is engaged in seasonal activities,

@ www.ekatvamacademy.com
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2)

3)

4)

5)

1)

2)

3)

c) product technology relating to the entity's products.

The industry in which the entity operates may give rise to specific risks of material
misstatement arising from the nature of the business or the degree of regulation. Relevant
regulatory factors include the regulatory environment.

The regulatory environment includes, among other matters, the applicable financial reporting
framework and the legal and political environment.

Examples of matters the auditor may consider include
a) accounting principles and industry specific practices,
b) regulatory framework for aregulated industry,

c¢) legislation and regulation that significantly affect the entity's operations, including
direct supervisory activities, taxation,

d) government policies currently affecting the conduct of the entity's business,
environmental requirements affecting the industry and the entity's business.

Examples of other external factors affecting the entity that the auditor may consider
include

a) thegeneral economic conditions,
b) interestratesand availability of financing, and inflation etc.

B) The nature of the entity, including:

its operations;

its ownership and governance structures;

the types of investments that the entity is making and plans to make, including investments in
special-purpose entities; and

the way that the entity is structured and how it is financed; to enable the auditor to
understand the classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures to be expected in
the financial statements.

An understanding of nature of entity enables the auditor to understand whether entity has a
complex structure for example, whether it has subsidiaries. Complex structures often
introduce issues that may give rise to risks of material misstatement.

It also helps inunderstanding matters relating to the ownership, and relations between owners
and other people or entities. This understanding assists in determining whether related party
transactions have been identified and accounted for appropriately.

Examples of matters that the auditor may consider while obtaining understanding of nature
of entity include:

a) Business operations such as nature of revenue sources, products or services, conduct of
operations, location of production facilities, key customers and suppliers of goods and
services

b) Investmentand investment activities such as capital investment activities and planned or
recently executed acquisitions
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¢) Financing and financing activities such as major subsidiaries, debt structure etc.
d) Financial reporting such as accounting principles and revenue recognition practices

C) The entity's selection and application of accounting policies,

including the reasons for changes thereto.

The auditor shall evaluate whether the entity's accounting policies are appropriate for its business
and consistent with the applicable financial reporting framework and accounting policies used in the
relevant industry.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

1)

D) The entity's objectives and strategies, and those related
business risks that may result in risks of material misstatement.

The entity conducts its business in the context of industry, regulatory and other internal and
external factors. To respond to these factors, the entity's management define objectives,
which are the overall plans for the entity. Strategies are the approaches by which management
intends fo achieve its objectives.

The entity's objectives and strategies may change over time. Business risk is broader than the
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, though it includes the latter.
Business risk may arise from change or complexity.

Anunderstanding of the business risks facing the entity increases the likelihood of identifying
risks of material misstatement, since most business risks will eventually have financial
consequences and, therefore, aneffect on the financial statements.

However, the auditor does not have a responsibility to identify or assess all business risks

because not all business risks give rise to risks of material misstatement.

Examples of matters that the auditor may consider when obtaining an understanding of the

entity's objectives, strategies and related business risks that may result in a risk of material

misstatement of the financial statements include: -

a) Industry developments (a potential related business risk might be, for example, that the
entity does not have the personnel or expertise to deal with the changes in the industry).

b) New products and services (a potential related business risk might be, for example, that
thereisincreased product liability).

¢) Expansion of the business (a potential related business risk might be, for example, that
the demand has not been accurately estimated).

E) The measurement and review of the entity's financial
performance.

Management and others will measure and review those things they regard as important.
Performance measures, whether external or internal, create pressures on the entity. These
pressures, in turn, may motivate management to take action to improve the business
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performance or to misstate the financial statements.

2) Accordingly, an understanding of the entity's performance measures assists the auditor in
considering whether pressures to achieve performance targets may result in management
actions that increase the risks of material misstatement, including those due to fraud.

3) Examples for measuring and reviewing financial performance which may be used by an
auditor may include: -

a) Key performance indicators (financial and non-financial) and key ratios, trends and
operating statistics.

b) Period-on-period financial performance analyses.

c) Budgets, forecasts, variance analyses, and departmental or other level performance
reports.

d) Credit rating agency reports

NOTE 3 - UNDERSTANDING OF THE ENTITY- A CONTINUOUS PROCESS

1) Obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including the entity's internal
control (referred to hereafter as an "understanding of the entity"), is a continuous, dynamic
process of gathering, updating and analysing information throughout the audit.

2) The understanding establishes a frame of reference within which the auditor plans the audit
and exercises professional judgment throughout the audit, for example, when:

a) Assessingrisks of material misstatement of the financial statements;
b) Determining materiality inaccordance with SA 320;
c) Considering the appropriateness of the selection and application of accounting policies;

d) Identifying areas where special audit consideration may be necessary, for example,
related party transactions, the appropriateness of management's use of the going
concernassumption, or considering the business purpose of transactions;

e) Developing expectations for use when performing analytical procedures;

f) Evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of audit evidence obtained, such as the
appropriateness of assumptions and of management's oral and written representations.

NOTE 4 - DOCUMENTING THE RISK

a) Thediscussion among the engagement team and the significant decisions reached;

b) Keyelements of the understanding obtained regarding each of the aspects of the entity and its
environment and of each of the internal control components, the sources of information from
which the understanding was obtained:; and the risk assessment procedures performed;

¢) The identified and assessed risks of material misstatement at the financial statement level
and at the assertion level; and
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d) The risks identified, and related controls about which the auditor has obtained an
understanding
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INTRODUCTION TO AUDIT RISK

1) Audit risk means the risk that the auditor gives an inappropriate audit opinion when the
financial statements are materially misstated.

2) It means that an auditor expresses an unmodified opinion when financial statements are
materially misstated.

3) 1In such a case, not only reputation of auditor would be damaged, but he could also invite
regulatory action from professional body and could face probable legal action by intended
users.

4) To avoid such unpleasant consequences, the auditor will plan and perform the audit in such a

way that audit risk is reduced to an acceptably low level. SA-200 states that the auditor
shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to reduce audit risk to an acceptably low level
and thereby enable the auditor to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the auditor's
opinion.
Consider, for example, that profits of a company have been increased artificially by showing
fake revenues of sizeable amounts in its financial statements. In such a case, fihancial
statements are materially misstated. The probability, that auditor in such a case, expresses an
inappropriate audit opinion is referred to as audit risk. It is the possibility that auditor
expresses anunmodified opinion even when financial statements are materially misstated.

5) Audit riskis a function of the risks of material misstatement and detection risk.

RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

SA 200 states that risk of material statement is the risk that the financial statements are
materially misstated prior to audit. It simply means that there is a probability of frauds or errors in
financial statements before audit

What is meant by Misstatement:

Misstatement refers to a difference between the amount, classification, presentation, or
disclosure of a reported financial statement item and the amount, classification, presentation, or
disclosure that is required for the item to be in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework. Misstatements can arise from error or fraud.

Few examples of misstatements could be:

1) Charging of anitem of capital expenditure to revenue or vice-versa

2) Difference in disclosure of a financial statement item vis-a-vis its requirement in applicable
financial reporting framework

3) Selectionor application of inappropriate accounting policies
4) Difference inaccounting estimate of a financial statement item vis-a-vis its appropriateness in
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applicable financial reporting framework
5) Intentional booking of fake expenses instatement of profit and loss
6) Overstating of receivables in financial statements by not writing of f irrecoverable debts
7) Overstating or understating inventories

The risks of material misstatement may exist at two levels:
a) The overall financial statement level
b) The assertion level for classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures.

Risks of material misstatement at the overall financial statement level refer to risks of material
misstatement that relate pervasively to the financial statements as a whole and potentially affect
many assertions.

Risks of material misstatement at the assertion level are assessed in order to determine the
nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence. This evidence enables the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements
at anacceptably low level of audit risk.

- COMPONENTS OF RISK OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT:

The risks of material misstatement at the assertion level consist of two components:
a) Inherentrisk
b) Control risk

Both inherent risk and control risk are the entity's risks and they exist independently of the audit
of financial statements. Inherent risk and control risk are influenced by the client. These are
entity's risks and are not influenced by the auditor.

Inherent risk:

1) Inherent risk is the susceptibility of an assertion about a class of transaction, account

balance or disclosure to a misstatement that could be material, either individually or when

' aggregated with other misstatements before consideration of any related controls as
described in SA-200.

2) There is always a risk that before considering any existence of internal control in an entity, a
particular fransaction, balance of an account or a disclosure required to be made in the financial
statements of an entity have a chance of being misstated and such misstatement can be
material. This risk is known as inherent risk.

3) Inherent risk is higher for some assertions and related classes of transactions, account
balances, and disclosures than for others. For example, it may be higher for complex
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5)

6)

7)

8)

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

calculations.

Inherent risk factors are considered while designing tests of controls and substantive
procedures. Category of auditor's assessment lower or higher, each category covers a range
of degrees of inherent risk.

Auditor may assess the inherent risk of two different assertions as lower while recognizing
that one assertion has less inherent risk than the other, although both have been assessed as
lower.

It is important to consider the reason for each identified inherent risk even if the risk is lower,
when auditor designs tests of controls and substantive procedures.

External circumstances giving rise to business risks may also influence inherent risk. For
example, technological developments might make a particular product obsolete. Factors in the
entity and its environment may also influence the inherent risk related to a specific assertion.

Few examples of inherent risks could include:

a) An accounting standard provides guidance on some complex issue which might not be
understood by the management. Therefore, recording of this issue in financial statements
carries inherent risk of being misstated.

b) There are large number of business failures in an industry. Therefore, assertions in
financial statements of an entity operating in such an industry carry an inherent risk of
being misstated.

Control risk

Control risk in accordance with SA-200, control risk is the risk that a misstatement that could
occur in an assertion about a class of transaction, account balance or disclosure and that
could be material, either individually or when aggregated with other misstatements, will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis by the entity's internal control.

Control risk is a risk that internal control existing and operating in an entity would not be
efficient enough to stop from happening, or find and then rectify in an appropriate time, any
material misstatement relating to a transaction, balance of an account or disclosure required to
be made in the financial statements of that entity.

Therefore, in a way, it can be said that there exists an inverse relation between control risk
and efficiency of internal control of anentity.

When efficiency of internal control of an entity is high, the control risk is low and when
efficiency of internal control of that entity is low, the control risk s high.

Examples of control risk could include:

a) A company has devised control that cash and cheque books should be kept in a locked safe

and access is granted to authorized personnel only. There is risk that control is not being
followed.

b) Anentity has devised a control that fire extinguishers and smoke detectors are in place
and are in working condition at all fimes to reduce the risk of damage to inventories caused
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1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

by fire. There is a risk that fire extinguishers in place are expired and are not being
refilled. Similarly, there is a possibility that smoke detectors are not working.

c) A company has devised a control relating to petty cash that items of expenditure of only
less than X 10000 should be routed through imprest system of petty cash. There is a risk
that control is not being followed.

Detection risk

SA 200 defines detection risk as the risk that the procedures performed by the auditor to
reduce audit risk to an acceptably low level will not detect a misstatement that exists and that
could be material, either individually or when aggregated with other misstatements.

For example, auditor of a company uses certain audit procedures for the purpose of obtaining
audit evidence and reducing audit risk, but still there will remain a risk that audit procedures
used by the auditor may not be able to detect a misstatement which by nature is material, then
that risk is known as detectionRisk.

Detection risk comprises sampling and non-sampling risk.

a) Sampling risk is the risk that the auditor's conclusion based on a sample may be different
from the conclusion if the entire population were subjected to the same audit procedure.
It simply means that the sample was not representative of the population from which it
was chosen.

b) Non-sampling risk is the risk that the auditor reaches an erroneous conclusion for any
reason not related to sampling risk. Like an auditor may reach an erroneous conclusion due
toapplication to some inappropriate audit procedure.

Examples of detection risk could include:

a) Sizeable work-in-progress inventories are expected in financial statements of a company.
However, auditor of the company does not devote time to attending inventory count.
Instead, he chooses torely upon alternative audit procedures.

b) The auditor of a company has audited revenue of a company by taking a sample. However'
there is arisk that sample of revenue is not representative of overall revenue.

The auditor can only influence detection risk. Inherent risk and control risk belong to the
entity and are influenced by the entity. Therefore, auditor must reduce detection risk in order
to keep audit risk at low level.

Detection risk may be reduced by increasing area of checking, testing larger samples and by
including competent and experienced persons in the engagement team.

7507545.533 1 @ WWW. ekaTvamacademy com )




CA Rishabh Jain :' SA 300 Series

AUDIT RISK - WHAT IS NOT INCLUDED?

1) Audit risk is a technical term related to the process of auditing; it does not refer to the
auditor's business risks such as

a) lossfrom litigation,
b) adversepublicity,or
c) othereventsarising in connectionwith the audit of financial statements.
2) Forthe purpose of the SA's audit risk does not include the risk that the auditor might express

an opinion that the financial statements are materially misstated when they are not. This risk is
ordinarily insignificant.

ASSESSMENT OF RISKS- A MATTER OF PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT

1) Audit risk is a function of the risks of material misstatement and detection risk. The
assessment of risks is based on audit procedures to obtain information necessary for that
purpose and evidence obtained throughout the audit.

2) Theassessment of risks is a matter of professional judgment, rather than a matter capable of
precise measurement.

3) The distinguishing feature of the professional judgment expected of an auditor is that it is
exercised by an auditor whose training, knowledge and experience have assisted in
developing the necessary competencies to achieve reasonable judgments.

COMBINED ASSESSMENT OF THE RISK OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

1) Standards on auditing do not ordinarily refer to inherent risk and control risk separately, but
rather to a combined assessment of the “risks of material misstatement".

2) However, the auditor may make separate or combined assessments of inherent and control
risk depending on preferred audit techniques or methodologies and practical considerations.

3). The assessment of the risks of material misstatement may expressed in quantitative terms,
suchas inpercentages, or in non-quantitative terms.

4) Inany case, the need for the auditor to make appropriate risk assessments is more important
than the different approaches by which they may be made.

5) Itcanbe concluded from the above that:

Audit Risk = Risk of Material Misstatement x Detection Risk ------ 1)

Risk of Material Misstatement= Inherent Risk x Control Risk ------ (2)
From (1) and (2)
Audit Risk = Inherent Risk x Control Risk x Detection Risk
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ILLUSTRATION:

XYZ Ltd is engaged in the business and running several stores dealing in variety of items such as
readymade garments for all seasons, shoes, gift items, watches etc. There are security tags on
each and every item. Moreover, inventory records are physically verified on monthly basis.

Discuss the types of inherent, control and detection risks as perceived by the auditor.
SOLUTION:

1) Inherent Risk: Because items may have been misappropriated by employees, therefore, risk to
the auditor is that inventory records would be inaccurate.

2) Control Risk: There is a security tag on each item displayed. Moreover, inventory records are
physically verified on monthly basis. Despite various controls being implemented at the stores,
still collusion among employees may be there and risk to auditor would again be that inventory
records would be inaccurate,

3) Detection Risk: Auditor checks the ellciency and ellectiveness of various control systems in
place. He would do that by making observation, inspection, enquiry, etc. In addition to these,
the auditor would also employ sampling techniques to check few sales transactions from
beginning to end. However, despite all these procedures, the auditor may not detect the items
which have been stolen or misappropriated.
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1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

1)

2)

3)

Performing an Audit

WHAT IS MEANT BY MATERTALITY?

SA 320 Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit states that misstatements, including
omissions, are considered fo be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

The objective of an independent auditor is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, thereby enabling the auditor to express an opinion on whether the financial
statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with an applicable financial
reporting framework.

Herein, lies the significance of materiality. The auditor has to obtain reasonable assurance
that financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud
orerror.

As a result, an audit strives to identify significant risks of material misstatement and audit
procedures are geared towards it.

Materiality is not always a matter of relative size. For example, a small amount lost by
fraudulent practices of certain employees can indicate a serious flaw in the enterprise's
internal control system requiring immediate attention to avoid greater losses in future.

MATERIALITY IN PLANNING AND PERFORMING AN AUDIT-

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

The concept of materiality is applied by the auditor both in planning and performing the audit,
and in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and of uncorrected
misstatements, if any, on the financial statements and in forming the opinion in the auditor's
report.

SA 320 deals with auditor's responsibility to apply the concept of materiality in planning and
performing an audit of financial statements.

Financial reporting frameworks of ten discuss the concept of materiality in the context of the
preparation and presentation of financial statements. Although financial reporting
frameworks may discuss materiality in dif ferent terms, they generally explain that:

a) Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or
in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users takenon the basis of the financial statements;

b) Judgments about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances, and are
affected by the size or nature of amisstatement, or a combination of both; and
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4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

c) Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are
based ona consideration of the common financial information needs of users as agroup.

d) The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary
widely, is not considered.

Such a discussion, if present in the applicable financial reporting framework, provides a frame
of reference to the auditor in determining materiality for the audit. If the applicable financial
reporting framework does not include a discussion of the concept of materiality, the
characteristics referred to above provide the auditor with such a frame of reference.

Inplanning the audit, the auditor makes judgments about the size of misstatements that will be
considered material. These judgments provide a basis for:

a) Determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures;
b) Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement; and
c) Determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

The materiality determined when planning the audit does not necessarily establish an amount
below which uncorrected misstatements, individually or in aggregate, will always be evaluated
as immaterial.

The circumstances related to some misstatements may cause the auditor to evaluate them as
material evenif they are below materiality.

Although, it is not practicable fo design audit procedures to detect misstatements that could
be material solely because of their nature, the auditor considers not only the size but also the
nature of uncorrected misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence,
when evaluating their effect on the financial statements.

The auditor has fo apply his professional judgement in determining materiality, choosing
appropriate benchmark and determining level of benchmark, Materiality forms the basis for
determination of audit scope and the levels of testing the transactions.

While judging materiality, the significance of an item has to be viewed from different
perspectives. Materiality of anitem may be judged by considering the impact on the profit and
loss, or on the balance sheet, or in the total of the category of expenditure or income to which
it pertains, and on its comparison with the corresponding figure for the previous year.

If there is any statutory requirement of disclosure, it is to be considered material irrespective
of the value of amount. Examples are given below:

a)

b)

As per Division I of schedule IIT of Companies Act, 2013, any item of income or expenditure
which exceeds one percent of the revenue from operations or % 1,00,000, whichever is higher,
needs to be disclosed separately.

A company should disclose in notes fo accounts, shares in the company held by each shareholder
holding more than 5 per cent shares specifying the number of shares held as per requirements
of Division I of Schedule III of Companies Act,2013.
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DETERMINATION OF MATERIALITY-

A MATTER OF PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT

The auditor's determination of materiality is a matter of professional judgment, and is affected
by the auditor's perception of the financial information needs of users of the financial statements.
Inthis context, it is reasonable for the auditor to assume that users:

a) Have a reasonable knowledge of business and economic activities and accounting and a
willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

b) Understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of
materiality;

c) Recognize the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of
estimates, judgment and the consideration of future events; and

d) Make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial
statements.

PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY

1) Practically, it is difficult for auditors to design tests to identify individual misstatements. It
is likely that misstatements are material in aggregate. It takes us to the concept of
“performance materiality."

2) Performance materiality means the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than
materiality for the financial statements as a whole to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds
materiality for the financial statements as awhole.

3) If applicable, performance materiality also refers to the amount or amounts set by the
auditor at less than the materiality level or levels for particular classes of transactions,
account balances or disclosures.

4) Performance materiality is set at a value lower than overall materiality. It lowers the risk
that auditor will not be able to identify misstatements that are material when added together.

DETERMINING MATERIALITY AND PERFORMANCE

MATERIALITY WHEN PLANNING THE AUDIT

1) When establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor shall determine materiality for the
financial statements asawhole.

2) If, in the specific circumstances of the entity, there is one or more particular classes of
fransactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than
the materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements, the
auditor shall also determine the materiality level or levels to be applied to those particular
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures.
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USE OF BENCHMARKS IN DETERMINING MATERIALITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS A WHOLE

Factors that may affect identification of an appropriate benchmark
a) Theelements of the financial statements like assets, liabilities, equity, revenue, expenses

b) Whether there are items on which the attention of the users of the entity's Financial
statements tends to be focused

For Example, for the purpose of evaluating financial performance user may tend to focus on
profit, revenue or net asset.

c) Thenature of the entity, where the entity is at in its life cycle, and the industry and economic
environment inwhich the entity operates;

d) Theentity's ownership structure and the way it is financed
e) Therelative volatility of the benchmark.

EXAMPLES OF BENCHMARKS

Examples that may be appropriate, depending on the circumstances of the entity, include
categories of reported income such as:

a) Profit Before Tax,

b) Total Revenue,

c) 6rossProfit and Total Expenses,
d) Total Equity or Net Asset Value.

Profit before tax from continuing operations is of ten used for profit-oriented entities. When profit
before tax from continuing operations is volatile, other benchmarks may be more appropriate,
such as gross profit or total revenues.

' CHOSEN BENCHMARK - RELEVANT FINANCIAL DATA

In relation to the chosen benchmark, relevant financial data ordinarily includes -
a) Prior periods' financial results and financial positions,

b) The period to-date financial results and financial position, and

c) Budgets or forecasts for the current period,

d) Adjusted for significant changes in the circumstances of the entity (for example, a significant
business acquisition) and relevant changes of conditions in the industry or economic
environment inwhich the entity operates.
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DETERMINING A PERCENTAGE TO BE APPLIED TO A CHOSEN
BENCHMARK INVOLVES THE EXERCISE OF PROFESSIONAL

JUDGMENT

There is a relationship between the percentage and the chosen benchmark, such that a percentage
applied to profit before tax from continuing operations will normally be higher than a percentage
applied to total revenue.

. Examples:

The auditor may consider five percent of profit before tax from continuing operations to be
appropriate for a profit-oriented entity inamanufacturing industry, while the auditor may consider
one percent of total revenue or total expenses fo be appropriate for a not-for-profit entity. Higher
or lower percentages, however, may be deemed appropriate in dif ferent circumstances.

MATERIALITY LEVEL OR LEVELS FOR PARTICULAR CLASSES OF

TRANSACTIONS, ACCOUNT BALANCES OR DISCLOSURES

Factors that may indicate the existence of one or more particular classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the
financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements include the following:

1) Whether law, regulations or the applicable financial reporting framework affect users'
expectations regarding the measurement or disclosure of certainitems.

Example:

Related party transactions, and the remuneration of management and those charged with
governance.

2) Thekey disclosures inrelation to the industry inwhich the entity operates.
Example:
Research and development costs for a pharmaceutical company.

3) Whether attention is focused on a particular aspect of the entity's business that is
separately disclosed in the financial statements.

Example:
A newly acquired business.

REVISION IN MATERIALITY LEVEL AS THE AUDIT PROGRESSES

1) Materiality for the financial statements as a whole (and, if applicable, the materiality level or
levels for particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures) may need to be
revised as a result of a change in circumstances that occurred during the audit (for example, a
decision Yo dispose of amajor part of the entity's business), new information, or a change in the
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auditor’s understanding of the entity and its operations as a result of performing further audit
procedures.

2) If during the audit it appears as though actual financial results are likely to be substantially
different from the anticipated period end financial results that were used initially to
determine materiality for the financial statements as a whole, the auditor revises that
materiality.

3) If the auditor concludes that a lower materiality for the financial statements as a whole than
that initially determined is appropriate, the auditor shall determine whether it is necessary to
revise performance materiality, and whether the nature, timing and extent of the further
audit procedures remain appropriate.

DOCUMENTING THE MATERIALITY

The audit documentation shall include the following amounts and the factors considered in their
determination:

a) Materiality for the financial statements as a whole;

b) If applicable, the materiality level or levels for particular classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures;

¢) Performance materiality; and
d) Any revision of (a)-(c) as the audit progressed

MATERIALITY AND AUDIT RISK

1) The concept of materiality is applied by the auditor both in planning and performing the audit,
and in evaluating the ellect of identified misstatements on the audit and of uncorrected
misstatements, if any, on the financial statements and in forming the opinion in the auditor's
report.

2) In conducting an audit of financial statements, the overall objectives of the auditor are to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, thereby enabling the auditor to
express an opinion on whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with an applicable financial reporting framework; and to report on the financial
statements, and communicate as required by the SAs, in accordance with the auditor's
findings.

3) The auditor obtfains reasonable assurance by obtaining sullcient appropriate audit evidence to
reduce audit risk to an acceptably low level.

4) Audit risk is the risk that the auditor expresses an inappropriate audit opinion when the
financial statements are materially misstated.

5) Audit riskis afunction of the risks of material misstatement and detection risk.
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6) Materiality and audit risk are considered throughout the audit, in particular, when:
a) Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement;
b) Determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures; and

¢) Evaluating the ellect of uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements
and in forming the opinion in the auditor's report.

Practical Insight into Materiality Working Paper

XYZ Private Ltd.
A: for the year ended March 31, 2009

Materiality Type

(Amounts in Indian rupees) Pre Audit Post Audit
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 5,13,68,600 4,99,87,816
Planning Materiality (PM) 25,68,430 24,99,391

Based on 5 % of PBT for the year ended March 31, 2009

Tolerable Error (TE) 50 % of Planning Materiality 12,84,215 12,49,695

Cut-off for posting to Summary of Audit Differences (SAD) 5 % of Planning Materialit 1,28,422 1,24,970

The materiality level at the planning stage was based on first cut financials for the year ended March 31, 2009. As the
materiality levels are not significantly different from the ones identified at the planning stage, we have kept the
materiality levels unchanged.

How to determine the measurement basis for PM

Perspectives and expectations of users of the financial statemants

Earnings based

]

H Normalized earning

w
] 8 Em Activity based Capital based

EBITDA Revenues Equity
\ Gross margin Operating expenses Assets
Not for profit

Break-even or loss making

]

Startup

Consider industry, financing and other characteristics

Characteristics of the equity
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The Auditor's Responses
SA 330 to Assessed Risks

SA 330- The auditor's responses to assessed risks deals with the auditor's responsibility to
design and implement responses to the risks of material misstatement identified and assessed by
the auditor in accordance with SA 315, “Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material
Misstatement Through Understanding the Entity and Its Environment” in a financial statement
audit.

| ~ OBJECTIVE _ |

The objective of the auditor is to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the assessed
risks of material misstatement, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to
those risks.

SA 330states that: -

a) The auditor shall design and implement overall responses to address the assessed risks of
material misstatement atf the financial statement level.

b) The auditor shall design and perform further audit procedures whose nature, timing and
extent are based on and are responsive to the assessed risks of material misstatement at the
assertion level.

In designing the further audit procedures to be performed, the auditor shall:

1) Consider the reasons for the assessment given to the risk of material misstatement at the
assertion level for each class of transactions, account balance, and disclosure, including:

a) The likelihood of material misstatement due to the particular characteristics of the
relevant class of transactions, account balance, or disclosure (i.e., the inherent risk); and

b) Whether the risk assessment takes into account the relevant controls (i.e:, the control
risk), thereby requiring the auditor to obtain audit evidence to determine whether the
controls are operating effectively (i.e., the auditor intends to rely on the operating
effectiveness of controls in determining the nature, timing and extent of substantive
procedures); and

2) Obtain more persuasive audit evidence the higher the auditor's assessment of risk.

The auditor shall design and perform tests of controls to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as to the operating effectiveness of relevant controls when:

1) The auditor's assessment of risks of material misstatement at the assertion level includes an
expectation that the controls are operating effectively (i.e., the auditor intends to rely on the
operating effectiveness of controls in determining the nature, timing and extent of
substantive procedures); or
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2)

3)

4)

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Substantive procedures alone cannot provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence at the
assertion level,

In designing and performing tests of controls, the auditor shall obtain more persuasive audit
evidence the greater the reliance the auditor places on the effectiveness of a control.

A higher level of assurance may be sought about the operating effectiveness of controls when
the approach adopted consists primarily of tests of contrels, in particular, where it is not
possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive
procedures.

NATURE AND EXTENT OF TEST OF CONTROLS

Indesigning and performing test of controls, the auditor shall:
a) Perform other audit procedures in combination with inquiry to obtain audit evidence
about the operating effectiveness of the controls, including:
(i) How the controls were applied at relevant times during the period under audit.
(i) Theconsistency with which they were applied.
(iii) By whom or by what means they were applied.
b) Determine whether the controls to be tested depend upon other controls (indirect

controls), and if so, whether it is necessary to obtain audit evidence supporting the
effective operation of those indirect controls.

Inquiry alone is not sufficient to test the operating effectiveness of controls. Accordingly,
other audit procedures are performed in combination with inquiry.

Inthis regard, inquiry combined with inspection or reperformance may provide more assurance
than inquiry and observation, since an observation is pertinent only at the point in time at which
it is made.

The nature of the particular control influences the type of procedure required to obtain audit
evidence about whether the control was operating effectively.

For example, if operating effectiveness is evidenced by documentation, the auditor may decide
toinspect it to obtain audit evidence about operating effectiveness.

When more persuasive audit evidence is needed regarding the effectiveness of a control, it
may be appropriate to increase the extent of testing of the control as well as the degree of
reliance on controls.

Matters the auditor may consider in determining the extent of test of controls include the
following:

a)
b)

The frequency of the performance of the control by the entity during the period.

The length of time during the audit period that the auditor is relying on the operating
effectiveness of the control.
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c) Theexpected rate of deviation fromacontrol.

d) The relevance and reliability of the audit evidence to be obtained regarding the operating
effectiveness of the control at the assertion level.

e) The extent to which audit evidence is obtained from tests of other controls related to the
assertion.

TIMING OF TEST OF CONTROLS

1)  The auditor shall test controls for the particular time, or throughout the period, for which
the auditor intends to rely on those controls in order to provide an appropriate basis for the
auditor's intended reliance.

2) Audit evidence pertaining only to a point in time may be sufficient for the auditor's purpose, for
example, when testing controls over the entity's physical inventory counting at the period end.

3) If, on the other hand, the auditor intends to rely on a control over a period, tests that are
capable of providing audit evidence that the control operated effectively at relevant times

during that period are appropriate. Such tests may include tests of the entity's monitoring of
controls.

USING AUDIT EVIDENCE OBTAINED N PREVIOUS AUDITS

In determining whether it is appropriate to use audit evidence about the operating effectiveness
of controls obtained in previous audits, and, if so, the length of the time period that may elapse
before retesting a control, the auditor shall consider the following

a) The effectiveness of other elements of internal control, including the control environment, the
entity's monitoring of controls, and the entity's risk assessment process

b) The risks arising from the characteristics of the control, including whether it is manual or
automated

c) Theeffectiveness of general IT-controls

d) The effectiveness of the control and its application by the entity, including the nature and

extent of deviations in the application of the control noted in previous audits, and whether
there have been personnel changes that significantly affect the application of the control

e) Whether thelack of a change inaparticular control poses a risk due to changing circumstances
and

f) Therisks of material misstatement and the extent of reliance on the control.

If the auditor plans fo use audit evidence from a previous audit about the operating effectiveness
of specific controls, the auditor shall establish the continuing relevance of that evidence by
obtaining audit evidence about whether significant changes in those controls have occurred
subsequent to the previous audit.

@ 7507545533 age- 1B.44 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com



CA Rishabh Jain - SA 300 Series

'EVALUATING THE OPERATING EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS

1) When evaluating the operating effectiveness of relevant controls, the auditor shall evaluate
whether misstatements that have been detected by substantive procedures mdlca‘l’e that
controls are not operating effectively.

2) Theabsence of misstatements detected by substantive procedures, however, does not provide
audit evidence that controls related to the assertion being tested are effective.

3) A material misstatement detected by the auditor's procedures is a strong indicator of the
existence of a significant deficiency ininternal control.

SPECIFIC INQUIRIES BY AUDITOR WHEN DEVIATIONS

FROM CONTROLS ARE DETECTED

1)  When deviations from controls upon which the auditor intends fo rely are detected, the
auditor shall make specific inquiries to understand these matters and their potential
consequences, and shall determine whether:

a) The test of controls that have been performed provide an appropriate basis for reliance
on the controls

b) Additional test of controls are necessary or
c) Thepotential risks of misstatement need to be addressed using substantive procedures.

2) Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and
perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and
disclosure.

3) Thisrequirement reflects the facts that:

a) The auditor's assessment of risk is judgmental and so may not identify all risks of
material misstatement and

b) Thereareinherent limitations to internal control, including mahagement override.

4) Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at
the assertion level. Substantive procedures comprise:

a) Tests of details (of classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures), and
b) Substantive analytical procedures.

TESTS OF DETAILS

1) Tests of details are further classified into tests of transactions i.e., vouching and tests of
balances i.e., verification. For example, a purchase transaction may be verified by examining
the related purchase invoice, goods received note, inward gate entry register.

2) Such tests of transactions help in establishing the authenticity of transactions recorded in
books of accounts.
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3) Tests of balances consist of verification of assets as well as liabilities. Verification of anitem
of fixed asset, for example, would help in establishing existence of that asset as on date of
balance sheet.

4) This may be obtained by reviewing entity's plan for performing physical verification of fixed
assets and obtaining evidence for performance of physical verification of fixed assets by
management.

SUBSTANTIVE ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

1) Substantive analytical procedures refer to analytical procedures used as substantive
procedures by auditor.

2) The term “analytical procedures” means evaluations of financial information through analysis
of plausible relationships among both financial and non-financial data.

3) Analytical procedures also encompass such investigation as is necessary of identified
fluctuations or relationships that are inconsistent with other relevant information or that
differ from expected values by a significant amount.

4) The use of widely recognised ratios (such as profit margins for different types of retail
entities) can often be used effectively in substantive analytical procedures to provide evidence
To support the reasonableness of recorded amounts.

5) Analytical procedures involving, for example, the prediction of total rental income on a building
divided into apartments, taking the rental rates, the number of apartments and vacancy rates
into consideration, can provide persuasive evidence and may eliminate the need for further
verification by means of tests of details.

6) Substantive analytical procedures are generally more applicable to large volumes of
transactions that tend to be predictable over time.

Nature and extent of Substantive procedures

1) Depending on the circumstances, the auditor may determine that:

a) Performing only substantive analytical procedures will be sufficient to reduce audit risk
to an acceptably low level. For example, where the auditor's assessment of risk is
supported by audit evidence from tests of controls.

b) Only tests of details are appropriate.

c) A combination of substantive analytical procedures and tests of details are most
responsive to the assessed risks.

2) Because the assessment of the risk of material misstatement takes account of internal control,
the extent of substantive procedures may need to be increased when the results from test of
controls are unsatisfactory.

3) Indesigning tests of details, the extent of testing is ordinarily thought of in terms of the
sample size. However, other matters are also relevant, including whether it is more effective to
use other selective means of testing.
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Evaluation of Misstatements
SA 450 Identified during the Audit

INTRODUCTION

1) Before forming an opinion on the financial statements, the auditor evaluates effects of
identified misstatements on the audit and of uncorrected misstatements on financial
statements after consideration of materiality.

2) Uncorrected misstatements refer to those misstatements that the auditor has accumulated
during the audit and that have not been corrected.

SCOPE OF THIS SA

SA 450 deals with the auditor's responsibility to evaluate the effect of identified misstatements
on the audit and of uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements.

OBJECTIVES OF AUDITOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH SA 450

The objective of the auditor is to evaluate: -
a) Theeffect of identified misstatements on the audit and
b) Theeffect of uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements.

ACCUMULATION OF MISSTATEMENTS

IDENTIFIED DURING THE AUDIT

1)  The auditor shall accumulate misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that
are clearly trivial.

2) Amisstatement may arise from avariety of factors.

3) For example, an inaccuracy in gathering or processing data from which financial statements are
prepared or an omission of an amount or disclosure can result into amisstatement.

4) Anentity haswrongly capitalized machinery repair expenses amounting to Rs.5 lacs resulting in
overstatement of profits. It is anexample of misstatement.
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CONSIDERATION OF IDENTIFIED MISSTATEMENTS

AS THE AUDIT PROGRESSES

1) The auditor shall determine whether the overall audit strategy and audit plan need to be
revised if: -

a) The nature of identified misstatements and the circumstances of their occurrence
indicate that other misstatements may exist that, when aggregated with misstatements
accumulated during the audit, could be material or

b) The aggregate of misstatements accumulated during the audit approaches materiality
determined inaccordance with SA 320.

2) The auditor may request management to examine a class of transactions, account balance or
disclosure in order for management to understand the cause of a misstatement identified by
the auditor, perform procedures to determine the amount of the actual misstatement in the
class of transactions, account balance or disclosure, and to make appropriate adjustments to
the financial statements.

3) Sucharequestmay be made, for example, based on the auditor's projection of misstatements.

4) If,attheauditor'srequest, management has examined a class of transactions, account balance
or disclosure and corrected misstatements that were detected, the auditor shall performed
additional audit procedures to determine whether misstatements remain.

COMMUNICATION AND CORRECTION OF MISSTATEMENTS

1) The auditor shall communicate on a timely basis all misstatements accumulated during the
audit with the appropriate level of management, unless prohibited by law or regulation.

2) The auditor shall request management to correct those misstatements. Timely communication
of misstatements fo the appropriate level of management is important as it enables
management to evaluate whether the items are misstatements, inform the auditor if it
disagrees and take action as necessary.

3) The correction by management of all misstatements, including those communicated by the
auditor, enables management to maintain accurate accounting books and records and reduces
the risks of material misstatement of future financial statements because of the cumulative
effect of immaterial uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods.

4) If management refuses to correct some or all of the misstatements communicated by the
auditor, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of management's reasons for not making the
corrections and shall take that understanding into account when evaluating whether the
financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement.
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EVALUATING THE EFFECT OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

1) Prior to evaluating the effect of uncorrected misstatements, the auditor shall reassess
materiality determined inaccordance with SA 320 to confirm whether it remains appropriate in
the confext of the entity's actual financial results.

2) The auditor shail determine whether uncorrected misstatements are material, individualiy or
in aggregate. Inmaking this determination, the auditor shall consider:

a) The size and nature of the misstatements, both in relation to particular classes of
transactions, account balances or disclosures and the financial statements as a whole, and
the particular circumstances of their occurrence and

b) The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a
whole.

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

1) The auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance regarding uncorrected
misstatements and the effect that they, individually or in aggregate, may have on the opinion
inthe auditor's report, unless prohibited by law or regulation.

2) Theauditor's communication shall identify material uncorrected misstatements individually.

3) The auditor shall request that uncorrected misstatements be corrected. The auditor shall
also communicate with those charged with governance the effect of uncorrected
misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as awhole.

WRITTEN REPRESENTATION FROM MANAGEMENT REGARDING

EFFECTS OF UNCORRECTED STATEMENTS

1)  The auditor shall request a written representation from management and, where appropriate,
those charged with governance whether they believe the effects of uncorrected
misstatements are immaterial, individually and in aggregate, to the financial statements as a
whole.

2) A summary of such items shall be included in or attached to the written representation.
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DOCUMENTATION REGARDING MISSTATEMENTS

IDENTIFIED DURING AUDIT

The audit documentation shall include: -
a) The amount below which misstatements would be regarded as clearly trivial;
b) Allmisstatements accumulated during the audit and whether they have been corrected; and

¢) The auditor's conclusion as to whether uncorrected misstatements are material, individually
or inaggregate, and the basis for that conclusion.

@ 7507545533 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com



CA Rishabh Jain SA 500 Series

(@) 7507545533 Page- 1D.1



SA 500 Audit Evidence

Definition of
Audit Evidence

Audit evidence may be defined as the information used by the auditor in
arriving at the conclusions on which the auditor's opinion is based.

Audit evidence includes both information contained in the accounting
records underlying the financial statements and other information.

For Example:

1) Information contained in the accounting records: Accounting
records include

a) the records of initial accounting entries and supporting records,
such.as checks and records of electronic fund transfers;

b) invoices;
c) contracts;

d) the general and subsidiary ledgers, journal entries and other
adjustments Yo the financial statements that are not reflected in
journal entries; and

e) records such as work sheets and spreadsheets supporting cost
allocations, computations, reconciliations and disclosures.

2) Other information that authenticates the accounting records and
also supports the auditor's rationale behind the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements: Other information which
the auditor may use as audit evidence includes, for example

a) minutesof the meetings,
b) written confirmations from trade receivables and trade payables,
¢) manuals containing details of internal control etc.

A combination of ftests of accounting records and other information is
generally used by the auditor to support his opinion on the financial
statements.

Objective
of the Auditor

The objective of the auditor is to design and perform audit procedures in
such away as to enable the auditor to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the
auditor's opinion.

Inconsistency in
or Doubts over
Reliability of
Audit Evidence

If the

a) audit evidence obtained from one source is inconsistent with that
obtained from another: or

b) the auditor has doubts over the reliability of information to be used
as audit evidence,

(&) 7507545533

i Page- 1D.2 |

@ www.ekatvamacademy.com




CA Rishabh Jain SA 500 Series

the auditor shall determine what modifications or additions to audit
procedures are necessary to resolve the matter, and shall consider the
effect of the matter, if any, on other aspects of the audit.

TYPES OF AUDIT EVIDENCE

Depending
upon nature

Visual
For example- observing physical
verification of inventory conducted

Depending
upon Source

Internal
Evidence which originates within
the organisation being audited is

by the client's staff. - internal evidence.

For example- Sales invoice,
goods receipt note, employee's

c nt
Documentary wage sheets etc.

For example- fixed deposit
certificate, loan agreement,

sales bill etc. External

The evidence that originates
Oral outside the client's organization
is external evidence.

For example- Purchase invoice,
Quotations, Confirmations,
Bank statement etc.

For example- discussion with the —
management and various
officers of the client.

RELEVANCE AND RELIABILITY OF AUDIT EVIDENCE

a) The auditor has to express opinion on the truth and fairness on the
financial statements. He shall consider the relevance and reliability of
the information to be used as audit evidence.

b) The quality of all audit evidence is affected by the relevance and
reliability of the information upon which it is based.

Introduction

Reliability of a) The reliability of information to be used as audit evidence, and
Evidence therefore of the audit evidence itself, is influenced by its source and
its nature, and the circumstances under which it is obtained, including
the controls over its preparation and maintenance where relevant.
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b) Therefore, generalizations about the reliability of various kinds of
audit evidence are subject to important exceptions. Even when
information to be used as audit evidence is obtained from sources
external to the entity, circumstances may exist that could alect its
reliability.

For example, information obtained from an independent external source
may not be reliable if the source is not knowledgeable, or a management's
expert may lack objectivity.

While recognizing that exceptions may exist, the following
generalisations about the reliability of audit evidence may be useful:

a) The reliability of audit evidence is increased when it is obtained from
independent sources outside the entity.

b) The religbility of audit evidence that is generated internally is
increased when the related controls, including those over its
preparation and maintenance, imposed by the entity are effective.

¢) Audit evidence obtained directly by the auditor (for example,
observation of the application of a control) is more reliable than audit
evidence obtained indirectly or by inference (for example, inquiry
about the application of a control).

d) Audit evidence in documentary form, whether paper, electronic, or
other medium, is more reliable than evidence obtained orally.

e) Audit evidence provided by original documents is more reliable than
audit evidence provided by photocopies or facsimiles, or documents
that have been filmed, digitised or otherwise transformed into
electronic form, the reliability of which may depend on the controls
over their preparation and maintenance.

Relevance a) Relevance deals with the logical connection with, or bearing upon, the
purpose of the audit procedure and, where appropriate, the assertion
under consideration. The relevance of information o be used as audit
evidence may be allected by the direction of testing.

Example:

If the purpose of an audit procedure is to test for overstatement in
the existence or valuation of accounts payable, testing the recorded
accounts payable may be a relevant audit procedure.

On the other hand, when testing for understatement in the existence
or valuation of accounts payable, testing the recorded accounts
payable would not be relevant, but testing such information as
subsequent disbursements, unpaid invoices, suppliers' statements,
and unmatched receiving reports may be relevant.
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b) A given set of audit procedures may provide audit evidence that is
relevant to certain assertions, but not others.

For example, inspection of documents related to the collection of
receivables af ter the period end may provide audit evidence regarding
existence and valuation, but not necessarily cut-off.

¢) Similarly, obtaining audit evidence regarding a particular assertion,
For example, the existence of inventory, is not a substitute for
obtaining audit evidence regarding another assertion, for example,
the valuation of that inventory.

d) On the other hand, audit evidence from dillerent sources or of a
different nature may of ten be relevant to the same assertion

CONCEPT OF MANAGEMENT'S EXPERT

1) If the entity has employed or engaged experts, the auditor may rely on the works of experts,
provided he is satisfied that sufficient and appropriate audit evidence is obtained with
reasonable assurance to form an opinion on the financial statements.

2) As per SA 500- Audit Evidence, issued by ICAT, when information to be used as audit evidence
has been prepared using the work of a management's expert, the auditor shall, to the extent
hecessary, having regard to the significance of that expert's work for the auditor's purposes:

a) Evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of that expert:
(i)  Whethertheexpert is employed by the entity or is engaged by it
(i)  Theextent to which management can exercise influence or control over the expert
(iii) Auditor's previous experience of the work of the expert

(iv) Knowledge of the expert's qualification, membership of a professional body or
industry association

b) Obtain an understanding of the work of that expert:
(i)  Whether the auditor has expertise to evaluate the work of the expert

(i) Whether any professional or other standards, and regulatory or legal
requirements apply

(i)  Evaluating the assumptions and methods used by the management expert
(iv) Evaluating the nature of internal or external dataused by the Expert

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of his work as audit evidence for the relevant assertion:
(i)  Relevance and reasonableness of the Expert's findings or conclusions

(i) Evaluating the relevance, completeness and accuracy of the source data used by
the Expert.
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SUFFICIENCY AND APPROPRIATENESS OF AUDIT EVIDENCE

The sufficiency and appropriateness of audit evidence are interrelated.

[ Sufficiency J [ Appropriateness J
measure measure
’ — of quantity —  of quality

SUFFICIENCY OF AUDIT EVIDENCE

1) Sufficiency is the measure of the quantity of audit evidence. The quantity of audit evidence
needed is affected by the auditor's assessment of the risks of misstatement (the higher the
assessed risks, the more audit evidence is likely to be required) and also by the quality of such
audit evidence (the higher the quality, the less may be required).

2) Obtaining more audit evidence, however, may not compensate for its poor quality.
3) Factors affecting auditor's judgement as to sufficiency of audit evidence:
a) Materiality -
Materiality may be defined as the significance of classes of fransactions, account
balances and presentation and disclosures to the users of the financial statements. Less
evidence would be required in case assertions are less material to users of the financial
statements. But on the other hand, if assertions are more material to the users of the
financial statements, more evidence would be required.
b) Risk of material misstatement -

It may be defined as the risk that the financial statements are materially misstated prior
to audit.

Less evidence would be required in case assertions that have a lower risk of material
misstatement. But oh the other hand, if assertions have a higher risk of material
misstatement, more evidence would be required.

¢) Size & characteristics of a population -

It refers to the number of items included in the population. Less evidence would be
required in case of smaller, more homogeneous population but on the other hand in case of
larger, more heterogeneous populations, more evidence would be required.
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APPROPRIATENESS OF AUDIT EVIDENCE

1) Appropriateness is the measure of the quality of audit evidence; that is, its relevance and its
reliability in providing support for the conclusions on which the auditor's opinion is based.

2) Thereliability of evidence is influenced by its source and by its nature and is dependent on the
individual circumstances under which it is obtained.

3) SA 330, "The Auditor's Responses to Assessed Risks"” requires the auditor to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained.

4) Whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained to reduce audit risk to an
acceptably low level, and thereby enable the auditor to draw reasonable conclusions on which to
base the auditor's opinion, is a matter of professional judgement.

5) SA 200 contains discussion of such matters as the nature of audit procedures, the timeliness
of financial reporting, and the balance between benefit and cost, which are relevant factors
when the auditor exercises professional judgement regarding whether sullcient appropriate
audit evidence has been obtained.

6) Inorder fo obtain reliable audit evidence, information produced by the entity ("IPE") that is
used for performing audit procedures needs to be sullciently complete and accurate.

AUDIT PROCEDURES TO OBTAIN AUDIT EVIDENCE

Audit evidence to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the auditor's opinion is obtained by
performing:
1)  Risk assessment procedures; and [Refer Note 1]
2)  Further audit procedures, which comprise: [Refer Note 2]
a) Test of controls, when required by the SAs or when the auditor has chosen to do so; and
b) Substantive procedures, including tests of details and substantive analytical procedures.

The audit procedures inspection, observation, confirmation, recalculation, re- performance and
analytical procedures, of ten in some combination, in addition to inquiry described below may be used
as risk assessment procedures, test of controls or substantive procedures, depending on the
context inwhich they are applied by the auditor.

Audit procedures to obtain audit evidence can include:
a) Inspection

b) Observation

c) External Confirmation

d) Recalculation

e) Reperformance

f)  Analytical Procedures

g) Inquiry
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Inspection a) Inspection involves examining records or documents, whether
internal or external, in paper form, electronic form, or other media,
or a physical examination of an asset.

b) Inspection of records and documents provides audit evidence of
varying degrees of reliability, depending on their nature and source
and, in the case of internal records and documents, on the ellectiveness
of the controls over their production.

Observation a) Observation consists of looking at a process or procedure being
performed by others.

Example: The auditor's observation of inventory counting by the
entity's personnel, or of the performance of control activities.

b) Observation provides audit evidence about the performance of a
process or procedure, but is limited to the point in time at which the
observation takes place, and by the fact that the act of being
observed may affect how the process or procedure is performed.

External An external confirmation represents audit evidence obtained by the
Confirmation auditor as adirect written response to the auditor from a third party (the
confirming party), in paper form, or by electronic or other medium.

(Refer SA 505 for more details.)

Recalculation Recalculation consists of checking the mathematical accuracy of

documents or records. Recalculation may be performed manually or
electronically.

Re-performance | Re-performance involves the auditor's independent execution of
procedures or controls that were originally performed as part of the
entity'sinternal control.

Example: Re-performing the reconciliation of bank statement, re-
performing the aging of accounts receivable.

Analytical a) Analyftical procedures consist of evaluations of financial information
Procedures made by a study of plausible relationships among both financial and
non- financial data.

b) Analytical procedures also encompass the investigation of identified
fluctuations and relationships that are inconsistent with other
relevant information or deviate significantly from predicted amounts.
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Inquiry a) Inquiry consists of seeking information of knowledgeable persons,
both financial and non-financial, within the entity or outside the entity.

b) Inquiry is used extensively throughout the audit in addition to other
audit procedures.

¢) Inquiries may range from formal written inquiries to informal oral
inquiries.

d) Evaluating responses to inquiries is an integral part of the inquiry
process. Responses to inquiries may provide the auditor with
information not previously possessed or with corroborative audit
evidence.

e) Alternatively, responses might provide information that dillers
significantly from other information that the auditor has obtained, for
example, information regarding the possibility of management override
of controls.

f) Insome cases, responses to inquiries provide a basis for the auditor to
modify or perform additional audit procedures.

g9) Inrespect of some matters, the auditor may consider it necessary to
obtain written representations from management and, where
appropriate, those charged with governance to confirm responses to
oral inquiries.

h) Although inquiry may provide important audit evidence, and may even
produce evidence of a misstatement, inquiry alone ordinarily does not
provide sufficient audit evidence of the absence of a material
misstatement at the assertion level, nor of the operating effectiveness
of controls.

NOTE 1 - RISK ASSESSMENT PROCEDURES

Risk assessment procedures refer to the audit procedures performed to obtain an understanding of
the entity and its environment, including the entity's internal control, to identify and assess the
risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, at the financial statement and
assertion levels.
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| NOTE 2 - FURTHER AUDIT PROCEDURES

Further Audit Procedures comprise of:
(i) Tests of controls, when required by the SAs or when the auditor has chosen to do so; and
(i) Substantive procedures, including tests of details and substantive analytical procedures.

Tests of controls

Test of controls may be defined as an audit procedure designed to evaluate the operating
effectiveness of controls in preventing, or detecting and correcting, material misstatements at
the assertion level.

Substantive Procedures- Tests of details and

Substantive analytical procedures

a) Substantive procedures are designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion
level. They comprise tests of details and substantive analytical procedures.

b) Designing substantive procedures includes identifying conditions relevant to the purpose of
the test that constitute a misstatement in the relevant assertion.

c) In other words, Substantive procedure may be defined as an audit procedure designed to
detect material misstatementsat the assertion level.

Substantive procedures comprise:
(I) Testsof details and
(i) Substantive analytical procedures.

The following chart illustrates different audit procedures:

Audit Procedures

|
[ I

Risk Assessment Other
Procedures Procedures
| | |
Test of Controls Substantive Procedures
l
| I
Test of Details Analytical Procedures
I \ l

Test of Transactions Test of Balances
i.e. Vouching i.e. Verification
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NOTE 3 - AUDIT TRAIL

1) An audit trail is a documented flow of a transaction. It is used to investigate how a source
document was translated into an account entry and from there it was inserted into financial
statement of anentity.

2) It is used as audit evidence to establish authentication and integrity of a transaction. Audit
trails help in maintaining record of system and user activity. Like, in case of banks, there is an
audit trail keeping track of log-on activity detailing record of log-on attempts and device used.

3) Itisastep-by-step record by which accounting, trade details, or other financial data can be
traced to their source.

4) Audit trails are used to verify and track many types of transactions including accounting and
financial transactions.

5) Audit trails (or audit logs) act as record-keepers that document evidence of certain events,
procedures or operations, because their purpose is to reduce fraud, material errors, and
unauthorized use. Audit trails help to enhance internal controls and data security.

6) Audit trails can help in fixing responsibility, rebuilding events and in thorough analysis of
problem areas.

7) For example, audit trails can track activities of users thus fixing responsibility for users.
These can also be used to rebuild events upon occurring of some problem. Audit trail analysis
can specify reason of the problem. It can also help in ensuring operation of system as intended.
In this way, audit trails can help entities in their regular system operations. However, audit
trails involve costs. The cost is not only in terms of system expenditure but also in terms of
time involved in analysing data made available by audit trails.

8) However, use of automated tools can be made to analyse large volume of data thrown up by audit
trails.

9) Systems which have a feature of audit trail inspires confidence in auditors. It helps auditors
inverifying whether controls devised by the management were operating effectively or not.

10) Ttaidsinverificationwhether a transaction was indeed performed by a person authorised to do
it. Since audit trails also enhance data security, these can be used by auditor while performing
audit procedures thus increasing reliability of audit evidence obtained.

NOTE 4 - INFORMATION TO BE USED AS AUDIT EVIDENCE

When information to be used as audit evidence has been prepared
using the work of a management's expert, the nature, timing and

extent of audit procedures may be affected by such matters:

a) Thenature and complexity of the matter to which the management's expert relates.

b) Therisks of material misstatement in the matter.
¢) Theavailability of alternative sources of audit evidence.
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d) Thenature, scope and objectives of the management's expert'swork.

e) Whether the management's expert is employed by the entity, or is a party engaged by it to
provide relevant services.

f) The extent to which management can exercise control or influence over the work of the
management's expert,

) g) Whether the management's expert is subject to technical performance standards or other
professional or industry requirements.

h) The nature and extent of any controls within the entity over the management's expert's
work.

i) Theauditor's knowledge and experience of the management's expert's field of expertise.
J)  Theauditor's previous experience of the work of that expert.

When using information produced by the entity, the auditor shall
evaluate whether the information is sufficiently reliable for the
auditor's purposes, including as necessary in the circumstances:

a) Obtaining audit evidence about the accuracy and completeness of the information; and

b) Evaluating whether the information is sufficiently precise and detailed for the auditor's
purposes.

NOTE 5 - SELECTING ITEMS FOR TESTING

TO OBTAIN AUDIT EVIDENCE

When designing tests of controls and tests of details, the auditor shall determine means of
selecting items for testing that are effective in meeting the purpose of the audit procedure. The
means available to the auditor for selecting items for testing are:

a) Selectingallitems (100% examination);
b) Selectingspecificitems; and
c) Audit sampling.

The application of any one or combination of these means may be appropriate depending on the
auditors’ judgement to obtain audit evidence.

Selecting All Items

a) The auditor may decide that it will be most appropriate to examine the entire population of
items that make up a class of transactions or account balance (or a stratum within that
population).

b) 100% examination is unlikely in the case of tests of controls; however, it is more common for
tests of details. 100% examination may be appropriate when,
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c) For example:
(i) Thepopulation constitutes a small number of large value items;

(i) There is a significant risk and other means do not provide sufficient appropriate audit
evidence; or

(iii) The repetitive nature of a calculation or other process performed automatically by an
information system makes a 100% examination cost effective.

Selecting Specific Items

a) Theauditor may decide to select specific items from a population.

b) Inmaking this decision, factors that may be relevant include the auditor's understanding of
the entity, the assessed risks of material misstatement, and the characteristics of the
population being tested.

¢) The judgmental selection of specific items is subject to non-sampling risk.
d) Specific items selected may include:
() High value or key items.

The auditor may decide to select specific items within a population because they are of
high value, or exhibit some other characteristic.

For example, items that are suspicious, unusual, particularly risk-prone or that have a
history of error.

(i) All items over a certain amount.

The auditor may decide to examine items whose recorded values exceed a certain amount
so as to verify a large proportion of the total amount of a class of transactions or account
balance.

(iii) Items to obtain information.

The auditor may examine items to obtain information about matters such as the nature of
the entity or the nature of transactions.

Audit Sampling

Audit sampling is designed to enable conclusions to be drawn about an entire population on the basis
of testing asample drawn fromit. (Refer SA 530 for details)
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NOTE 6 - EVALUATION OF AUDIT

1)  Evidence SA 500 "Audit Evidence" is applicable to all the audit evidence obtained during the
course of the audit to enable the auditor to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to be
able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the auditor's opinion.

s 2) Most of the auditor's work in forming the auditor's opinion consists of obtaining and
evaluating audit evidence.

. 3) The auditor has to conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained
to reduce audit risk to an acceptably low level, and thereby enable the auditor to draw
reasonable conclusions on which to base the auditor's opinion, is a matter of professional
Judgment.
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Audit Evidence- Specific
SA 5 01 Considerations for selected items

SA 501- “Audit Evidence- Specific Considerations for Selected Items” deals with specific
considerations by the auditor in obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence with respect to
certain aspects of inventory, litigation and claims involving the entity, and segment information in
an audit of financial statements.

The objective of the auditoris to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the:
(a) Existence and condition of Inventory.
(b) Completeness of Litigation and Claims involving the entity; and

(c) Presentation and Disclosure of Segment Information in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

INVENTORY

When inventory is material to the financial statements, the auditor shall obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence and condition of inventory by:

1) Atftendanceat physical inventory counting, unless impracticable, to:

a) Evaluate management's instructions and procedures for recording and controlling the
results of the entity's physical inventory counting;

b) Observe the performance of management's count procedures;
c) Inspecttheinventory; and
d) Perform test counts.

2) Performing audit procedures over the entity's final inventory records to determine whether
they accurately reflect actual inventory count results.

Attendance at Physical Inventory Counting
Attendance at Physical Inventory Counting Involves:

1) Inspecting the inventory to ascertain its existence and evaluate its condition, and performing
test counts;

2) Observing compliance with management's instructions and the performance of procedures
for recording and controlling the results of the physical inventory count; and

3) Obtaining audit evidence as to the reliability of management's count procedures.

These procedures may serve as test of controls or substantive procedures depending on the
auditor's risk assessment, planned approach and the specific procedures carried out.
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Matters Relevant in Planning Attendance at Physical
Inventory Counting

Matters relevant in planning attendance at physical inventory counting include, for example:

a) Nature of inventory.

b) Stages of completion of workinprogress.

¢) Therisks of material misstatement related to inventory.
d) Thenature of the internal control related to inventory.

e) Whether adequate procedures are expected to be established and proper instructions issued
for physical inventory counting.

f) The timing of physical inventory counting.
g) Whether the entity maintains a perpetual inventory system.

h)  The locations at which inventory is held, including the materiality of the inventory and the risks
of material misstatement at different locations, in deciding at which locations attendance is
appropriate

i) Whether the assistance of an auditor's expert is needed.

Physical Inventory Counting Conducted Other than at the Date of
the Financial Statements

1) If physical inventory counting is conducted at a date other than the date of the financial
statements, the auditor shall, in addition to the procedures required above, perform audit
procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether changes in inventory between the count
date and the date of the financial statements are properly recorded.

2) Relevant matters for consideration when designing audit procedures to obtain audit evidence
about whether changes in inventory amounts between the count date, or dates, and the final
inventory records are properly recorded include:

a)  Whether the perpetual inventory records are properly adjusted.
b) Reliability of the entity's perpetual inventory records.

¢) Reasons for significant differences between the information obtained during the
physical count and the perpetual inventory records.

If the Auditor is unable to Attend Physical Inventory Counting due
to Unforeseen Circumstances

If the auditor is unable to attend physical inventory counting due to unforeseen circumstances, the
auditor shall make or observe some physical counts on an alternative date and perform audit
procedures on intervening transactions.
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Attendance at Physical Inventory Counting Is Impracticable

1) If attendance at physical inventory counting is impracticable, the auditor shall perform
alternative audit procedures fo obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
existence and condition of inventory. If it is not possible to do so, the auditor shall medify the
opinion in the auditor's report inaccordance with SA 705.

2) In some cases, attendance at physical inventory counting may be impracticable. This may be
due to factors such as the nature and location of the inventory, for example, where inventory
is held ina location that may pose threats to the safety of the auditor.

3) The matter of general inconvenience to the auditor, however, is not sufficient to support a
decision by the auditor that attendance is impracticable. Further, as explained in SA 200, the
matter of difficulty, time, or cost involved is not in itself a valid basis for the auditor to omit an
audit procedure for which there is no alternative or to be satisfied with audit evidence that is
less than persuasive.

4) Insome cases where attendance is impracticable, alternative audit procedures, for example
inspection of documentation of the subsequent sale of specific inventory items acquired or
purchased prior to the physical inventory counting, may provide sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the existence and condition of inventory.

5) Inother cases, however,it may not be possible to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the existence and condition of inventory by performing alternative audit procedures.
In such cases, SA 705 requires the auditor to modify the opinion in the auditor's report as a
result of the scope limitation.

When inventory under the custody and control of a third party-
What will the auditor do?

1)  When inventory under the custody and control of a third party is material to the financial
statements, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
existence and condition of that inventory by performing one or both of the following:

a) Request confirmation from the third party as to the quantities and condition of
inventory held on behalf of the entity.

b) Perform inspection or other audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances.

2) Other audit procedure may include -

N a) Inspecting documentation regarding inventory held by third parties, for example,
warehouse receipts.

b) Requesting confirmation from other parties when inventory has been pledged as
collateral.

c) Attending, or arranging for another auditor to attend, the third party's physical
counting of inventory, if practicable.

d) Obtaining another auditor's report, or a service auditor's report, on the adequacy of
the third party's internal control for ensuring that inventory is properly counted and
adequately safeguarded.
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LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

1)  The auditor shall design and perform audit procedures in order to identify litigation and
claims involving the entity which may give rise to arisk of material misstatement, including:

a) Inquiry of management and, where applicable, others within the entity, including in-
house legal counsel;

b) Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and correspondence
between the entity and its external legal counsel; and

¢) Reviewing legal expense accounts.

2) Litigation and claims involving the entity may have a material effect on the financial statements
and thus may be required to be disclosed or accounted for in the financial statements. In
addition to the procedures identified above other relevant procedures include,

3) For example, using information obtained through risk assessment procedures carried out as
part of obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment to assist the auditor to
become aware of litigation and claims involving the entity.

4) Audit evidence obtained for purposes of identifying litigation and claims that may give rise to a
risk of material misstatement also may provide audit evidence regarding other relevant
considerations, such as valuation or measurement, regarding litigation and claims.

5) SA 540 establishes requirements and provides guidance relevant to the auditor's
consideration of litigation and claims requiring accounting estimates or related disclosures in
the financial statements.

If the Auditor Assesses a Risk of Material Misstatement regarding
Litigation or Claims - Communication with the Entity's External Legal
Counsel

1) If the auditor assesses arisk of material misstatement regarding litigation or claims that have
been identified, or when audit procedures performed indicate that other material litigation or
claims may exist, the auditor shall, in addition to the procedures required by other SAs, seek
direct communication with the entity's external legal counsel.

2) The auditor shall do so through a letter of inquiry requesting the entity's external legal
counsel to communicate directly with the auditor.

3) If law, regulation or the respective legal professional body prohibits the entity's external
legal counsel from communicating directly with the auditor, the auditor shall perform
alternative audit procedures.

4) Ifitisconsidered unlikely that the entity's external legal counsel will respond appropriately
to aletter of general inquiry, for example if the professional body to which the external legal
counsel belongs prohibits response to such a letter, the auditor may seek direct communication
through aletter of specific inquiry. For this purpose, a letter of specific inquiry includes:

@ 7507545533 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com

Page- 1D.19



SA 500 Series CA Rishabh Jain

a) Alistof litigation and claims;

b) Where available, management's assessment of the outcome of each of the identified
litigation and claims and its estimate of the financial implications, including costs
involved; and

c) A request that the entity's external legal counsel confirm the reasonableness of
management's assessments and provide the auditor with further information if the list is
considered by the entity's external legal counsel to be incomplete or incorrect.

5) In certain circumstances, the auditor also may judge it necessary to meet with the entity's
external legal counsel to discuss the likely outcome of the litigation or claims. This may be the
case, for example, where:

a) Theauditor determines that the matter is a significant risk.
b) Thematteriscomplex.

¢) There is disagreement between management and the entity's external legal counsel.
Ordinarily, such meetings require management's permission and are held with a
representative of management inattendance.

Note 1: Further if

a) Management refuses to give the auditor permission to communicate or meet with the entity's
external legal counsel, or the entity's external legal counsel refuses to respond appropriately
to the letter of inquiry, or is prohibited from responding; and

b) The ayditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence by performing
alternative audit procedures,

c¢) the auditor shall modify the opinion in the auditor's report in accordance with SA 705.

Note 2: Written Representations

The auditor shall request management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance to
provide written representations that all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor
and appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Definition of segment- Information Segment Information refers to information about different
Types of products and services of anenterprise and its operations in dif ferent geographical areas.

The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the presentation and
disclosure of segment information in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework

1) Obtaining an understanding of the methods used by management in determining segment
information. Further,
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2)

a) Evaluating whether such methods are likely to result in disclosure in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework; and

b) Whereappropriate, testing the application of such methods; and
Performing analytical procedures or other audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility regarding the presentation and disclosure of

a)

b)

segment information

The auditor’s responsibility regarding the presentation and disclosure of segment information
is inrelation to the financial statements taken as awhole.

Accordingly, the auditor is not required to perform audit procedures that would be necessary
to express anopinion on the segment information presented on a standalone basis.

Understanding of the Methods Used by Management

Depending on the circumstances, example of matters that may be relevant when obtaining an
understanding of the methods used by management in determining segment information and
whether such methods are likely to result in disclosure in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework include:

a)
b)

c)
d)

Sales, transfers and charges between segments, and elimination of intersegment amounts.

Comparisons with budgets and other expected results, for example, operating profits as a
percentage of sales.

The allocation of assets and costs among segments.

Consistency with prior periods, and the adequacy of the disclosures with respect to
inconsistencies.
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INTRODUCTION

The Standard on Auditing (SA) 505 “External Confirmations” deals with the auditor's use of

external confirmation procedures to obtain audit evidence in accordance with the requirements
of SA 500.

Accordingly, depending on the circumstances of the audit, audit evidence in the form of
external confirmations received directly by the auditor from confirming parties may be more
reliable than evidence generated internally by the entity.

SA505 is intended to assist the auditor in designing and performing external confirmations
procedures o obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence.

Thus, the objective of the auditor, when using external confirmation procedures, is to design
and perform such procedures to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence.

DEFINITION OF OTHER IMPORTANT TERMS

External confirmation - It may be defined as audit evidence obtained as a direct written
response to the auditor from a third party (the confirming party), in paper form, or by
electronic or other medium.

Positive confirmation request - A request that the confirming party respond directly to the
auditor indicating whether the confirming party agrees or disagrees with the information in
the request or providing the requested information.

Negative confirmation request - A request that the confirming party respond directly to the
auditor only if the confirming party disagrees with the information provided in the request.

Non-response - A failure of the confirming party to respond, or fully respond, to a positive
confirmation request, or a confirmation request returned undelivered.

Exception - A response that indicates a difference between information requested to be
confirmed, or contained in the entity's records, and information provided by the confirming
party. The exception needs to be assessed to the entire population after analyzing the reason
fordifference.

EXTERNAL CONFIRMATION PROCEDURES

When using external confirmation procedures, the auditor shall maintain control over external
confirmation requests, including:

(a) Determining the information to be confirmed or requested;

(b) Selecting the appropriate confirming party;

7507545533 Page- 1D.23




SA 500 Series CA Rishabh Jain

(c) Designing the confirmation requests, including determining that requests are properly
addressed and contain returninformation for responses to be sent directly to the auditor; and

(d) Sending the requests, including follow-up requests when applicable, to the confirming party.

(A) DETERMINING THE INFORMATION

TO BE CONFIRMED OR REQUESTED

External confirmation procedures frequently are performed to confirm or request information
regarding account balances and their elements. They may also be used to confirm

a) termsof agreements,

b) contracts,or

c) transactionsbetweenanentity and other parties, or

d) toconfirmthe absence of certain conditions, such as a “side agreement”.

(B) SELECTING THE APPROPRIATE CONFIRMING PARTY

Responses fo confirmation requests provide more relevant and reliable audit evidence when
confirmation requests are sent to a confirming party the auditor believes is knowledgeable about
the information to be confirmed.

For example, a financial institution official who is knowledgeable about the transactions or
arrangements for which confirmation is requested may be the most appropriate person at the
financial institution from whom to request confirmation.

(C) DESIGNING CONFIRMATION REQUESTS

1) Design of a confirmation request:

The desigh of a confirmation request may directly affect the confirmation response rate, and
the reliability and the nature of the audit evidence obtained from responses.

2) Factors to consider when designing confirmation requests include:
a) Specific identified risks of material misstatement, including fraud risks.
b) Thelayout and presentation of the confirmation request.
c) Priorexperience on the audit or similar engagements.
d) Theassertions being addressed.

e) The method of communication [For example, in paper form, or by electronic mode (like e-
mail) or other medium].

f)  Management's authorization or encouragement to the confirming parties to respond to
the auditor. Confirming parties may only be willing to respond to a confirmation request
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containing management's authorization.

g) The ability of the intended confirming party to confirm or provide the requested
information (For example, individual invoice amount versus total balance).
3) Positive confirmation request:
a) A positive external confirmation request asks the confirming party to reply to the auditor
in all cases, either by indicating the confirming party's agreement with the given
information, or by asking the confirming party to provide information.

b) A response to a positive confirmation request ordinarily is expected to provide reliable
audit evidence.

c) There is arisk, however, that a confirming party may reply to the confirmation request
without verifying that the information is correct.

d) Theauditor may reduce this risk by using positive confirmation requests that do not state
the amount (or other information) on the confirmation request, and ask the confirming
party to fill in the amount or furnish other information.

e) On the other hand, use of this type of "blank” confirmation request may result in lower
response rates because additional effort is required of the confirming parties.

4) Determination of properly addressed requests:

Determining that requests are properly addressed includes testing the validity of some or all
of the addresses on confirmation requests before they are sent out.

(D) FOLLOW-UP ON CONFIRMATION REQUESTS

The auditor may send an additional confirmation request when a reply fo a previous request has not
been received within areasonable time.

For example, the auditor may, having re-verified the accuracy of the original address, send an
additional or follow-up request.

MANAGEMENT'S REFUSAL TO ALLOW THE AUDITOR TO

SEND A CONFIRMATION REQUEST - STEPS TAKEN BY AUDITOR

If management refuses to allow the auditor to send a confirmation request, the auditor shall:

(a) Inquire as to management's reasons for the refusal, and seek audit evidence as to their
validity and reasonableness;

(b) Evaluate the implications of management's refusal on the auditor's assessment of the
relevant risks of material misstatement, including the risk of fraud, and on the nature, timing
and extent of other audit procedures; and

(c) Perform alternative audit procedures designed to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence.
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If the auditor concludes that management's refusal to allow the auditor to send a confirmation
request is unreasonable, or the auditor is unable to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence
from alternative audit procedures, the auditor shall communicate with those charged with
governance inaccordance with SA 260.

The auditor also shall determine the implications for the audit and the auditor's opinion in
accordance with SA 705. [Refer Note-1 for Detailed Procedure]

. NEGATIVE CONFIRMATIONS

1) Negative confirmations provide less persuasive audit evidence than positive confirmations.

2) Accordingly, the auditor shall not use negative confirmation requests as the sole substantive
audit procedure to address an assessed risk of material misstatement at the assertion level
unless all of the following are present:

a) The auditor has assessed the risk of material misstatement as low and has obtained
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the operating effectiveness of controls
relevant to the assertion;

b) The population of items subject to negative confirmation procedures comprises a large
number of small, homogeneous, account balances, transactions or conditions;

c) Avery low exception rate is expected; and

d) The auditor is not aware of circumstances or conditions that would cause recipients of
negative confirmation requests to disregard such requests.

3) Thefailure to receive aresponse to anegative confirmation request does not explicitly indicate
receipt by the intended confirming party of the confirmation request or verification of the
accuracy of the information contained in the request.

4) Accordingly, a failure of a confirming party to respond to a negative confirmation request
provides significantly less persuasive audit evidence than does a response to a positive
confirmation request.

5) Confirming parties also may be more likely to respond indicating their disagreement with a
confirmation request when the information in the request is not in their favour, and less likely
torespond otherwise.

EVALUATING THE EVIDENCE OBTAINED

1)  The auditor shall evaluate whether the results of the external confirmation procedures
provide relevant and reliable audit evidence, or whether performing further audit procedures
is necessary.

2) When evaluating the results of individual external confirmation requests, the auditor may
categorise such results as follows:

a) Aresponse by the appropriate confirming party indicating agreement with the information
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provided in the confirmation request, or providing requested information without
exception;

b) Aresponse deemed unreliable;
c) Anon-response;or
d) Aresponseindicatinganexception.

3) Theauditor's evaluation, when taken into account with other audit procedures the auditor may
have performed, may assist the auditor in concluding whether sufficient appropriate audit
evidence has been obtained or whether performing further audit procedures is necessary, as
required by SA 330.

NOTE 1 - DETAILED PROCEDURE WHEN MANAGEMENT REFUSES

Reasonableness of Managemeni's Refusal

a) A refusal by management to allow the auditor to send a confirmation request is a limitation on
the audit evidence the auditor may wish to obtain. The auditor is therefore required to inquire
as to the reasons for the limitation.

b) A common reason advanced is the existence of a legal dispute or ongoing negotiation with the
intended confirming party, the resolution of which may be affected by an untimely confirmation
request.

¢) The auditor is required fo seek audit evidence as to the validity and reasonableness of the
reasons because of the risk that management may be attempting to deny the auditor access to
audit evidence that may reveal fraud or error.

Implications for the Assessment of Risks of Material Misstatement

a) The auditor may conclude that it would be appropriate to revise the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement at the assertion level and modify planned audit procedures.

b) For example if management's request to not confirm is unreasonable, this may indicate a fraud
risk factor that requires evaluation in accordance with SA 240.

Alternative Audit Procedures
Examples of alternative audit procedures the auditor may perform include:

a) For accounts receivable balances - examining specific subsequent cash receipts, shipping
documentation, and sales near the period-end.

b) For accounts payable balances - examining subsequent cash disbursements or correspondence
from third parties, and other records, such as goods received notes.
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Practical Insight into draft Receivable Confirmation Request

31 Mar XX14

[Customer's name]

. [Customer's address]

Our auditors, ABC Co LLP, are auditing our financial statements and wish to obtain direct
confirmation of the amount receivable by us as of the date indicated below. Please compare the
balance shown below with your records as of the date indicated and note the details of
exceptions (if any) in the space provided below or on an attachment. Then please sign this
request in the space provided and return it in the enclosed reply envelope directly to ABC Co
LLP.

Confirmation Date 31 Mar XX14
Account Balance INR [Amount]

Yours truly

Signature
XYZLtd

Fodkkhxk

Response:

Signature
Date:......oeee .

Printed name and job title
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SA 510 Initial Audit Engagements

1) SA 510 - "Initial Audit Engagements- Opening Balances”, deals with the auditor's

responsibilities relating to opening balances when conducting an initial audit engagement. In

; addition fo financial statement amounts, opening balances include matters requiring disclosure
that existed at the beginning of the period, such as contingencies and commitments.

. 2) When the financial statements include comparative financial information, the requirements
and guidance in SA 710 also apply.

DEFINITION OF INITIAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT

1) Initial Audit Engagement - Anengagement inwhich either:
a) Thefinancial statements for the prior period were not audited; or
b) Thefinancial statements for the prior period were audited by a predecessor auditor.

2) Opening balances - means those account balances that exist at the beginning of the period.
Opening balances are based upon the closing balances of the prior period and reflect the
effects of transactions and events of prior periods and accounting policies applied in the prior
period. Opening balances also include matters requiring disclosure that existed at the
beginning of the period, such as contingencies and commitments.

3) Predecessor auditor - The auditor from a different audit firm, who audited the financial
statements of anentity in the prior period and who has been replaced by the current auditor.

OBJECTIVE OF AUDITOR WITH RESPECT TO OPENING BALANCES

- IN CONDUCTING AN INITIAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT

In conducting an initial audit engagement, the objective of the auditor with respect to opening
balances is to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether:

a) Opening balances contain misstatements that materially affect the current period's financial
statements; and

b) Appropriate accounting policies reflected in the opening balances have been consistently
applied in the current period’s financial statements, or changes thereto are properly
accounted for and adequately presented and disclosed in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.
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OBTAINING SUFFICIENT APPROPRIATE AUDIT EVIDENCE ABOUT

OPENING BALANCES BY THE AUDITOR

The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether the opening balances
contaih misstatements that materially af fect the current period's financial statements by:

1) Determining whether the prior period's closing balances have been correctly brought forward
to the current period or, when appropriate, any adjustments have been disclosed as prior period
items inthe current year's Statement of Profit and Loss;

2) Determining whether the opening balances reflect the application of appropriate accounting
policies; and

3) Performing one or more of the following:

a) Where the prior year financial statements were audited, perusing the copies of the
audited financial statements including the other relevant documents relating to the prior
period financial statements;

b) Evaluating whether audit procedures performed in the current period provide evidence
relevant to the opening balances; or

¢) Performing specific audit procedures to obtain evidence regarding the opening balances.

If the auditor obtains audit evidence that the opening balances contain misstatements that could
materially affect the current period's financial statements, the auditor shall perform such
additional audit procedures as are appropriate in the circumstances to determine the effect on the
current period's financial statements.

If the auditor concludes that such misstatements exist in the current period's financial
statements, the auditor shall communicate the misstatements with the appropriate level of
management and those charged with governance in accordance with SA 450.

PROCEDURES ADOPTED BY THE AUDITOR TO OBTAIN

AUDIT EVIDENCE REGARDING OPENING BALANCES:

Nature and extent of Audit Procedures

The nature and extent of audit procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding opening balances depend on such matters as:

a) Theaccounting policies followed by the entity.

b) The nature of the account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures and the risks of
material misstatement in the current period's financial statements.

¢) Thesignificance of the opening balances relative to the current period's financial statements.

d) Whether the prior period's financial statements were audited and, if so, whether the
predecessor auditor's opinion was modified.
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If the prior period's financial statements were audited by a
predecessor auditor

a) If the prior period's financial statements were audited by a predecessor auditor, the auditor
may be able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the opening balances by
perusing the copies of the audited financial statements including the other relevant documents

. relating to the prior period financial statements such as supporting schedules to the audited
financial statements.

\ a) Ordinarily, the current auditor can place reliance on the closing balances contained in the
financial statements for the preceding period, except when during the performance of audit
procedures for the current period the possibility of misstatements in opening balances is
indicated.

For current assets and liabilities

a) For current assets and liabilities, some audit evidence about opening balances may be obtained
as part of the current period's audit procedures.

For example, the collection (payment) of opening accounts receivable (accounts payable) during
the current period will provide some audit evidence of their existence, rights and obligations,
completeness and valuation at the beginning of the period.

b) In the case of inventories, however, the current period's audit procedures on the closing
inventory balance provide little audit evidence regarding inventory on hand at the beginning of
the period. Therefore, additional audit procedures may be necessary, and one or more of the
following may provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

(i) Observing a current physical inventory count and reconciling it to the opening inventory
quantities.

(ii) Performingaudit procedures on the valuation of the opening inventory items.
(iii) Performingaudit procedures on gross profit and cut-off.

For non- current assets and liabilities
For non-current assets and liabilities,

a) such as property plant and equipment, investments and long-term debt, some audit evidence
may be obtained by examining the accounting records and other information underlying the
opening balances.

b) In certain cases, the auditor may be able to obtain some audit evidence regarding opening
balances through confirmation with third parties.

For example, for long-term debt and investments audit evidence may be obtained through
confirmation with third parties. In other cases, the auditor may need to carry out additional
audit procedures.
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CONSISTENCY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RELATING TO OPENING BALANCES

The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether the accounting
policies reflected in the opening balances have been consistently applied in the current period's
financial statements, and whether changes in the accounting policies have been properly accounted
for and adequately presented and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.

RELEVANT INFORMATION IN THE

PREDECESSOR AUDITOR'S REPORT

If the prior period’s financial statements were audited by a predecessor auditor and there was a
modification to the opinion, the auditor shall evaluate the effect of the matter giving rise to the
modification in assessing the risks of material misstatement in the current period's financial
statements inaccordance with SA 315,

REPORTING BY THE AUDITOR

Regarding Opening Balances

1) If the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the opening
balances, the auditor shall express a qualified opinion or a disclaimer of opinion, as appropriate,
inaccordance with SA 705.

2) If the auditor concludes that the opening balances contain a misstatement that materially
affects the current period's financial statements, and the effect of the misstatement is not
properly accounted for or not adequately presented or disclosed, the auditor shall express a
qualified opinion or an adverse opinion, as appropriate, in accordance with SA 705.

Consistency of Accounting Policies
If the auditor concludes that:

a) the current period's accounting policies are not consistently applied in relation to opening
balances in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework; or

b) achange in accounting policies is not properly accounted for or not adequately presented or
disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,

the auditor shall express a qualified opinion or an adverse opinion as appropriate in accordance with
SA 705(Revised).
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Modification to the Opinion in the Predecessor Auditor's Report

If the predecessor auditor's opinion regarding the prior. period's financial statements included a
modification to the auditor's opinion that remains relevant and material o the current period's
financial statements, the auditor shall modify the auditor's opinion on the current period's
financial statements in accordance with SA 705(Revised) and SA 710.
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SA 520 Analytical Procedures

MEANING OF ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

As per the Standard on Auditing (SA) 520 “Analytical Procedures”, the term “analytical
procedures” means evaluations of financial information through analysis of plausible relationships
among both financial and non-financial data.

Analytical procedures also encompass such investigation as is necessary of identified fluctuations
or relationships that are inconsistent with other relevant information or that diller from expected
values by a significant amount.

Examples of Analytical Procedures having consideration of comparisons of the entity's financial
information with are:

a) Comparable information for prior periods.

b) Anticipated results of the entity, such as budgets or forecasts, or expectations of the
auditor, such as an estimation of depreciation.

c) Similar industry information, such as a comparison of the entity's ratio of sales to accounts
receivable with industry averages or with other entities of comparable size in the same

industry.

Particulars Client Industry
Year 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23
Inventory Turnover 2.8 29 31 2.8
Gross MGl"gin 225% 22.7% 23.6% 22.2%

Various methods may be used to perform analytical procedures include:

a) Simple comparisons to performing complex analyses using advanced statistical techniques.

b) Analytical procedures may be applied to consolidated financial statements, components and

individual elements of information.

Thus, we can say that Analytical Procedures may be segregated into following major types:

a) comparison of client and industry data,

b) comparisonof client data with similar prior period data,

c) comparisonof client datawith client-determined expected results,

d) comparisonof client datawith auditor-determined expected results and

e) comparisonof client datawith expected results, using non financial data.
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SCOPE AND OBJECTIVE OF SA 520

1) SA 520 deals with the auditor's use of analytical procedures as substantive procedures
("substantive analytical procedures”), and as procedures near the end of the audit that assist
the auditor when forming an overall conclusion on the financial statements.

2) The objectives of the auditor are:

a) To obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence when using substantive analytical
procedures; and

b) To design and perform analytical procedures near the end of the audit that assist the
auditor when forming an overall conclusion as to whether the financial statements are
consistent with the auditor's understanding of the entity.

PURPOSE AND TIMING OF ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

Purpose of Analytical Procedures

1) Analytical procedures use comparisons and relationships to assess whether account balances
or other data appear reasonable.

Example I:

For instance, establishing the relationship that exists between certain balances included in the
Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss and comparing them with those that
existed between the same set of balances in the previous year, reconciling the physical
balances of assets with the relevant financial record; obtaining of account from the bankers,
account receivables and account payables and reconciling with relevant balances in books of
account; confirming amounts of outstanding income and expenses by preparing reconciliation
statements, etc. These are helpful in the detection of unusual state of allairs and mistakes in
accounts.

The overall tests can be extended for making inter-firm and intra-firm comparison of trading
results.

Example II:

If balances included in the Statement of Profit and Loss of an entity are compared with those
contained in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the same period of another entity engaged in
the same trade and working under similar circumstances, it would be possible to find out the
cause of the variationin the rate of profitability that exists.

Similarly, it would also be possible to compare the balances on the Statement of Profit and
Loss with that of the previous period, it would be possible to find out the reasons for increase
or decrease in the amount of profits of those years.
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Example III:

By setting up certain expenses ratios on the basis of balances included in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, for the year under audit, comparing them with the same ratios for the previous
year, it is possible to ascertain the extent of increase or decrease in various items of
expenditure inrelation to sales and that of trading profit in relation to sales.

If differences are found to be material, the auditor would ascertain the reasons thereof and
assess whether the accounts have been manipulated to inflate or suppress profits.

v Example IV:

An abnormal fall in the cost of manufacture or that in the administrative cost, apart from
economy in expenses, there could be no provision or less provision for expenses incurred in the
year. When it is suspected, the auditor should compare the entries in the outstanding book with
those in the previous year. He must also check the vouchers for one month immediately before
the close of the following years.

To verify that none of the expenses in the accounts under audit have been charged to the
accounts of the following years.

Often it is possible to independently verify the correctness of some of the items of expenses
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For instance, the cost of importing goods which are subjected to an ad-valorem duty at
uniform rate can be verified from the amount of duty paid. Similarly, a quantity of sugar sold by
sugar mill can be verified independently from the amount of excise duty paid.

Example V:

Similarly, the amount of any income or expenses which has a direct relationship with the amount
of profits or that of sales can be verified independently, e.g., commission paid to a manager
calculated on the basis of net profits, commission paid to a selling agent as percentage of sales,
etc. Such calculation of ratios, trends and comparisons is also termed as analytical review.

2) Thus, it is important to note that Analytical procedures may help identify the existence of
unusual transactions or events, and amounts, ratios, and trends that might indicate
matters that have audit implications.

3) Unusual or unexpected relationships that are identified may assist the auditor in identifying
risks of material misstatement, especially risks of material misstatement due to fraud.
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TIMING OF ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

Experienced auditors use analytical procedures in all stages of the audit. Analytical Procedures
are required in the planning phase and it is often done during the testing phase. In addition these
are also required during the completion phase

Procedures

[ Timing of Analytical J

I

|
Planning Testing | | Completion |
~ Phase Phase | | Phase

ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES IN PLANNING THE AUDIT

1) In the planning stage, analytical procedures assist the auditor in understanding the client's
business and in identifying areas of potential risk by indicating aspects of and developments in
the entity's business of which he was previously unaware.

2) This information will assist the auditor in determining the nature, timing and extent of his
other audit procedures.

3) Analytical procedures in planning the audit use both financial data and non-financial
information, such as number of employees, square feet of selling space, volume of goods
produced and similar information.

SUBSTANTIVE ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

1) The auditor's substantive procedures at the assertion level may be tests of details,
substantive analytical procedures, or a combination of both.

2) The decision about which audit procedures to perform, including whether to use substantive
analytical procedures, is based on the auditor's judgment about the expected effectiveness
and efficiency of the available audit procedures to reduce audit risk at the assertion level to
an acceptably low level.

3) The auditor may inquire of management as to the availability and reliability of information
needed to apply substantive analytical procedures, and the results of any such analytical
procedures performed by the entity.

4) It may be effective to use analytical data prepared by management, provided the auditor is
satisfied that such datais properly prepared.
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FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED FOR SUBSTANTIVE

ANALYTICAL AUDIT PROCEDURES:

The auditor should consider the following factors for Substantive Audit Procedures:

Availability The availability of reliable and relevant data will facilitate effective
of Data procedures.
Disaggregation | The degree of disaggregation in available data can directly affect the degree

Account Type

of its usefulness indetecting misstatements

a) Substantive analytical procedures are more useful for certain types of
accounts than for others.

b) Income statement accounts tend to be more predictable because they
reflect accumulated transactions over a period, whereas balance sheet
accounts represent the net effect of transactions at a point in time or
are subject to greater management judgment.

Source

a) Some classes of transactions tend to be more predictable because they
consist of numerous, similar transactions, (e.g., through routine
processes).

b) Whereas the transactions recorded by non-routine and estimation SCOTs
(Significant Classes of Transactions) are often subject to management
Judgment and therefore more difficult to predict.

Predictability

a) Substantive analytical procedures are more appropriate when an account
balance or relationships between items of data are predictable (e.g.,
between sales and cost of sales or between trade receivables and cash
receipts).

b) A predictable relationship is one that may reasonably be expected to exist
and continue over time,

Nature of
Assertion

a) Substantive analytical procedures may be more effective in providing
evidence for some assertions (e.g., completeness or valuation) than for
others (e.g., rights and obligations).

b) Predictive analytical procedures using data analytics can be used to
address completeness, valuation/measurement and occurrence.

Inherent Risk
or "What Can
Go Wrong”

a) When we are designing audit procedures to address an inherent risk or
"what can go wrong", we consider the nature of the risk of material
misstatement in order to determine if a substantive analytical procedure
can be used to obtain audit evidence.
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b) When inherent risk is higher, we may design tests of details to address the
higher inherent risk.

¢) Whensignificant risks have been identified, audit evidence obtained solely
from substantive analytical procedures is unlikely to be sufficient.

TECHNIQUES AVAILABLE AS SUBSTANTIVE

ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

The design of a substantive analytical procedure is limited only by the availability of reliable data
and the experience and creativity of the audit team. Substantive analytical procedures generally
take one of the following forms:

Trend analysis |1) A commonly used technique is the comparison of current data with the
prior period balance or with a trend in two or more prior period balances.

2) We evaluate whether the current balance of an account moves in line with
the trend established with previous balances for that account or based on
anunderstanding of factors that may cause the account to change.

3) In other words, frend analysis implies analysing account fluctuations by
comparing current year to prior year information and, also, to information
derived over several years.

Example:

The auditor may compare the salary paid by the company during the year under

audit with the salary paid by the company for several earlier years. There may

be some percentage increase in the salary expense over the years. However, an
unusual increase in such expense amount may indicate that fraudulent
payments are being made to fake employees.

Ratio analysis | 1) Ratio analysis is useful for analysing asset and liability accounts as well as
revenue and expense accounts.

2) Anindividual balance sheet account is difficult to predict on its own, but its
relationship to another account is often more predictable (e.g., the trade
receivables balance related to sales).

3) Ratios can also be compared over time or to the ratios of separate entities
within the group, or with the ratios of other companies in the same industry.

4) Example: Financial ratios may include:
a) Tradereceivables orinventory turnover
b) Freight expense asapercentage of sales revenue

@ 7507545533 Page- 1D.41 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com




- SA 500 Series CA Rishabh Jain

Reasonableness |1) Unlike trend analysis, this analytical procedure does not rely on events of
tests prior periods, but upon non-financial data for the audit period under
consideration (e.g., occupancy rates to estimate rental income or interest
rates to estimate intferest income or expense).

2) These tests are generally more applicable to income statement accounts
and certain accrual or prepayment accounts.

3) In other words, these tests are made by reviewing the relationship of
certainaccount balances to other balances for reasonableness of amounts.

4) Example:
a) Interestexpense againstinterest bearingobligations
b) Raw Material Consumption to Production (quantity)

c) Wastage & Scrap % against production & raw material consumption
(quantity)

d) Work-in-Progress based on issued of materials & Sales (quantity)

e) Salesdiscountsand commissions against sales volume
f) Rental revenues based onoccupancy of premises

Structural A modeling fool constructs a statistical model from financial and/or non-
modeling financial data of prior accounting periods to predict current account balances
(e.g.,linear regression).

ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES USED AS SUBSTANTIVE TESTS

When designing and performing substantive analytical procedures, either alone or in combination
with tests of details, as substantive procedures in accordance with SA 330, the auditor shall:

1) Determine the suitability of particular substantive analytical procedures for given assertions,

taking account of the assessed risks of material misstatement and tests of details, if any, for
these dssertions;

2) Evaluate the reliability of data from which the auditor's expectation of recorded amounts or
. ratios is developed, faking account of source, comparability, and nature and relevance of
information available, and controls over preparation;

3) Develop an expectation of recorded amounts or ratios and evaluate whether the expectation is
sullciently precise to identify a misstatement that, individually or when aggregated with other
misstatements, may cause the financial statements to be materially misstated; and

4) Determine the amount of any difference of recorded amounts from expected values that is
acceptable without further investigation.
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SUITABILITY OF PARTICULAR ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

FOR GIVEN ASSERTIONS

1) Substantive analytical procedures are generally more applicable to large volumes of
transactions that tend to be predictable over time.

2) The application of planned analytical procedures is based on the expectation that relationships
among dataexist and continue in the absence of known conditions to the contrary.

3) However, the suitability of a particular analytical procedure will depend upon the auditor's
assessment of how effective it will be in detecting a misstatement that, individually or when
aggregated with other misstatements, may cause the financial statements to be materially
misstated.

4) In some cases, even an unsophisticated predictive model may be effective as an analytical
procedure.

Different types of analytical procedures provide different levels of assurance.

a) Analytical procedures involving, for example, the prediction of total rental income on a building
divided into apartments, taking the rental rates, the number of apartments and vacancy rates
into consideration, can provide persuasive evidence and may eliminate the need for further
verification by means of tests of details, provided the elements are appropriately verified.

b) Incontrast, calculation and comparison of gross margin percentages as a means of confirming a
revenue figure may provide less persuasive evidence but may provide useful corroboration if
used in combination with other audit procedures.

c) Thedetermination of the suitability of particular substantive analytical procedure is influenced
by the nature of the assertion and the auditor's assessment of the risk of material
misstatement.

For example, if controls over sales order processing are weak, the auditor may place more
reliance on tests of details rather than on substantive analytical procedures for assertions
related to receivables.

Particular substantive analytical procedures may also be considered suitable when tests of details
are performed on the same assertion.

For example, when obtaining audit evidence regarding the valuation assertion for accounts
receivable balances, the auditor may apply analytical procedures to an aging of customers’
accounts in addition to performing tests of details on subsequent cash receipts to determine the
collectability of the receivables.
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THE RELIABILITY OF DATA

1) The reliability of data is influenced by its source and nature and is dependent on the
circumstances under which it is obtained.

2) Accordingly, the following are relevant when determining whether data is reliable for purposes
‘ of designing substantive analytical procedures:

a) Source of the information available. For example, information may be more reliable when
: it is obtained from independent sources outside the entity;

b) Comparability of the information available. For example, broad industry data may need
to be supplemented to be comparable fto that of an entity that produces and sells
specialised products;

c) Nature and relevance of the information available. For example, whether budgets have
been established as results to be expected rather than as goals to be achieved; and

d) Controls over the preparation of the information that are designed to ensure its
completeness, accuracy and validity. For example, controls over the preparation, review
and maintenance of budgefts.

3) The auditor may consider testing the operating effectiveness of controls, if any, over the
entity's preparation of information used by the auditor in performing substantive analytical
procedures in response to assessed risks.

4) When such controls are effective, the auditor generally has greater confidence in the
reliability of the informationand, therefore, in the results of analytical procedures.

5) The operating effectiveness of controls over non-financial information may often be ‘res‘red in
conjunction with other tests of controls.

EVALUATION OF WHETHER THE EXPECTATION

IS SUFFICIENTLY PRECISE

Matters relevant to the auditor’s evaluation of whether the expectation can be developed
sufficiently precisely to identify a misstatement that, when aggregated with other misstatements,
y may cause the financial statements to be materially misstated, include:

a) The accuracy with which the expected results of substantive analytical procedures can be
predicted.

For example, the auditor may expect greater consistency in comparing gross profit margins
from one period to another than in comparing discretionary expenses, such as research or
advertising.

b) The degree to which information can be disaggregated.

For example, substantive analytical procedures may be more effective when applied to
financial information on individual sections of an operation or to financial statements of
components of a diversified entity, than when applied to the financial statements of the entity
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asawhole.
¢) The availability of the information, both financial and non-financial.

For example, the auditor may consider whether financial information, such as budgets or
forecasts, and non-financial information, such as the number of units produced or sold, is
available to design substantive analytical procedures. If the information is available, the
auditor may also consider the reliability of the information.

AMOUNT OF DIFFERENCE OF RECORDED AMOUNT

FROM EXPECTED VALUES THAT IS ACCEPTABLE

1)  The auditor's determination of the amount of difference from the expectation that can be
accepted without further investigation is influenced by materiality and the consistency with
the desired level of assurance, takihg account of the possibility that a misstatement,
individually or when aggregated with other misstatements, may cause the financial statements
to be materially misstated.

2) SA 330 requires the auditor fo obtain more persuasive audit evidence the higher the
auditor's assessment of risk.

3) Accordingly, as the assessed risk increases, the achieve the amount of difference considered
acceptable without investigation decreases in order to achieve the desired level of persuasive
evidence.

INVESTIGATING RESULTS OF ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

If analytical procedures performed in accordance with SA 520 identify fluctuations or
relationships that are inconsistent with other relevant information or that differ from expected
values by asignificant amount, the auditor shall investigate such dillerences by:

a) Inquiring of management and obtaining appropriate audit evidence relevant to
management's responses: Audit evidence relevant to management's responses may be
obtained by evaluating those responses taking into account the auditor's understanding of the
entity and its environment, and with other audit evidence obtained during the course of the
audit.

b) Performing other audit procedures as necessary in the circumstances: The need to perform
other audit procedures may arise when, for example, management is unable to provide an
explanation, or the explanation, together with the audit evidence obtained relevant to
management's response, is not considered adequate.
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ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES THAT ASSIST

WHEN FORMING AN OVERALL CONCLUSION

1) The conclusions drawn from the results of analytical procedures designed and performed in
accordance with, are intended fo corroborate conclusions formed during the audit of individual
« components or elements of the financial statements. .

2) This assists the auditor to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the auditor's
opinion.

3) The results of such analytical procedures may identify a previously unrecognized risk of
material misstatement.

4) TInsuch circumstances, SA 315 requires the auditor to revise the auditor's assessment of the
risks of material misstatement and modify the further planned audit procedures accordi ngly.
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SA 530 Audit Sampling

MEANING OF AUDIT SAMPLING

-

) According to SA 530 "Audit sampling”, 'audit sampling' refers to the application of audit
procedures to less than 100% of items within a population relevant under the audit, such that
all sampling units (i.e., all the items in the population) have an equal chance of selection.

) This is to ensure that the items selected represent the entire population which enables the
auditor o draw conclusions and express his opinion based on a pre-determined ob jective.

ny

w

) Theobjective of the auditor when using audit sampling is to provide a reasonable basis for the
auditor to draw conclusions about the population from which the sample is selected.

SCOPE OF SA 530

(WY

) SA 530 becomes applicable when the auditor has decided to use audit sampling in performing
audit procedures. This standard deals with the auditor's use of -

a) Statisticaland
b) Non-statistical sampling

AN ]
~

When desighing and selecting the-

a) audit sample,

b) performing tests of controls and tests of details, and
c) evaluating the results from the sample.

w

) SA 500 "Audit Evidence”, deals with the auditor's responsibility to design and perform audit
procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to be able to draw reasonable
conclusions oh which o base the audit opinion.

SN

) SA500 lays down the means available to the auditor for selecting the items for testing. One of
those is Audit Sampling. Hence SA 530 complement SA 500.

POPULATION

1) Population refers tothe entire set of data fromwhich asample is selected and about which the
auditor wishes to draw conclusions.
2) The auditor should select sample items in such a way that the sample can be expected to be

representative of the population. This requires that all items in the population have an
opportunity of being selected.
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CHARACTERISTICS OF POPULATION

(a) Appropriateness:

1)  The auditor will need to determine that the population from which the sample is drawn is
appropriate for the specific audit objective.

2) Appropriate means population from which the samples are drawn shall be relevant for the
specific objective under audit this is because when the samples are drawn, the audit procedures
are applied on the sample and the conclusions are projected on the population.

3) TItisimportant for the auditor to ensure that the population is appropriate fo the objective of
the audit procedure, which will include consideration of the direction of testing.

Example:

a) If the auditor's objective were to test for overstatement of accounts receivable, the
population could be defined as the accounts receivable listing.

b) On the other hand, when testing for understatement of accounts payable, the population
would not be the accounts payable listing, but rather subsequent disbursements, unpaid
invoices, suppliers’' statements, unmatched receiving reports, or other populations that
would provide audit evidence of understatement of accounts payable.

(b) Completeness:

1)  The population also heeds to be complete, which means that if the auditor intends to use the
sample to draw conclusions about whether a control activity is operated effectively during the
financial reporting period, the population needs to include all relevant items i.e., all the
activities that form part of that relevant internal control, throughout the entire period.

2) If population is complete in all respects, the conclusions drawn on the population will be
considered to be reasonable.

(c) Reliable:

1) When performing the audit sampling, the auditor performs audit procedures to ensure that the
information uponwhich the audit sampling is performed is sufficiently complete and accurate.

2) Auditor should obtain evidence about the reliability of population. If population is not reliable
with respect to accuracy and source, the sample drawn will definitely not be relevant for the
specific audit objective.

@ 7507545533 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com

Page- 1D.49



SA 500 Series CA Rishabh Jain
SAMPLING UNIT

1) Theindividual items that make up the population are known as sampling units. The population can
be divided into sampling units ina variety of ways.

2) It is aselection from the population that is used as an extrapolation of the population. Audit

. procedures are applied on these units and the conclusions drawn from them are projected on
the population.
. 3) Insimple words, conclusions drawn on the sample becomes the conclusion of the population

from where it is drawn.

For Example: If the auditor's objective were to test the validity of accounts receivables, the
sampling unit could be defined as customer balances or individual customer invoices. The auditor
defines the sampling unit in order to obtain an efficient and effective sample to achieve the
particular audit objectives. The conclusion on the population is based on the audit procedures
applied on the sampling unit.

SAMPLE MUST BE REPRESENTATIVE

Whatever may be the approach non-statistical or statistical sampling, the sample must be
representative. This means that it must be closely similar to the whole population although not
necessarily exactly the same. The sample must be large enough to provide statistically meaningful
results.

Sampling Process
is performed on

e

Test of controls Test of details
to identify deviations from to identify misstatements of
expected internal controls account balances and class of

transactions
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| APPROACHES TO SAMPLING

1)  Audit sampling enables the auditor to obtain and evaluate audit evidence about some
characteristic of the items selected in order to form or assist in forming a conclusion concerning
the population from which the sample is drawn.

2)  Audit sampling can be applied using either
a) Non-statistical or
b) Statistical sampling

Approaches to Sampling

|
| _1

Statistical Sampling Statistical Sampling

1) Statistical samplingis
a)  Anapproach to sampling that has the random selection of the sample items; and

b) The use of probability theory to evaluate sample results, including measurement of
sampling risk characteristics.

2) Sample is chosen by applying certain mathematical and statistical methods. A sampling
approach that does not have above characteristics is considered non-statistical sampling.

The decision whether fo use a statistical or non-statistical sampling approach is a matter for
the auditor's judgment: however, sample size is not a valid criterion to distinguish between
statistical and non-statistical approaches.

STATISTICAL SAMPLING - MORE SCIENTIFIC

1) Audit testing done through this approach is more scientific than testing based entirely on the
auditor’s own judgment because it involves use of mathematical laws of probability in
determining the appropriate sample size in varying circumstances.

2) Statistical sampling has reasonably wide application where a population to be tested consists of
a large number of similar items and more in the case of transactions involving compliance
testing, trade receivables' confirmation, payroll checking, vouching of invoices and petty
cash vouchers.

3) ThereIsno personal bias of the auditor in case of statistical sampling. Since it is scientific, the
results of sample can be evaluated and projected on the whole population in a more reliable
manner.

4) Inlargerorganisations, with huge transactions, statistical sampling is always recommended as
it is unbiased and the samples selected are not prejudged.
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For Example: An auditor while verifying the Purchases during the year realised that the
purchase transactions in that year are more than 45,000 in number, then in such case,
statistical sampling will be highly recommended in the audit program. Random Sampling is the
method you decide to choose sample in such a situation.

NON-STATISTICAL SAMPLING

1) Under this approach, the sample size and its composition are determined on the basis of the
personal experience and knowledge of the auditor.

2) This approach has been in common application for many years because of its simplicity in
operation.

3) Traditionally, the auditor on the basis of his personal experience will determine the size of the
sample and express it in ferms that number of pages or personal accounts in the purchases or
sales ledger to be checked.

For example, March, June and September may be selected in year one and dillerent months
would be selected in the next year.

4) An attempt would be made to avoid establishing a pattern of selection year after year to
maintain an element of surprise as to what the auditor is going to check. It is a common
practice to check large number of items towards the close of the year so that the adequacy of
cut-of f procedures can also be determined. Also, because year end transaction are prone to
high risk of misappropriation.

The non-statistical sampling is criticized on the grounds that it is neither objective nor
scientific:

a) The expected degree of objectivity cannot be assured in non-statistical sampling because
the risk of personal bias in selection of sample items cannot be eliminated.

b) The closeness of the qualities projected by the sample results with that of the whole
population cannot be measured because the sample has not been selected in accordance with
the mathematically based statistical techniques.

‘ c) However, it may be stated that the auditor with his experience and knowledge of the client's
business can evaluate accurately enough the sample findings to make audit decision and the
mathematical proof of accuracy in some cases may be a luxury which the auditor cannot allord.

Note: This method is simple to operate but sometimes the sample may not be a true

representative of the total population because of personal bias and no scientific method of
selection.
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SAMPLING VS TRADITIONAL METHOD OF AUDITING

1) Inmost of the circumstances, the evidence available is not conclusive and the auditor always
takes a calculated risk in giving his opinion. Even by undertaking hundred percent checking of
the transactions, the auditor does not derive absolute satisfaction.

2) Thisstate of uneasiness led pragmatic auditors to adept the statistica! theory of sampiing to
derive the necessary satisfaction about the state of affairs by checking only a part of the total
population of entries.

3) Thesatisfaction he used to derive earlier, by checking all the transactions, can be derived by a
sample checking provided he can put reliance on the internal controls and checks within the
client’s organisation because they provide the reliability of the records.

4) What should be the extent of desirable checking in any particular matter is for auditor to judge
on basis of his opinion about the state of control in a particular area.

5) If controlis satisfactory inits design and implementation, a much smaller sample can give the
auditor the necessary reliability of the result he obtains.

6) On the other hand, if in certain areas controls are slack or not properly implemented, the
auditor may have fo take a much larger sample for getting satisfactory result.

7) Itcannever bringcomplete reliability: it cannot give precisely accurate results.
8) Itisaprocessof estimation.
9) Itmay havesome error.

10) What error is tolerable for a particular matter under examination is a matter of the
individual's judgment in that particular case.

The factors that should be considered for deciding upon the extent
of checking on a sampling plan are following:

a) Sizeof theorganisationunder audit.

b) Stateof the internal control.

c)  Adequacy and reliability of books and records.
d) Tolerableerrorrange.

e) Degreeof the desired confidence.

APPROPRIATENESS OF SAMPLING APPROACHES

In statistical sampling, the sample results are measurable as to the adequacy and reliability of the
audit objectives whereas in non-statistical sampling the auditor's opinion determines the sample
size but it cannot be measured how far the sample size would fulfill the audit objective.

The advantages of statistical sampling may be summarized as follows:

a) The amount of testing (sample size) does not increase in proportion to the increase in the size
of the area (universe) tested.
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b) Thesampleselectionismore objective and thereby more defensible.

¢) The method provides a means of estimating the minimum sample size associated with a
specified risk and precision.

d) It provides a means for deriving a “calculated risk” and corresponding precision (sampling
error)i.e. the probable difference in result due o the use of a sample in lieu of examining all the
records in the group (universe), using the same audit procedures.

e) It may provide abetter description of alarge mass of data than a complete examination of all
the data, since non-sampling errors such as processing and clerical mistakes are not as large.

f) It is widely accepted way of sampling as it is more scientific, without personal bias and the
result of sample can be evaluated and projected in more reliable way.

Under some audit circumstances, statistical sampling methods may not be appropriate.The
auditor should not attempt o use statistical sampling when another approach is either necessary
or will provide satisfactory information in less time or with less effort, for instance when exact
accuracy is required or in case of legal requirements etc.

Sometimes the audit staff has no knowledge about sampling technique used, in such circumstances
using statistical sampling becomes complex and inappropriate.

SAMPLING PROCESS

Sample Design

¥

Sample Size

.

Sample Selection

¥

Audit Procedures

¥

Nature and Cause of Deviation and

¥

Projecting

4

Evaluating Results of Audit
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SAMPLE DESIGN, SIZE AND SELECTION OF ITEMS FOR TESTING

1) When designing an audit sample, the auditor shall consider the purpose of the audit
procedures and the characteristics of the population from which the sample will be drawn.

2) The auditor shall determine a sample size sufficient to reduce sampling risk to an acceptably
low level.

3) The auditor shall select items for the sample in such a way that each sampling unit in the
population has a chance of selection.

4) Sample selected must be representative of the population.

Sample Design

When designing an audit sample,

a) The auditor's consideration includes the specific purpose to be achieved and the combination
of audit procedures that is likely to best achieve that purpose.

b) Consideration of the nature of the audit evidence sought and possible deviation or
misstatement conditions or other characteristics relating to that audit evidence will assist the
auditor in defining what constitutes a deviation or misstatement and what population to use for
sampling.

¢) Infulfilling the requirement of SA 500 Audit Evidence, when performing audit sampling, the
auditor performs audit procedures to obtain evidence that the population from which the audit
sample is drawn is complete.

Aspects to be kept in mind:

a) The auditor's consideration of the purpose of the audit procedure includes a clear
understanding of what constitutes a deviation or misstatement so that all, and only, those
conditions that are relevant to the purpose of the audit procedure are included in the
evaluation of deviations or projection of misstatements.

Example: In a test of details relating to the existence of accounts receivable, such as
confirmation, payments made by the customer before the confirmation date but received
shortly after that date by the client, are not considered a misstatement. Also, a mis-
posting between customer accounts does not affect the total accounts receivable balance.

b) Therefore, it may not be appropriate to consider this a misstatement in evaluating the sample
results of this particular audit procedure, even though it may have animportant effect on other
areas of the audit, such as the assessment of the risk of fraud or the adequacy of the allowance
for doubtful accounts.

c) Inconsidering the characteristics of a population, for tests of controls, the auditor makes an
assessment of the expected rate of deviation based on the auditor's understanding of the
relevant controls or on the examination of a small number of items from the population. This
assessment is made in order to design an audit sample and to determine sample size.

Example: If the expected rate of deviation is unacceptably high, the auditor will normally
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decide not to perform tests of controls.

d) Similarly, for tests of details, the auditor makes an assessment of the expected
misstatement in the population. If the expected misstatement is high, 100% examination or use
of alarge sample size may be appropriate when performing tests of details.

STRATIFICATION AND VALUE-WEIGHTED SELECTION

In considering the characteristics of the population from which the sample will be drawn, the
auditor may determine that stratification or value-weighted selection technique is appropriate. SA
930 provides guidance to the auditor on the use of stratification and value-weighted sampling
techniques.

Stratification

1) Audit efficiency may be improved if the auditor stratifies a population by dividing it into
discrete sub-populations which have an identifying characteristic.

2) The objective of stratification is to reduce the variability of items within each stratum and
therefore allow sample size to be reduced without increasing sampling risk.

3) When performing tests of details, the population is often stratified by monetary value. This
allows greater audit effort to be directed to the larger value items, as these items may
contain the greatest potential misstatement in terms of overstatement.

4) Similarly, a population may be stratified according to a particular characteristic that indicates
a higher risk of misstatement, for example, when testing the allowance for doubtful accounts
inthe valuation of accounts receivable, balances may be stratified by age.

5) The results of audit procedures applied to a sample of items within a stratum can only be
projected to the items that make up that stratum. To draw a conclusion on the entire
population, the auditor will need to consider the risk of material misstatement in relation to
whatever other strata make up the entire population

6) The results of samples from the units drawn under each sub population are projected fo that
respective stratum. In order To draw an opinion on the overall population, the auditor needs to
combine the results of all the stratum to check for possible deviation or risk of material
misstatement.

7) Projected misstatements of each stratum will be combined together to consider the possible
effect of misstatement in the account balances and class of transactions.

Stratification: Dividing a population into discrete sub population which have identifying
characteristics is called as Stratification. Each Sub population is called as Stratum and units under
those sub population are referred to as Strata.

Example - 20% of the items ina population may make up 90% of the value of an account balance. The
auditor may decide to examine a sample of these items. The auditor evaluates the results of this
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sample and reaches a conclusion on the 90% of value separately from the remaining 10% (on which a
further sample or other means of gathering audit evidence will be used, or which may be considered
immaterial).

Value-Weighted Selection

1) When performing tests of details, it may be efficient to identify the sampling unit as the
individual monetary units that make up the population. Having selected specific monetary units
from within the population,

For example, the accounts receivable balance, the auditor may then examine the particular
items,

For example, individual balances, that contain those monetary units.

2) Onebenefit of this approach to defining the sampling unit is that audit effort is directed to the
larger value items because they have a greater chance of selection and can result in smaller
sample sizes.

3) This approach may be used in conjunction with the systematic method of sample selection and
is most efficient when selecting items using random selection.

4) 1In value weighted selection, the sample size, its selection and evaluation will result in a
conclusion in monetary amounts.

SAMPLE SELECTION METHODS

1) Sample should be selected in such a manner that it is representative of the population from
which the sample is being selected. It will necessitate that each item in the population has an
equal chance of being included in the sample.

2) With statistical sampling, sample items are selected in a way that each sampling unit has a
known probability of being selected.

3) Withnon-statistical sampling, judgment is used to select sample items. Because the purpose of
sampling is to provide a reasonable basis for the auditor to draw conclusions about the
population from which the sample is selected, it is important that the auditor selects a
representative sample, so that bias is avoided, by choosing sample items which have
characteristics typical of the population.

4) The principal methods of selecting samples are the use of random selection, systematic
selection and haphazard selection.
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Sample Selection Methods

[ | | l
Random Systematic Monetary Uniti Block Haphazard
Sampling Sampling Sampling Sampling Sampling

' RANDOM SAMPLING |

Random selection ensures that all items in the population or within each stratum have a known
chance of selection. It may involve use of random number tables. Random sampling includes two very
popular methods which are discussed below -

(i) Simple Random Sampling:

a) Under this method each unit of the whole population e.g. purchase or sales invoice has an equal
chance of being selected.

b) It is considered that random number tables are simple and easy to use and also provide
assurance that the auditors' bias does not allect the selection.

c) Each item in a population is selected by use of random number table either with a help of
computer or picking up a number in a random way (may be randomly from a drum).

d) Today random numbers are also generated using various applications on the cellphones like the
random number generator.

e) This method is considered appropriate provided the population to be sampled consists of
reasonably similar units and fall within a reasonable range i.e it is suitable for a homogeneous
population having a similar range.

Example: The population can be considered homogeneous, if say, trade receivables balances fall
within the range of ¥ 55,000 to ¥ 2,25,000 and not in the range between¥ 525 t0 ¥ 10,50,000.

(ii) Stratified Sampling:

a) This method involves dividing the whole population to be tested in a few separate groups called
strata and taking a sample from each of them. Each stratum is treated as if it was a separate
populationand if proportionate of items are selected from each of these stratum.

b) The number of groups into which the whole population has to be divided is determined on the
basis of auditor judgment.

c) Thereasoning behind the stratified sampling is that for a highly diversified population, weights
should be allocated to reflect these dillerences. This is achieved by selecting dillerent
proportions from each strata. It can be seen that the stratified sampling is simply an
extension of simple random sampling.
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Example: Inthe above case, trade receivables balances may be divided into four groups as follows:
(i) balancesinexcessof ¥ 10,00,000;

(ii) balances in the range of ¥7,75,001 0% 10,00,000;

(iii) balances inthe range of ¥5,50,001t037,75,000;

(iv) balances inthe range of ¥2,25,001 103 5,50,000; and

(v) balances¥2,25,000 and below.

From these above groups the auditor may pick up different percentage of items from each of the
group. From the top group i.e. balances in excess of ¥ 10,00,000, the auditor may examine all the

items; from the second group 25 per cent of the items; from the third group 10 per cent of the
items; and from the lowest group 2 per cent of the items may be selected.

Random sample is chosen from each stratum using random number tables. Therefore, we can say
that random selection method is applied through random number generators, for example, random
number tables.

Note:

Stratification means dividing heterogeneous (Diversified) population into Homogeneous (having
similar characteristics) sub population, where samples are drawn from each sub population.

INTERVAL SAMPLING OR SYSTEMATIC SAMPLING

1) Systematic selection is a selection method in which the number of sampling units in the
population is divided by the sample size to give a sampling interval, for example 50, and having
determined a starting point within the first 50, each 50™ sampling unit thereafter is selected.

2) Although the starting point may be determined haphazardly, the sample is more likely to be
truly random if it is determined by use of a computerized random number generator or random
number tables.

3) When using systematic selection, the auditor would need to determine that sampling units
within the population are not structured in such a way that the sampling interval corresponds
with a particular pattern in the population.

4) Tominimize the effect of the possible known buyers through a pattern in the population, more
than one starting point may be taken. The multiple random starting point is taken because it
minimize the risk of interval sampling patternwith that of the population being sampled.

MONETARY UNIT SAMPLING

It is a type of value-weighted selection in which sample size, selection and evaluation results in a
conclusion in monetary amounts.
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HAPHAZARD SAMPLING

1) Haphazard selection, in which the auditor selects the sample without following a structured
technique. Although no structured technique is used, the auditor would nonetheless avoid any
conscious bias or predictability (for example, avoiding dillcult to locate items, or always
choosing or avoiding the first or last entries on a page) and thus attempt to ensure that all
items in the population have a chance of selection.

2) Haphazard selection is not appropriate when using statistical sampling.

3) Haphazard sampling has no structured approach, does not involve judgement and does not
even use the random number tables.

BLOCK SAMPLING

1) This method involves selection of a block(s) of contiguous items from within the population.
Block selection cannot ordinarily be used in audit sampling because most populations are
structured such that items in a sequence can be expected to have similar characteristics to
each other, but different characteristics from items elsewhere in the population.

2)  Although in some circumstances it may be an appropriate audit procedure to examine a block
of items, it would rarely be an appropriate sample selection technique when the auditor
intends to draw valid inferences about the entire population based on the sample.

3) Usudlly, a range of continuous transaction shall have similar characteristics, therefore,
selection of a group at one time will not give a reasonable basis for opinion on the overall
population as different types of transactions and unusual transactions may not be covered in
the group takenall at once.

4) Further, if the client has the idea of the block selection pattern of the auditor, then material
misstafements and deviations can be easily overlooked by management's practice of recording
them.

5) Thereisaclose similarity between this method and non-statistical sampling.

6) Consequently, it has similar characteristics, namely, simplicity and economy. On the other
hand, there is arisk of bias and of establishing a pattern of selection which may be noted by the
auditees.

Example: Take the first 200 sales invoices from the sales day book in the month of September;
alternatively take any four blocks of 50 sales invoices.

Therefore, once the first item in the block is selected, the rest of the block follows items to the
completion.
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| SAMPLE SIZE

1) The auditor shall determine a sample size sufficient to reduce sampling risk to an acceptably
low level.

2) Thelevel of sampling risk that the auditor is willing to accept affects the sample size required.

3) The lower the risk the auditor is willing to accept, the greater the sample size will need to
be.

4) The sample size can be determined by the application of a statistically-based formula or
through the exercise of professional judgment. There are various factors typically have on
the determination of sample size.

5) When circumstances are similar, the effect on sample size of factors will be similar
regardless of whether a statistical or non- statistical approach is chosen.

EXAMPLES OF FACTORS AFFECTING SAMPLE SIZE

For Test of Controls

The following are factors that the auditor may consider when determining the sample size for tests
of controls. These factors, which need to be considered together, assume the auditor does not
modify the nature or timing of tests of controls or otherwise modify the approach to substantive
procedures in response to assessed risks.

1) When there is an increase in the extent to which the auditor's risk assessment takes into
account relevant controls.

a) The more assurance the auditor intends to obtain from the operating effectiveness of
controls, the lower the auditor's assessment of the risk of material misstatement will
be, and the larger the sample size will need to be.

b) When the auditor's assessment of the risk of material misstatement at the assertion level
includes an expectation of the operating effectiveness of controls, the auditor is required
to perform tests of controls.

¢) Other things being equal, the greater the reliance the auditor places on the operating
effectiveness of controls in the risk assessment, the greater is the extent of the
auditor's tests of controls (and therefore, the sample size is increased). Thus, sample
size will increase.

2) If thereis anincrease in the tolerable rate of deviation. Then sample size will decrease, as
lower the tolerable rate of deviation, larger the sample size needs to be.

Note: Tolerable error is the maximum error in the population that auditor is ready to
accept in a given sample size. Smaller the tolerable error, larger will be the sample size.
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3)

4)

5)

When there is an increase in the expected rate of deviation of the population to be tested
then sample size will increase, as higher the expected rate of deviation, larger the sample
size needs to be so that the auditor is in a position to make a reasonable estimate of the
actual rate of deviation.

Factors relevant to the auditor's consideration of the expected rate of deviation include :

a) the auditor's understanding of the business (in particular, risk assessment procedures
undertaken to obtain an understanding of internal control),

b) changes inpersonnelor ininternal control,

¢) the results of audit procedures applied in prior periods and the results of other audit
procedures.

An increase in the auditor's desired level of assurance that the tolerable rate of deviation
is not exceeded by the actual rate of deviation in the population will increase the sample
size. Thus, the greater the level of assurance that the auditor desires that the results of the
sample are in fact indicative of the actual incidence of deviation in the population, the larger
the sample size needs to be.

In case of large populations, the actual size of the population has little, if any, effect on
sample size. For small populations however, audit sampling may not be as efficient as
alternative means of obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence. Therefore, there will be
negligible effect on sample size due to increase in the number of sampling units in the
population. |

For Test of Details

The following are factors that the auditor may consider when determining the sample size for tests
of details. These factors, which need to be considered together, assume the auditor does not
modify the approach to tests of controls or otherwise modify the nature or timing of substantive
procedures in response to the assessed risks.

1)

The higher the auditor's assessment of the risk of material misstatement, the larger the
sample size needs to be.

a) Theaudifor's assessment of the risk of material misstatement is allected by inherent risk
and control risk.

For example, if the auditor does not perform tests of controls, the auditor's risk
assessment cannot be reduced for the effective operation of internal controls with
respect to the particular assertion.

b) Therefore, inorder fo reduce audit risk to an acceptably low level, the auditor needs a low
detection risk and will rely more on substantive procedures.

¢) The more audit evidence that is obtained from tests of details (that is, the lower the
detectionrisk), the larger the sample size will need to be.
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d) Thus we can say that there will be an increase in sample size in case of an increase in
the auditor's assessment of the risk of material misstatement.

2) The more the auditor is relying on other substantive procedures (tests of details or
substantive analytical procedures) to reduce to an acceptable level the detection risk
regarding a particular population, the less assurance the auditor will require from sampling
and, therefore, the smaller the sample size can be.

Hence, if there is an increase in the use of other substantive procedures directed at the same
assertion, the size of sample will decrease.

3) Anincrease in the auditor's desired level of assurance that tolerable misstatement is not
exceeded by actual misstatement in the population will increase the sample size.

Hence, greater the level of assurance that the auditor requires that the results of the sample
are in fact indicative of the actual amount of misstatement in the population, the larger the
sample size needs to be.

4) An increase in tolerable misstatement will decrease the sample size as lower the tolerable
misstatement, the larger the sample size needs to be.

5) The greater the amount of misstatement the auditor expects to find in the population, the
larger the sample size needs to be in order to make a reasonable estimate of the actual
amount of misstatement in the population.

Factors relevant to the auditor's consideration of the expected misstatement amount
include:

a) theextent, towhichitem valuesare determined subjectively,

b) theresultsof risk assessment procedures,

¢) theresultsof testsof control, the results of audit procedures applied in prior periods, and
d) theresultsof other substantive procedures.

So, sample size will increase in case of an increase in the amount of misstatement the
auditor expects to find in the population.

6) When stratification of the population is appropriate then sample size will decrease as when
there is a wide range (variability) in the monetary size of items in the population, it may be
useful to stratify the population.

When a population can be appropriately stratified, the aggregate of the sample sizes from the
stratagenerally will be less than the sample size that would have been required to attain a given
level of sampling risk, had one sample been drawn from the whole population.

7) There will be negligible effect on sample size due to number of sampling units in the
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population.

a) For large populations, the actual size of the population has little, if any, effect on sample
size. Thus, for small populations, audit sampling is often not as efficient as alternative
means of obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

b) However, when using monetary unit sampling, an increase in the monetary value of the
population increases sample size, unless this is offset by a proportional increase in
materiality for the financial statements as a whole (and, if applicable, materiality level or
levels for particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures as per SA
320).

NOTE TO FACTORS AFFECTING SAMPLE SIZE

Factors 1) Tolerable Error
2) Expected Error
3) Sampling Risk

1) Tolerable | Maximum Error in population that auditor is ready to accept for a given sample
Error size. If smaller tolerable error, big sample size is needed.

In compliance | Maximum rate of deviation from established procedure of
procedure Internal Control.

In substantive | Maximum monetary error.
procedure

2) Expected | If auditor expects possibility of error in population, larger sample size is required.

Error If population is expected fo be free of misstatement, smaller sample size is
needed.

3) Sampling | a) Itarise from possibility that Auditor's conclusion based upon sample, may be
Risk different from, conclusion that would have been reached, if same audit
procedures were applied on entire population.

b) If acceptable sampling risk is low, large sample is needed.
c) Ifarisesinbothcompliance procedures & substantive procedure.

In case of Risk of Based upon sample, auditor concludes that
Compliance | under Internal Control System is not adequate, however
Procedure reliance actually it is not so.

Based upon sample, auditor concludes that
Internal Controls are very effective & thus
decides fo rely on them, however it is not so in
reality.
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In case of | Risk of Based upon sample, auditor concludes that
Substantive | incorrect transactions/ balances are materially misstated,
Procedure Rejection whereas in fact these are not.
Risk of Based upon sample auditor concludes that
incorrect transactions/ balances are not materially
Acceptance | misstated while infact these are misstated.

Risk of under reliance on Risk of over reliance on
Test on Controls Test of Controls
Risk of incorrect rejection in Risk of incorrect acceptance
substantive Procedures in case of substantive procedures
Leads to inefficiency in the Effects the effectiveness of
conduct of audit. audit. It leads to erroneous audit opinion

SAMPLING AND NON-SAMPLING RISK

Sampling Risk

The risk that the auditor's conclusion based on a sample may be dillerent from the conclusion if the
entire population were subjected to the same audit procedure.

This risk will always be in existence when auditor uses sampling technique in conducting his audit
IF THE ACCEPTABLE SAMPLING RISK IS LOW, LARGER SAMPLE SIZE IS NEEDED

Sampling risk can lead to two types of erroneous conclusions:

a) Inthe caseof atest of controls, that controls are more effective than they actually are, orin
the case of a test of details, that a material misstatement does not exist when in fact it does.
The auditor is primarily concerned with this type of erroneous conclusion because it allects
audit effectiveness and is more likely to lead to an inappropriate audit opinion.

b) Inthe caseof atest of controls, that controls are less effective than they actually are, orin
the case of a test of details, that a material misstatement exists when in fact it does not.
This type of erroneous conclusion affects audit efficiency as it would usually lead to additional
work to establish that initial conclusions were incorrect.

Non-Sampling Risk

The risk that the auditor reaches an erroneous conclusion for any reason not related to sampling
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risk. Non-sampling risk can never be mathematically measured.

Sources of Non-Sampling risk are:

a) HumanMistakes

b) Misinterpreting the sample results

c)  Applyingaudit procedures not appropriate to the objectives of audit
‘ d) Relyingonerroneous information e.g., erroneous confirmation

Examples of non-sampling risk include use of inappropriate audit procedures, or misinterpretation
of audit evidence and failure to recognize a misstatement or deviation.

NATURE AND CAUSE OF DEVIATIONS AND MISSTATEMENTS

1) Inanalyzing the deviations and misstatements identified, the auditor may observe that many
have a common feature, for example, type of transaction, location, product line or period of
time.

2) Insuch circumstances, the auditor may decide fo identify all items in the population that
possess the common feature and extend audit procedures to those items. In addition, such
deviations or misstatements may be intentional, and may indicate the possibility of fraud.

3) Therefore, the auditor shall investigate the nature and causes of any deviations or
misstatements identified and evaluate their possible effect on the purpose of the audit
procedure and onother areas of the audit.

4) Intheextremely rare circumstances when the auditor considers a misstatement or deviation
discovered in a sample to be an anomaly, the auditor shall obtain a high degree of certainty
that such misstatement or deviation is not representative of the population.

5) The auditor shall obtain this degree of certainty by performing additional audit procedures to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the misstatement or deviation does not
affect the remainder of the population.

. Anomaly may be defined as a misstatement or deviation that is demonstrably not
representative of misstatements or deviations in a population.

PROJECTING MISSTATEMENTS

1)  The auditor is required to project misstatements for the population to obtain a broad view of
the scale of misstatement but this projection may not be sufficient to determine an amount to
be recorded.

2) When a misstatement has been established as an anomaly, it may be excluded when projecting
misstatements to the population. However, the effect of any such misstatement, if
uncorrected, still needs to be considered in addition to the projection of the non-anomalous
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misstatements.

3) For tests of details, the auditor shall project misstatements found in the sample to the
population whereas for tests of controls, no explicit projection of deviations is necessary since
the sample deviation rate is also the projected deviation rate for the population as a whole.

EVALUATING RESULTS OF AUDIT SAMPLING

The auditor shall evaluate-
a) Theresults of the sample; and

b) Whether the use of audit sampling has provided a reasonable basis for conclusions about the
population that has been tested.

PERFORMING AUDIT PROCEDURES

1) Theauditor shall perform audit procedures, appropriate to the purpose, on each item selected.

2) If the audit procedure is not applicable to the selected item, the auditor shall perform the
procedure on a replacement item.

3) If the auditor is unable to apply the designed audit procedures, or suitable alternative
procedures, to a selected item, the auditor shall treat that item as a deviation from the
prescribed control, in the case of tests of controls, or a misstatement, in the case of tests of
details.

4) An example of when it is necessary to perform the procedure on a replacement item is when a
voided check (Cancelled cheque) is selected while testing for evidence of payment
authorization. If the auditor is satisfied that the check has been properly cancelled such that it
does not constitute a deviation, an appropriately chosen replacement is examined. A
replacement would then mean a proper and valid cheque through which payment has been made.

5) An example of when the auditor is unable to apply the designed audit procedures to a selected
item is when documentation relating to that item has been lost. If the documentation of a sales
is lost, like the sales order record, sales invoice, document for dispatch etc, then confirmation
can be sought from the debtor as per SA 505. If it is a cash sale, the cash book can be cross
verified for the existence of such transactions.

6) An example of a suitable alternative procedure might be the examination of subsequent cash
receipts together with evidence of their source and the items they are intended to settle when
no reply has been received in response to a positive confirmation request.

7) Another example for replacement of a sample could be, if all transactions of computerized
sales are being checked, for example sales recorded through a bar code scanner, and
incidentally a sample of manual billing gets selected, then such item can be replaced after
adequately checking the correctness of the manual bill with the supporting documents
available. If replacement is not possible or reasonable, alternative audit procedure can be
applied.
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FEW IMPORTANT TERMS TO MAKE THE UNDERSTANDING BETTER

1) Stratification: The process of dividing a population into sub-populations, each of which is a
group of sampling units which have similar characteristics (often monetary value).

2) Tolerable misstatement: A monetary amount set by the auditor in respect of which the auditor
seeks to obtain an appropriate level of assurance that the monetary amount set by the auditor
is not exceeded by the actual misstatement in the population.

3) Tolerable rate of deviation: A rate of deviation from prescribed internal control procedures
set by the auditor in respect of which the auditor seeks to obtain an appropriate level of
assurance that the rate of deviation set by the auditor is not exceeded by the actual rate of
deviation in the population.
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SCOPE OF THIS SA

1) SA 550 "Related Parties”, deals with the auditor's responsibilities regarding related party
relationships and transactions when performing an audit of financial statements.

2) Specifically, it applies in relation to risks of material misstatement associated with related
party relationships and transactions.

DEFINITION OF RELATED PARTY

A party that is either:
1)  Arelated party as defined in the applicable financial reporting framework; or

2) Where the applicable financial reporting framework establishes minimal or no related party
requirements:

a) A person or other entity that has control or significant influence, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, over the reporting entity;

b) Another entity over which the reporting entity has control or significant influence,
directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries; or

c) Anotherentity that is under common control with the reporting entity through having:
0] Common controlling ownership;
(i) Owners who are close family members; or
(iii)  Common key management.

However, entities that are under common control by a state (i.e., a national, regional or
local government) are not considered related unless they engage in significant transactions
or share resources to a significant extent with one another.

MEANING OF CONTROL AND SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

IN REFERENCE TO RELATED PARTY

Many financial reporting frameworks discuss the concepts of control and significant influence. They
generally explain that:

a) Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits fromits activities; and

b) Significant influence (which may be gained by share ownership, statute or agreement) is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not
control over those policies.

The existence of the following relationships may indicate the presence of control or significant
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influence: -
a) Direct or indirect equity holdings or other financial interests in the entity.
b) Theentity's holdings of direct or indirect equity or other financial interests in other entities.

c) Being part of those charged with governance or key management (i.e., those members of
management who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
. the activities of the entity).

d) Being a close family member of any person referred to in subparagraph (iii).
e) Havinga significant business relationship with any person referred to in subparagraph (jii).

MEANING OF RELATED PARTIES WITH DOMINANT INFLUENCE

1) Related parties, by virtue of their ability to exert control or significant influence, may be ina
position to exert dominant influence over the entity or its management.

2) Consideration of such behaviour is relevant when identifying and assessing the risks of
material misstatement due to fraud.

MEANING OF SPECIAL-PURPOSE ENTITIES AS RELATED PARTIES

In some circumstances, a special-purpose entity may be a related party of the entity because
the entity may in substance control it, even if the entity owns little or none of the special-
purpose entity's equity.

NATURE OF RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

1) Many related party transactions are in the normal course of business. In such circumstances,
they may carry no higher risk of material misstatement of the financial statements than
similar transactions with unrelated parties.

2) However, the nature of related party relationships and transactions may, in some
circumstances, give rise to higher risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
than fransactions with unrelated parties.

Example:

a) Related parties may operate through an extensive and complex range of relationships and
structures, with a corresponding increase in the complexity of related party transactions.

b) Information systems may be ineffective at identifying or summarising transactions and
outstanding balances between an entity and its related parties.

c) Related party transactions may not be conducted under normal market terms and conditions;
for example, some related party transactions may be conducted with no exchange of

consideration.
!
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UNDERSTANDING THE ENTITY'S RELATED

PARTY RELATIONSHIPS & TRANSACTIONS

1)  Theauditor shall inquire of management regarding:
a) Theidentity of the entity's related parties, including changes from the prior period;
b) Thenature of the relationships between the entity and these related parties; and

¢) Whether the entity entered into any transactions with these related parties during the
period and, if so, the type and purpose of the transactions.

2) The auditor shall inquire of management and others within the entity, and perform other risk
assessment procedures considered appropriate, to obtain an understanding of the controls, if
any, that management has established to -

a) Identify, account for, and disclose related party relationships and fransactions in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework;

b) Authorise and approve significant transactions and arrangements with related parties;
and

c) Authorise and approve significant transactions and arrangements outside the normal
course of business.

CONSIDERATIONS SPECIFIC TO

SMALLER ENTITIES BY THE AUDITOR

1) Control environment in smaller entities is likely to be different from larger entities. In
particular those charged with governance may not include an outside member, and the role of
governance may be undertaken directly by the owner-manager where no other owner exists.

2) Control activities in smaller entities are likely to be less formal and smaller entities may have
no documented processes for dealing with related party relationships and transactions.

3) Anowner-manager may mitigate some of the risks arising from related party transactions, or
potentially increase those risks, through active involvement in all the main aspects of the
transactions.

4) For such entities, the auditor may obtain an understanding of the related party relationships
and transactions, and any controls that may exist over these, through inquiry of management
combined with other procedures, such as observation of management's oversight and review
activities, and inspection of available relevant documentation.
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Sample Question:

How can an auditor verify the existence of related party relationships and transactions?

Answer: During the audit, the auditor should maintain alertness for related party
information while reviewing records and documents. He may inspect the following records or
documents that may provide information about related party relationships and transactions,

For example:

. a) Entity income tax returns.
b) Informationsupplied by the entity to regulatory authorities
¢) Shareholder registers to identify the entity's principal shareholders.

d) Statements of conflicts of interest from management and those charged with
governance.

e) Recordsof theentity's investments and those of its pension plans.

f) Contractsand agreements with key management or those charged with governance.
g) Significant contracts and agreements not in the entity's ordinary course of business.
h) Specificinvoices and correspondence from the entity's professional advisors.

i) Lifeinsurance policies acquired by the entity.

J)  Significant contracts re-negotiated by the entity during the period.

k) Internal auditors' reports.

) Documents associated with the entity's filings with a securities regulator.
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SA 560 Subsequent Events

Meaning of 1) Events occurring between the date of the financial statements and the
Subsequent date of the auditor's report, and facts that become known to the auditor
Events and after the date of the auditor's report.

Its Examples | 2) Financial statements may be affected by certain events that occur after
the date of the financial statements. Many financial reporting frameworks
specifically refer to such events. Such financial reporting frameworks
ordinarily identify two types of events:

a) Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the date of
the financial statements; and

b) Those that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the date
of the financial statements.

3) Examples of events providing evidence of conditions that existed at the
date of the financial statements
a) Declaration of insolvency of a major debtor of the entity between the

date of financial statements and the date of auditor's report providing
evidence on the recoverability of the money due from debtor as on date
of the financial statements.

b) Settling a legal claim outside the court at a reduced amount between
the date of financial statements and the date of auditor's report for
which provision has already been made in financial statements. It
provides evidence on adjustment in provision amount already made in
financial statements, if any.

4) Examples of events providing evidence of conditions that arose after
the date of the financial statements
a) Issueof newshare capital.

b) Planned merger of the company.

¢) Destruction of substantial inventories due to fire between the date of
the financial statements and the date of auditor's report.

Objectives SA 560, "Subsequent Events"” deals with the auditor's responsibilities relating
to subsequent events in an audit of financial statements.

The objectives of the auditor are to:

a) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether events
occurring between the date of the financial statements and the date of the
auditor's report that require adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial
statements are appropriately reflected in those financial statements; and

b) Respond appropriately to facts that become known to the auditor after

the date of the auditor's report, that, had they been known to the auditor
at that date, may have caused the auditor to amend the auditor's report.
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Audit 1) The auditor shall perform audit procedures designed to obtain sufficient
Procedures appropriate audit evidence that all events occurring between the date of
relating to the financial statements and the date of the auditor's report that require
Events adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements have been
Occurring identified.
Between the | 5y The quditor is not, however, expected to perform additional audit
D.ai'e tff the procedures on matters to which previously applied audit procedures have
Financial provided satisfactory conclusions.
Statements : .

3) The auditor shall perform the procedures required above so that they
and the Date ) ) )
of the cover the period from the date of the financial statements to the date of
Audit the auditor's report, or as hear as practicable thereto.

uditors
Report 4) The auditor shall take into account the Risk Assessment which includes
the following:

a) Obtain an understanding of any procedures management has
established to ensure that subsequent events are identified.

b) Inquiring of management and TCWG as to whether any subsequent
events have occurred which might affect the financial statements.

c) Read minutes, if any, of the meetings, of the entity's owners,
management and those charged with governance, that have been held
after the date of the financial statements and inquiring about matters
discussed at any such meetings for which minutes are not yet available.

d) Read the entity's latest subsequent interim financial statements, if
any.

5) Such information may also be obtained by auditor from accounting
records pertaining to period after date of financial statements, reading
entity's latest available budgets etc.

6) When, as a result of the procedures performed, the auditor identifies
events that require adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial
statements, the auditor shall determine whether each such event is
appropriately reflected in those financial statements.

Facts which 1) The auditor has no obligation to perform any audit procedures regarding
?ec:':ne k';?:"" the financial statements af ter the date of the auditor's report.
a?‘teret:\: :i::e 2) However, when, after the date of the auditor's report but before the date

of the
auditor's
report but
before the
date the
financial
statements
are issued

the financial statements are issued, a fact becomes known to the auditor

that, had it been known to the auditor at the date of the auditor's

report, may have caused the auditor to amend the auditor's report, the

auditor shall:

a) Discuss the matter with management and, where appropriate, those
charged with governance.

b) Determine whether the Financial statements need amendment and, if
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so,

¢) Inquire how management intends to address the matter in the financial
statements.
[Refer Note 2 for more details]

. Facts Which 1) After the Financial statements have been issued, the auditor has no
Become Known obligation to perform any audit procedures regarding such Financial
to the Auditor statements.

After the

2) However, when, after the Financial statements have been issued, a fact

;T:::;::ms becomes known to the auditor that, had it been known to the auditor at
el the da'rg of.’rhe auditor's reppr‘r, may have caused the auditor to amend
Issued the auditor's report, the auditor shall:
a) Discuss the matter with management and, where appropriate, those
charged with governance.
b) Determine whether the Financial statements need amendment and,
if so,
c) Inquire how management intends to address the matter in the
Financial statements.
[Refer Note 3 for more details]
Written

The auditor shall request management and, where appropriate, those

Representations charged with governance, to provide a written representation in accordance

with respect with SA 580, "Written Representations” that all events occurring
to subsequent subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the
events

applicable financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure
have been adjusted or disclosed.

NOTE 1 - MEANING OF "DATE THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS ARE ISSUED”

1) It reflects the date that the auditor's report and audited financial statements are made
available to third parties.

2) The date the financial statements are issued generally depends on the regulatory environment
of the entity.

3) Insomecircumstances, the date the financial statements are issued may be the date that they
are filed with a regulatory authority.

4) Since audited financial statements cannot be issued without an auditor's report, the date that
the audited financial statements are issued must not only be at or later than the date of the
auditor's report, but must also be at or later than the date the auditor's report is provided to
the entity.
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NOTE 2 - AUDIT PROCEDURE FOR FACTS BECOME KNOWN AFTER

AUDITOR'S REPORT DATE BUT BEFORE FS ISSUED DATE

1) If management amends the financial statements, the Auditor shall
a) Carry out the audit procedures necessary in the circumstances on the amendment.
b)  Unless the circumstances in succeeding paraapply: -

(i) Extend the audit procedures, already referred, to the date of the new auditor's
reportand

(ii) Provide anew auditor's report on the amended financial statements. *

The new auditor's report shall not be dated earlier than the date of approval of the amended
financial statements.

2) When law, regulation or the financial reporting framework does not prohibit management
from restricting the amendment of the financial statements to the effects of the subsequent
events or events causing that amendments and those responsible for approving the financial
statements are not prohibited from restricting their approval to that amendment, the auditor
is permitted to restrict the audit procedures on subsequent events to that amendment. In
such cases, the auditor shall either: -

a) Amend the auditor's report to include an additional date restricted to that amendment
that thereby indicates that the auditor's procedures on subsequent events are restricted
solely to the amendment of the financial statements described in the relevant note to the
financial statementsor

b) Provide a new or amended auditor's report that includes a statement in an Emphasis of
Matter paragraph or Other Matter(s) paragraph that conveys that auditor's procedures
oh subsequent events are restricted solely to the amendment of the financial statements
as described in the relevant note to the financial statements.

3) Insome entities, management may not be required by the applicable law, regulation or the
financial reporting framework to issue amended financial statements and, accordingly, the
auditor need not provide an amended or new auditor's report. However, when management
does not amend the financial statements in circumstances where the auditor believes they
need to be amended, then: -

a) If the auditor's report has not yet been provided to the entity, the auditor shall modify
the opinion as required by SA 705 and then provide the auditor's report or

b) If the auditor's report has already been provided to the entity, the auditor shall notify
management and, unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the
entity, those charged with governance, not to issue the financial statements to third
parties before the necessary amendments have been made. If the financial statements
are nevertheless subsequently issued without the necessary amendments, the auditor
shall take appropriate action, to seek to prevent reliance on the auditor's report.
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NOTE 3 - AUDIT PROCEDURE FOR FACTS AFTER FS ISSUED DATE

1) If the management amends the financial statements, the Auditor shall
a) Carry out the audit procedures necessary in the circumstances on the amendment.

b) Review the steps taken by management to ensure that anyone in receipt of the previously
‘ issued financial statements together with the auditor's report thereon is informed of the
situation.

c)  Unless such circumstances when law, regulation or the financial reporting framework
does not prohibit management from restricting the amendment of the financial
statements to the effects of the subsequent events or events causing that amendments
and those responsible for approving the financial statements are not prohibited from
restricting their approval to that amendment apply: -

() Extend the audit procedures, already referred, to the date of the new auditor's
report, and the date the new auditor's report no earlier than the date of approval of
the amended financial statements and

(i) Provide a new auditor's report on the amended financial statements.

d) When the circumstances are such that law, regulation or the financial reporting
framework does not prohibit management from restricting the amendment of the
financial statements to the effects of the subsequent events or events causing that
amendments and those responsible for approving the financial statements are not
prohibited from restricting their approval to that amendment, amend the auditor's
report, or provide a new auditor's report as already discussed.

2) The auditor shall include in the new or amended auditor's report an Emphasis of Matter
paragraph or Other Matter(s) paragraph referring to a note to the financial statements that
more extensively discusses the reason for the amendment of the previously issued financial
statements and to the earlier report provided by the auditor.

3) If management does not take the necessary steps to ensure that anyone in receipt of the
previously issued financial statements is informed of the situation and does not amend the
financial statements in circumstances where the auditor believes they need to be amended, the
auditor shall notify management and, unless all of those charged with governance are involved
in managing the entity, those charged with governance, that the auditor will seek to prevent
future reliance on the auditor's report.

. 4) If, despite such notification, management or those charged with governance do not take these
hecessary steps, the auditor shall take appropriate action to seek to prevent reliance on the
auditor's report.
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1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

MEANING OF GOING CONCERN AND ITS SIGNIFICANCE

Going concern is one of the fundamental accounting assumptions. The enterprise is normally
viewed as a going concern, that is, as continuing in operation for the foreseeable future. It is
assumed that the enterprise has neither the intention nor the necessity of liquidation or of
curtailing materially the scale of the operations.

Under the going concern basis of accounting, the financial statements are prepared on the
assumption that the entity is a going concern and will continue its operations for the
foreseeable future.

General purpose financial statements are prepared using the going concern basis of accounting,
unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The significance of Going Concern is due to its effect on preparation of financial statements.
Ability or otherwise of an enterprise to be viewed as going concern affects its preparation of
financial statements.

When the use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate, assets and liabilities are
recorded on the basis that the entity will be able to realize its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

When an enterprise is not viewed as a going concern, the financial statements are prepared on
liquidation basis. For example, inventories may need to be written down as these may be sold for
alower price. Assets may have to be recorded at the likely prices they will fetch.

SCOPE OF THIS SA

SA 570 (Revised) on “"Going concern” deals with:

a)
b)

The auditor's responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to going concern and
The implications for the auditor's report.

OBJECTIVES OF THE AUDITOR REGARDING GOING CONCERN

The objectives of the auditor are:

a)

b)

To obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and conclude on, the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements;

To conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
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related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern; and

c) Toreport in accordance with this SA.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR ASSESSMENT OF THE ENTITY'S

ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS A GOING CONCERN

1) The preparation of the financial statements requires management to assess the entity's
ability to continue as a going concern even if the financial reporting framework does not include
an explicit requirement to do so.

2) Management's assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern involves making
a judgment, at a particular point in time, about inherently uncertain future outcomes of events
or conditions.

3) Thefollowing factors are relevant to that judgment:

a) Thedegree of uncertainty associated with the outcome of an event or condition increases
significantly the further into the future an event or condition or the outcome occurs.

b) The size and complexity of the entity, the nature and condition of its business and the
degree to which it is affected by external factors affect the judgment regarding the
outcome of events or conditions.

¢) Any judgment about the future is based on information available at the time at which the
judgment is made. Subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with
judgments that were reasonable at the time they were made.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDITOR

1) Theauditor's responsibilities are

a) To obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and conclude on, the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements, and

b) To conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

2) These responsibilities exist even if the financial reporting framework used in the preparation
of the financial statements does not include an explicit requirement for management to make a
specific assessment of the entity's ability to continue as agoing concern.

3) However, as described in SA 200, the potential effects of inherent limitations on the

~auditor's ability to detect material misstatements are greater for future events or
conditions that may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

4) The auditor cannot predict such future events or conditions. Accordingly, the absence of any
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reference to a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern in
an auditor's report cannot be viewed as a guarantee as to the entity's ability to continue as a
going concern.

RISK ASSESSMENT PROCEDURES AND RELATED ACTIVITIES

. 1) When performing risk assessment procedures as required by SA 315, the auditor shall
consider whether events or conditions exist that may cast significant doubt on the entity's
ability to continue as a going concern.

2) In so doing, the auditor shall determine whether management has already performed a
preliminary assessment of the entity's ability fo continue as a going concern, and:

a) Ifsuchanassessment has been performed, the auditor shall discuss the assessment with
management and determine whether management has identified events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as agoing concernand, if so, management's plans to address them; or

b) If such an assessment has not yet been performed, the auditor shall discuss with
management the basis for the intended use of the going concern basis of accounting, and
inquire of management whether events or conditions exist that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going
concern.

3) The auditor shall remain alert throughout the audit for audit evidence of events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

4) SA 315 requires the auditor to revise the auditor's risk assessment and modify the further
planned audit procedures accordingly when additional audit evidence is obtained during the
course of the audit that affects the auditor's assessment of risk.

EXAMPLES OF EVENTS OR CONDITIONS THAT MAY CAST SIGNIFICANT

DOUBT ON THE ENTITY'S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS A GOING CONCERN

The following are examples of events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

1) Financial
a) Net liability or net current liability position.

b) Fixed-term borrowings approaching maturity without realistic prospects of renewal or
repayment; or excessive reliance on short-term borrowings to finance long-term assets.

¢) Indications of withdrawal of financial support by creditors.
d) Negative operating cash flows indicated by historical or prospective financial statements.
e) Adverse key financial ratios.

f) Substantial operating losses or significant deterioration in the value of assets used to
generate cash flows
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g) Arrearsor discontinuance of dividends

h) Inability to pay creditors ondue dates

i)  Inability to comply with the terms of loan agreements

J)  Change from credit to cash-on-delivery transactions with suppliers

k) Inability to obtain financing for essential new product development or other essential
investments

2) Operating
a) Management intentions to liquidate the entity or to cease operations.
b) Lossof key management without replacement.
c) Lossof amajormarket, key customer(s), franchise, license, or principal supplier(s).
d) Labordifficulties.
e) Shortages of important supplies.
f) Emergence of a highly successful competitor.
3) Other

a) Non-compliance with capital or other statutory or regulatory requirements, such as
solvency or liquidity requirements for financial institutions.

b) Pending legal or regulatory proceedings against the entity that may, if successful, result in
claims that the entity is unlikely to be able to satisfy.

¢) Changes inlaw or regulation or government policy expected to adversely affect the entity.
d) Uninsured or underinsured catastrophes when they occur.

EVALUATING MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT

1) The auditor shall evaluate management's assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern
is a key part of the auditor's consideration of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting.

2) It is not the auditor's responsibility to rectify the lack of analysis by management. In some
circumstances, however, the lack of detailed analysis by management to support its assessment
may not prevent the auditor from concluding whether management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting is appropriate in the circumstances.

3) For example, when there is a history of profitable operations and a ready access to financial
resources, management may make its assessment without detailed analysis. In this case, the
auditor's evaluation of the appropriateness of management's assessment may be made without
performing detailed evaluation procedures if the auditor's other audit procedures are
sufficient to enable the auditor to conclude whether management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate in the
circumstances.
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4) In other circumstances, evaluating management's assessment of the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern, may include an evaluation of the process management followed to
make its assessment, the assumptions on which the assessment is based and management's
plans for future action and whether management's plans are feasible in the circumstances.

5) Inevaluating management's assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern,
the auditor shall cover the same period as that used by management to make its assessment as
required by the applicable financial reporting framework, or by law or regulation if it specifies a
longer period.

6) If management's assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern covers less
than twelve months from the date of the financial statements, the auditor shall request
management to extend its assessment period to at least twelve months from that date.

ADDITIONAL AUDIT PROCEDURES WHEN EVENTS OR

CONDITIONS ARE IDENTIFIED

If events or conditions have been identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
determine whether or not a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern (hereinafter referred to
as "material uncertainty") through performing additional audit procedures, including consideration
of mitigating factors. These procedures shall include:

a) Where management has not yet performed an assessment of the entity's ability to continue as
agoing concern, requesting management to make its assessment.

b) Evaluating management's plans for future actions in relation to its going concern assessment,
whether the outcome of these plans is likely to improve the situation and whether
management's plans are feasible in the circumstances.

c) Where the entity has prepared a cash flow forecast, and analysis of the forecast is a
significant factor in considering the future outcome of events or conditions in the evaluation of
management's plans for future actions:

(i) Evaluating the reliability of the underlying data generated to prepare the forecast; and
(i) Determining whether there is adequate support for the assumptions underlying the
‘ forecast.

d) Considering whether any additional facts or information have become available since the date
onwhich management made its assessment.

e) Requesting written representations from management regarding their future action plans and
the feasibility of these plans.
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Examples of audit procedures when events or conditions have been identified that may cast
significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as going concern:

a) Analyzing and discussing cash flow, profit and other relevant forecasts with management.
b) Analyzing and discussing the entity's latest available interim financial statements.

¢) Reading the terms of debentures and loan agreements and determining whether any have been
breached.

d) Reading minutes of the meetings of shareholders, those charged with governance and relevant
committees for reference to financing difficulties.

e) Inquiring of the entity's legal counsel regarding the existence of litigation and claims and the
reasonableness of management's assessments of their outcome and the estimate of their
financial implications.

f) Confirming the existence, legality and enforceability of arrangements to provide or maintain
financial support with related and third parties and assessing the financial ability of such
parties to provide additional funds.

g) Evaluating the entity's plans to deal with unfilled customer orders.

h) Performing audit procedures regarding subsequent events to identify those that either
mitigate or otherwise affect the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

i) Confirming the existence, terms and adequacy of borrowing facilities.
J) Obtaining and reviewing reports of regulatory actions.
k) Determining the adequacy of support for any planned disposals of assets.

AUDITOR'S CONCLUSIONS

1) The auditor shall evaluate whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained
regarding, and shall conclude on, the appropriateness of management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements.

2) Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor shall conclude whether, in the auditor's
Jjudgment, a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

3) A material uncertainty exists when the magnitude of its potential impact and likelihood of
occurrence is such that, in the auditor's judgment, appropriate disclosure of the nature and
implications of the uncertainty is necessary
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ADEQUACY OF DISCLOSURES WHEN EVENTS OR CONDITIONS

HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED AND A MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY EXISTS

If the auditor concludes that management's use of the going concern basis of accounting is
appropriate in the circumstances but a material uncertainty exists, the auditor shall determine
whether the financial statements: -

a) Adequately disclose the principal events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
entity's ability to continue as a going concern and management's plans to deal with these
events or conditions and

b) Disclose clearly that there is a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that
it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its ligbilities in the normal course of
business.

ADEQUACY OF DISCLOSURES WHEN EVENTS OR CONDITIONS

HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED BUT NO MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY EXISTS

If events or conditions have been identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern but, based on the audit evidence obtained the auditor concludes that
no material uncertainty exists, the auditor shall evaluate whether, in view of the requirements of
the applicable financial reporting framework, the financial statements provide adequate
disclosures about these events or conditions.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

(I) Use of Going Concern Basis of Accounting is Inappropriate

If the financial statements have been prepared using the going concern basis of accounting but, in
. the auditor's judgment, management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements is inappropriate, the auditor shall express an adverse
«  opinion.

Note:

a) When the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not appropriate in the circumstances,
management may be required, or may elect, to prepare the financial statements on another
basis (For Example - Liquidation Basis).

b) The auditor may be able to perform an audit of those financial statements provided that the
auditor determines that the other basis of accounting is acceptable in the circumstances.

¢) The auditor may be able to express an unmodified opinion on those financial statements,

7507545533 Page- 1D.88




CA Rishabh Jain — SA 500 Series |

provided there is adequate disclosure therein about the basis of accounting on which the
financial statements are prepared, but may consider it appropriate or necessary to include an
Emphasis of Matter paragraph in accordance with SA 706 (Revised) in the auditor's report to
draw the user's attention to that alternative basis of accounting and the reasons for itsuse.

(IT) Use of the Going Concern Basis of Accounting is Appropriate

but a Material Uncertainty Exists

The identification of amaterial uncertainty is a matter that is important to users' understanding of
the financial statements. The use of a separate section with a heading that includes reference to
the fact that a material uncertainty related to going concern exists alerts users to this
circumstance.

1) Adequate Disclosure of a Material Uncertainty is Made in the Financial Statements

If adequate disclosure about the material uncertainty is made in the financial statements, the
auditor shall express an unmodified opinion and the auditor's report shall include a separate
section under the heading "Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern.”

a) Draw attention to the note inthe financial statements that discloses such matters.

b) State that these events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability fo continue as a going concern and that
the auditor's opinion is not modified in respect of the matter.

2) Adequate Disclosure of a Material Uncertainty is Not Made in the Financial Statements:
If adequate disclosure about the material uncertainty is not made in the financial statements,
the auditor shall:

a) Expressaqualified opinion or adverse opinion, as appropriate, in accordance with SA 705
(Revised); and

b) Inthe Basis for Qualified (Adverse) Opinion section of the auditor's report, state that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern and that the financial statements do not adequately disclose
this matter.

(IIT) Management unwilling to make or extend its assessment

a) If management is unwilling to make or extend its assessment when requested to do so by the
auditor, the auditor shall consider the implications for the auditor's report.

b) Insuch asituation, a qualified opinion or a disclaimer of opinion in the auditor's report may be
appropriate, because it may not be possible for the auditor to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements.
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Revision in SA 570 (Audit Report Example)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ABC Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion:

We have audited the standalone financial statements of ABC Company Limited (“the Company"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 20XX, and the statement of Profit and Loss,
(statement of changes in equity)16 and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information [in which are included the Returns for the year ended on that date
audited by the branch auditors of the Company's branches located at (location of branches)].

Inour opinionand to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 20XX, and profit/loss,
(changes in equity) and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern:

We draw attention to Note XX in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company
incurred a net loss of ZZZ during the year ended December 31, 20X1 and, as of that date, the
Company's current liabilities exceeded its total assets by YYY. As stated in Note 6, these events
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note XX, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. |

Key Audit Matters:
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with SA 701 .]

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Audi'ror"s:ResponsibiIifies for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
For XYZ & Co Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.)

Signature:
(Name of the Member signing the Audit Report)
(Designation)
(Membership No. XXXXX)
Place of Signature:
Date:

@ 7507545533 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com

Page- 1D.92



CA Rishabh Jain SA 500 Series

(@) 7507545533 Page- 1D.93




SA 580

Written Representations

Written
Representation
as Audit
Evidence

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

SA 580- "Written Representations” deals with the auditor's
responsibility to obtain written representations from management and,
where appropriate, those charged with governance.

Written Representations may be defined as a written statement by
management provided to the auditor to confirm certain matters or to
support another Audit Evidence. Similar to responses to inquiries,
written representations are audit evidence.

Written representations are an important source of audit evidence. If
management modifies or does not provide the requested written
representations, it may alert the auditor to the possibility that one or
more significant issues may exist.

Further,a f'eques‘r for written, rather thanoral, representations in many
cases may prompt management to consider such matters more
rigorously, thereby enhancing the quality of the representations.

Although written representations provide necessary audit evidence,
they do not provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence on their own
about any of the matters with which they deal.

Furthermore, the fact that management has provided reliable written
representations does not affect the nature or extent of other audit
evidence that the auditor obtains about the fulfillment of management's
responsibilities, or about specific assertions.

Written representations are requested from those responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Written representations in this context do not include financial
statements, the assertions therein, or supporting books and records.

Objectives
of the auditor

1)

2)

3)

To obtain written representations

To obtain written representations from management. Also that
management believes that it has fulfilled its responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements and for the completeness of the
information provided to the auditor;

To support other evidence

To support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements or
specific assertions in the financial statements by means of written
representations; and

To respond appropriately

To respond appropriately to written representations provided by
management or if management does not provide the written
representations requested by the auditor.
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From Whom 1) The auditor shall request written representations from management
Written with appropriate responsibilities for the financial statements and
Representation knowledge of the matters concerned.

are Requested | 2) Written representations relate to fulfiiment of management's
by Auditor? responsibilities or to support other audit evidence relevant to the

financial statements or one or more specific assertions in the financial
statements. (Refer Note 1 attached below)

ll))at.edof and q 1) The date of the written representations shall be as near as practicable
erto S covere to, but not after, the date of the auditor's report on the financial
by Written

. statements.
Representation . ) ) .
2) The written representations shall be for all financial statements and

periods referred to in the auditor's report.

3) Because written representations are necessary audit evidence, the
auditor's opinion cannot be expressed, and the auditor's report cannot
be dated, before the date of the written representations.

4) Furthermore, because the auditor is concerned with events occurring up
to the date of the auditor's report that may require adjustment to or
disclosure in the financial statements, the written representations are
dated as near as practicable to, but not after, the date of the auditor's
report on the financial statements.

5) The written representations are for all periods referred to in the
auditor's report because management needs to reaffirm that the
written representations it previously made with respect to the prior
periods remain appropriate.

6) Situations may arise where current management were not present
during all periods referred to in the auditor's report. Such persons may
assert that they are not in a position to provide some or all of the
written representations because they were not in place during the
period.

7) This fact, however, does not diminish such persons' responsibilities for
the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, the requirement for
the auditor fo request from them written representations that cover
the whole of the relevant period(s) still applies.

Form of Written| 1) The written representations shall be in the form of a representation
Representation letter addressed to the auditor.

2) If law or regulation requires management to make written public
statements about its responsibilities, and the auditor determines that
such statements provide some or all of the representations required,
the relevant matters covered by such statements need not be included in
the representation letter,
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Doubt as to the
Reliability of
‘Written
Representation

1)

2)

3)

4)

If the auditor has concerns about the competence, integrity, ethical
values or diligence of management, or about its commitment to or
enforcement of these, the auditor shall determine the effect that such
concerns may have on the reliability of representations (oral or written)
and audit evidence in general.

In particular, if written representations are inconsistent with other
audit evidence, the auditor shall perform audit procedures to attempt to
resolve the matter.

If the matter remains unresolved, the auditor shall reconsider the
assessment of the competence, integrity, ethical values or diligence of
management, or of its commitment to or enforcement of these, and shall
determine the effect that this may have on the reliability of
representations (oral or written) and audit evidence in general.

If the auditor concludes that the written representations are not
reliable, the auditor shall take appropriate actions, including
determining the possible effect on the opinion in the auditor's report in
accordance with SA 705, having regard to the requirement of disclaimer
of opinion.

Requested
Written
Representation
Not Provided

If management does not provide one or more of the requested written
representations, the auditor shall:

a)
b)

c)

Discuss the matter with management;

Re-evaluate the integrity of management and evaluate the effect that
this may have on the reliability of representations (oral or written) and
audit evidence in general; and

Take appropriate actions, including determining the possible effect on
the opinion in the auditor's report in accordance with SA 705 having
regard to the requirement of disclaimer of opinion.

Disclaimer of
opinion in case
of non-
reliability of
Written
Representations
about
management's
responsibilities
or failure to
provide such
Written
Representations

The auditor shall disclaim an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with SA 705 if:

a)

b)

The auditor concludes that there is sufficient doubt about the integrity
of management such that the written representations about
management fulfilling its responsibilities regarding preparation of
financial statements and about information provided and completeness of
transactions are not reliable; or

Management does not provide the written representations relating to
fulfilling its responsibilities regarding preparation of financial
statements and about information provided and completeness of
transactions.
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NOTE 1: WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS ABOUT

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Written representation about management's responsibilities involves confirmation of fulfilment of
management's responsibilities in following areas: -

Preparation of the financial statements

1) The auditor shall request management to provide a written representation that it has fulfilled
its responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework, including, where relevant, their fair presentation, as
setout in the terms of the audit engagement.

2) Due to its responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and
its responsibilities for the conduct of the entity's business, management would be expected to
have sufficient knowledge of the process followed by the entity in preparing and presenting the
financial statements and the assertions therein onwhich to base the written representations.

3) Insome cases, however, management may decide to make inquiries of others who participate in
preparing and presenting the financial statements and assertions therein, including individuals
who have specialized knowledge relating to the matters about which written representations
arerequested.

4) Suchindividuals may include:
a) Anactuary responsible for actuarially determined accounting measurements.

b) Staff engineers who may have responsibility for and specialized knowledge about
environmental liability measurements.
¢) Internal counsel who may provide information essential to provisions for legal claims.

5) Insome cases, management may include in the written representations qualifying language to
the effect that representations are made to the best of its knowledge and belief.

6) It is reasonable for the auditor to accept such wording if the auditor is satisfied that the
representations are being made by those with appropriate responsibilities and knowledge of
the matters included in the representations.

7) To reinforce the need for management to make informed representations, the auditor may
request that management include in the written representations, confirmation that it has made
such inquiries as it considered appropriate to place it in the position to be able to make the
requested writtenrepresentations.

Information provided and completeness of transactions

The auditor shall request management to provide a written representation that:

a) It has provided the auditor with all relevant information and access as agreed in the terms of
the audit engagement and
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b) Alltransactions have beenrecorded and are reflected in the financial statements.

Note

Management's responsibilities shall be described in the "Written representations required about
management responsibilities” in the manner in which these responsibilities are described in the
terms of the audit engagement.

NOTE 2 - WHY WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS ABOUT

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES ARE NECESSARY?

1) Audit evidence obtained during the audit that management has fulfilled its responsibilities
regarding preparation of financial statements and about information provided and
completeness of transactions is not sufficient without obtaining confirmation from
management that it believes that it has fulfilled those responsibilities.

2) This is because the auditor is not able to judge solely on other audit evidence whether
management has prepared and presented the financial statements and provided information to
the auditor on the basis of the agreed acknowledgement and understanding of its
responsibilities.

For example, the auditor could not conclude that management has provided the auditor with all
relevant information agreed in the ferms of the audit engagement without asking it whether,
and receiving confirmation that, such information has been provided.

3) The written representations requiring fulfilment of management responsibilities in relation to
above draw on the agreed acknowledgement and understanding of management of its
responsibilities in the terms of the audit engagement by requesting confirmation that it has
fulfilled them.

4) The auditor may also ask management to reconfirm its acknowledgement and understanding of
those responsibilities inwritten representations.

5) Thisisparticularly appropriate when:

a) Those who signed the terms of the audit engagement on behalf of the entity no longer
have the relevant responsibilities;

b) Theterms of theaudit engagement were prepared inaprevious year;
c) Thereisany indication that management misunderstands those responsibilities; or
d) Changes incircumstances make it appropriate to do so.
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NOTE 3 - OTHER WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS

1) Other SAs require the auditor to request written representations. If, in addition to such
required representations, the auditor determines that it is necessary to obtain one or more
written representations to support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements
or one or more specific assertions in the financial statements, the auditor shall request such
other written representations.

2) In addition to the written representation about management's responsibilities regarding
preparation of financial statements, the auditor may consider it necessary to request other
written representations about the financial statements.

3) Such written representations may supplement, but do not form part of, the written
representation relating o management's responsibilities regarding preparation of financial
statements.

4) They may include representations about the following:

a) Whether the selection and application of accounting policies are appropriate; and

b) Whether matters such as the following, where relevant under the applicable financial
reporting framework, have been recognized, measured, presented or disclosed in
accordance with that framework:

(i)  Plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or classification of assets
and liabilities;

(i) Liabilities, both actual and contingent;

(iii) Title to, or control over, assets, the liens or encumbrances on assets, and assets
pledged as collateral; and

(iv) Aspects of laws, regulations and contractual agreements that may affect the
financial statements, including non-compliance.

NOTE 4 - ADDITIONAL WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS ABOUT

INFORMATION PROVIDED TO THE AUDITOR

In addition to the written representation required by auditor regarding management responsibility
about information provided to auditor, the auditor may consider it necessary to request
management to provide a written representation that it has communicated to the auditor ail
deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.
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NOTE 5 - WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS

ABOUT SPECIFIC ASSERTIONS

1)  When obtaining evidence about, or evaluating, judgments and intentions, the auditor may
consider one or more of the following:

X a) Theentity'spast history in carrying out its stated intentions.
b) Theentity'sreasons for choosing a particular course of action.
c) Theentity'sability to pursue a specific course of action.

d) Theexistence or lack of any other information that might have been obtained during the
course of the audit that may be inconsistent with management's judgment or intent.

2) Inaddition, the auditor may consider it necessary to request management to provide written
representations about specific assertions in the financial statements, in particular, to support
an understanding that the auditor has obtained from other audit evidence of management's
Jjudgment or intent inrelation to, or the completeness of , a specific assertion.

3) For example, if the intent of management is important to the valuation basis for investments, it
may not be possible to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence without a written
representation from management about its intentions. Although such written representations
provide necessary audit evidence, they do not provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence on
their own for that assertion.
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Practical Insight into draft Management Representation Letter

To RJ & Co. 15th July, 2022
Chartered Accountants

Dear Sir,

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of XXXX Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as
to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards in India.

We confirm that (to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves):

Financial Statements

1)  We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated
17th August 2021, for the preparation of the fihancial statements in accordance with
financial reporting Standards, in particular, the financial statements give a true and fair
view in accordance with the applicable accounting standards in India.

2) Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured
at fair value, are reasonable.

3) Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of applicable accounting standards in India.
(SA 550)

4) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which applicable
accounting standards in India require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed. (SA 560)

5) The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements as awhole. A list of the uncorrected misstatements is
attached to the representation letter. (SA 450)

Information provided

1) Wehave provided you with:

a) Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
and

¢) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2) All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.
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3) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as aresult of fraud.

4) We have disclosed to you all information in relation fo fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the entity and involves:

a) Management; ,
b) Employeeswho have significant roles ininternal control; or
¢) Otherswhere the fraud could have amaterial effect on the financial statements.

5) We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
fraud, affecting the entity's financial statements communicated by employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators or others.

6) We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

7) We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. (SA 550)

Chief Financial Officer
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SA 600 Using the work of

Another Auditor

Principal auditor means the auditor with responsibility for reporting on the financial
information of an entity when that financial information includes the financial information of
one or more components audited by another auditor.

Other auditor means an auditor, other than the principal auditor, with responsibility for
reporting on the financial information of a component which is included in the financial
information audited by the principal auditor.

Component means a division, branch, subsidiary, joint venture, associated enterprises or other
entity whose financial information is included in the financial information audited by the
principal auditor.

USING THE WORK OF ANOTHER AUDITOR

When the accounts of the branch are audited by a person other than the company's auditor
(or principal auditor), there is need for a clear understanding of the role of such other auditor
and the company's auditor in relation to the audit of the accounts of the branch and the audit
of the company as a whole; also, there is great necessity for a proper rapport between these
two auditors for the purpose of an effective audit.

Inrecognition of these needs, the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
has dealt with these issues in SA 600, “Using the Work of another Auditor”.

Tt makes clear that in certain situations, the statute governing the entity may confer a right
on the principal auditor te visit a component and examine the books of account and other
records of the said component, if he thinks it necessary to do so.

Where another auditor has been appointed for the component, the principal auditor would
normally be entitled to rely upon the work of such auditor unless there are special
circumstances to make it essential for him to visit the component and/or to examine the books
of account and other records of the said component.

Further, it requires that the principal auditor should perform procedures to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence, that the work of the other auditor is adequate for the principal
auditor’s purposes, in the context of the specific assignment.

When using the work of another auditor, the principal auditor should ordinarily perform the
following procedures:

a) advise the other auditor of the use that is to be made of the other auditor's work and
report and make sufficient arrangements for co-ordination of their efforts at the
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planning stage of the audit. The principal auditor would inform the other auditor of
matters such as are as requiring special consideration, procedures for the identification
of inter -component transactions that may require disclosure and the fime-table for
completion of audit; and

b) advise the other auditor of the significant accounting, auditing and reporting
requirements and obtain representation as to compliance with them.

7) The principal auditor might discuss with the other auditor the audit procedures applied or
review a written summary of the other auditor's procedures and findings which may be in the
form of a completed questionnaire or check-list.

8) The principal auditor may also wish to visit the other auditor. The nature, fiming and extent of
procedures will depend on the circumstances of the engagement and the principal auditor's
knowledge of the professional competence of the other auditor. This knowledge may have been
enhanced from the review of the previous audit work of the other auditor.

NOTE 1 - AUDIT OF BRANCH OFFICE ACCOUNTS

Section 128 - Books of account, etc., to be kept by company

1) Aspersection 128(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every company shall prepare and keep at
its registered office books of account and other relevant books and papers and financial
statement for every financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of
the company, including that of its branch office or offices, if any, and explain the transactions
effected both at the registered office and its branches and such books shall be kept on accrual
basis and according to the double entry system of accounting.

2) Itmaybenoted thatallorany of the books of account aforesaid and other relevant papers may
be kept at such other place in India as the Board of Directors may decide and where such a
decision is taken, the company shall, within 7 days thereof, file with the Registrar a notice in
writing giving the full address of that other place.

3) Students may also note that the company may keep such books of account or other relevant
papers in electronic mode in such manner as may be prescribed.

4) Sub-section (2) provides that where a company has a branch of fice in India or outside India, it
shall be deemed to have complied with the provisions of sub-section (1), if proper books of
account relating to the transactions effected at the branch office are kept at that of fice and
proper summarised returns periodically are sent by the branch office to the company at its
registered of fice or the other place referredin(1).

Section 143(8)- Branch Audit

1) Further, sub-section (8) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, prescribes the duties and
powers of the company's auditor with reference fo the audit of the branch and the branch
auditor.

2) Whereacompany has abranch office, the accounts of that of fice shall be audited either
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a) by the auditor appointed for the company (herein referred to as the company's auditor)
under this Act or

b) byany other person qualified for appointment as an auditor of the company under this Act
and appointed as such under section 139, or

c) where the branch office is situated in a country outside India, the accounts of the branch
of fice shall be audited either
(i) bythecompany's auditoror
. (ii) byanaccountantor

(iii) by any other person duly qualified to act as an auditor of the accounts of the branch
office inaccordance with the laws of that country and

d) theduties and powers of the company' s auditor with reference to the audit of the branch
and the branch auditor, if any, shall be such as may be prescribed:

3) It may benoted that the branch auditor shall prepare a report on the accounts of the branch
examined by him and send it to the auditor of the company who shall deal with it in his report in
such manner as he considers necessary.

4) Further as per Rule 12 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the branch
auditor shall submit his report to the company's auditor and reporting of fraud by the auditor
shall also extend to such branch auditor to the extent it relates to the concerned branch.
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SA 610 Using the work of

Internal Auditor

DEFINITION OF INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Internal audit function refers to a function of an entity that performs assurance and consulting
activities designed to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the entity's governance, risk
management and internal control processes.

The objectives and scope of internal audit functions typically include assurance and consulti ng
activities designed to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the entity's governance processes,
risk management and internal control such as the following:

(1) Activities Relating to Governance

The internal audit function may assess the governance process in its accomplishment of
objectives on ethics and values, performance management and accountability, communicating
risk and control information to appropriate areas of the organization and effectiveness of
communication among those charged with governance, external and internal auditors, and
management.

(2) Activities Relating to Risk Management

a)

b)

The internal audit function may assist the entity by identifying and evaluating significant
exposures to risk and contributing to the improvement of risk management and internal
control (including effectiveness of the financial reporting process).

The internal audit function may perform procedures to assist the entity in the detection
of fraud.

(3) Activities Relating to Internal Control

a)

b)

Evaluation of internal control. The internal audit function may be assigned specific
responsibility for reviewing controls, evaluating their operation, and recommending
improvements thereto. In doing so, the internal audit function provides assurance on the
control.

For example, the internal audit function might plan and perform tests or other procedures
To provide assurance to management and those charged with governance regarding the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal control, including those
controls that'are relevant to the audit.

Examination of financial and operating information. The internal audit function may be
assigned to review the means used to identify, recognize, measure, classify and report
financial and operating information, and to make specific inquiry into individual items,
including detailed testing of transactions, balances and procedures.
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c) Review of operating activities. The internal audit function may be assigned to review the
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of operating activities, including non- financial
activities of anentity.

d) Review of compliance with laws and regulations. The internal audit function may be
assigned to review compliance with laws, regulations, and other external requirements, and
with management policies and directives and other internal requirements.

WAYS IN WHICH THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR MAY MAKE USE

OF THE FUNCTION FOR PURPOSES OF THE AUDIT.

1) While the objectives of an entity's internal audit function and the external auditor differ, the
function may perform audit procedures similar to those performed by the external auditor in
an audit of financial statements.

2) If so, the external auditor may make use of the function for purposes of the audit in one or
more of the following ways:

a) To obtaininformation that is relevant to the external auditor's assessments of the risks
of material misstatement due to error or fraud.

b) Unless prohibited, or restricted to some extent, by law or requlation, the external
auditor, affer appropriate evaluation, may decide to use work that has been performed by
the internal audit function during the period in partial substitution for audit evidence to
be obtained directly by the external auditor.

¢) Unless prohibited, or restricted to some extent, by law or requlation, the external
auditor may use internal auditors to perform audit procedures under the direction,
supervisionand review of the external auditor (referred to as “direct assistance").

SCOPE OF SA 610

Standard on Auditing (SA) 610 deals with the external auditor's responsibilities if using the work

of internal auditors. This includes

a) Using the work of the internal audit function in obtaining audit evidence and

b) Using internal auditors to provide direct assistance under the direction, supervision and
review of the external auditor.

Nothing in this SA requires the external auditor to use the work of the internal audit function to

modify the nature or timing, or reduce the extent, of audit procedures to be performed directly by

the external auditor; it remains a decision of the external auditor in establishing the overall audit

strategy.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT

1) The external auditor has sole responsibility for the audit opinion expressed, and that
responsibility is not reduced by the external auditor's use of the work of the internal audit
functionor internal auditors to provide direct assistance on the engagement.

2) Although they may perform audit procedures similar to those performed by the external

auditor, neither the internal audit function nor the internal auditors are independent of the

. entity as is required of the external auditor in an audit of financial statements in accordance
with SA 200. |

3) This SA, therefore, defines the conditions that are necessary for the external auditor to be
able to use the work of internal auditors.

4) Tt also defines the necessary work effort to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence that the
work of the internal audit function, or internal auditors providing direct assistance, is adequate
for the purposes of the audit.

5) The requirements are designed to provide a framework for the external auditor's judgments
regarding the use of the work of internal auditors to prevent over or undue use of such work.

OBJECTIVES OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR, WHERE THE

ENTITY HAS AN INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The objectives of the external auditor, where the entity has an infernal audit function and the
external auditor expects to use the work of the function to modify the nature or timing, or reduce
the extent, of audit procedures to be performed directly by the external auditor, or to use internal
auditors to provide direct assistance, are:

a) To determine whether the work of the internal audit function or direct assistance from
internal auditors can be used, and if so, in which areas and to what extent; and having made that
determination:

b) If using the work of the internal audit function, to determine whether that work is adequate
for purposes of the audit; and

¢) If usinginternal auditors to provide direct assistance, to appropriately direct, supervise and
review their work.

EVALUATING THE INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The external auditor shall determine whether the work of the internal audit function can be used
for purposes of the audit by evaluating the following:

1) The extent to which the internal audit function's organizational status and relevant policies
and procedures support the objectivity of the internal auditors;

2) Thelevel of competence of the internal audit function; and
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3) Whether the infernal audit function applies a systematic and disciplined approach, including
quality control.

Objectivity and Competence

a) Theexternal auditor exercises professional judgment in determining whether the work of the
internal audit function can be used for purposes of the audit, and the nature and extent to
which the work of the internal audit function can be used in the circumstances.

b) The extent to which the internal audit function's organizational status and relevant policies
and procedures support the objectivity of the internal auditors and the level of competence of
the function are particularly important in determining whether to use and, if so, the nature and
extent of the use of the work of the function that is appropriate in the circumstances

OBJECTIVITY AND ITS EVALUATION

Objectivity refers to the ability to perform those tasks without allowing bias, conflict of interest
or undue influence of others to override professional judgments.

Factors that may affect the external auditor's evaluation in relation to Objectivity include the
following:

1)  Whether the organizational status of the internal audit function, including the function's
authority and accountability, supports the ability of the function to be free from bias,
conflict of interest or undue influence of others to override professional judgments.

For example whether the internal audit function reports to those charged with governance or
an officer with appropriate authority, or if the function reports to management, whether it has
direct access to those charged with governance.

2) Whether those charged with governance oversee employment decisions related to the internal
audit function.

For example determining the appropriate remuneration policy.

3) Whether there are any constraints or restrictions placed on the internal audit function by
management or those charged with governance, for example, in communicating the internal
audit function's findings to the external auditor.

4) Whether the internal audit function is free of any conflicting responsibilities, for example,
having managerial or operational duties or responsibilities that are outside of the internal audit
function.

COMPETENCE AND ITS EVALUATION

1) Competence of the internal audit function refers to the attainment and maintenance of
knowledge and skills of the function as a whole at the level required to enable assigned tasks fo
be performed diligently and in accordance with applicable professional standards.

2) Factors that may affect the external auditor's determination in relation to competence
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include the following:

a) Whether the internal audit function is adequately and appropriately resourced relative
to the size of the entity and the nature of its operations.

b) Whether there are established policies for hiring, training and assigning internal
auditors to internal audit engagements.

c) Whether the internal auditors have adequate technical training and proficiency in
auditing.

d) Whether the internal auditors possess the required knowledge relating to the entity's
financial reporting and the applicable financial reporting framework.

Objectivity and competence may be viewed as a continuum.

1) Objectivity and competence may be viewed as a continuum. The more the internal audit
function’s organizational status and relevant policies and procedures adequately support the
objectivity of the internal auditors and the higher the level of competence of the function, the
more likely the external auditor may make use of the work of the function and in more areas.

2) However, an organizational status and relevant policies and procedures that provide strong
support for the objectivity of the internal auditors cannot compensate for the lack of
sufficient competence of the internal audit function.

3) Equally, a high level of competence of the internal audit function cannot compensate for an
organizational status and policies and procedures that do not adequately support the
objectivity of the internal auditors..

APPLICATION OF A SYSTEMATIC AND DISCIPLINED APPROACH

1) The application of a systematic and disciplined approach to planning, performing, supervising,
reviewing and documenting its activities distinguishes the activities of the internal audit
function from other monitoring control activities that may be performed within the entity.

2) Factors that may affect the external auditor's determination of whether the internal audit
function applies a systematic and disciplined approach include the following:

a) The existence, adequacy and use of documented internal audit procedures or quidance
covering such areas as risk assessments, work programs, documentation and reporting, the
nature and extent of which is commensurate with the size and circumstances of anentity.

b) Whether the infernal audit function has appropriate quality control policies and
procedures.

. 7507545533 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com

Page- 1E.10



CA Rishabh Jain SA 600 Series

CIRCUMSTANCES WHEN WORK OF THE INTERNAL

AUDIT FUNCTION CANNOT BE USED

The external auditor shall not use the work of the internal audit function if the external auditor
determines that:

a) The function's organizational status and relevant policies and procedures do not adequately
support the objectivity of internal auditors;

b) The function lacks sufficient competence; or
¢) Thefunctiondoes not apply asystematic and disciplined approach, including quality control.

DETERMINING THE NATURE AND EXTENT OF WORK OF THE

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION THAT CAN BE USED

1) Asabasis for determining the areas and the extent to which the work of the internal audit
function can be used, the external auditor shall consider the nature and scope of the work that
has been performed, or is planned to be performed, by the internal audit function and its
relevance to the external auditor's overall audit strategy and audit plan.

2) Inother words, once the external auditor has determined that the work of the internal audit
function can be used for purposes of the audit, a first consideration is whether the planned
nature and scope of the work of the internal audit function that has been performed, or is
planned to be performed, is relevant to the overall audit strategy and audit plan that the
external auditor has established.

Examples of work of the internal audit function that can be used by the external auditor include
the following:

a) Testingof the operating effectiveness of controls.

b) Substantive procedures involving limited judgment.

c) Observations of inventory counts.

d) Tracing transactions through the information system relevant to financial reporting.
e) Testing of compliance with regulatory requirements.
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CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR SHALL
PLAN TO USE LESS OF THE WORK OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT

FUNCTION AND PERFORM MORE OF THE WORK DIRECTLY

The external auditor shall make all significant judgments in the audit engagement and, to prevent
undue use of the work of the internal audit function, shall plan to use less of the work of the function
and perform more of the work directly if:

a) Themore judgment is involved in:
(i) Planning and performing relevant audit procedures; and
(i) Evaluating the audit evidence gathered:;

b) The higher the assessed risk of material misstatement at the assertion level, with special
consideration given to risks identified as significant;

¢) thelesstheinternal audit function's organizational status and relevant policies and procedures
adequately support the objectivity of the internal auditors; and

d) thelower the level of competence of the internal audit function.

USING THE WORK OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

If the external auditor plans to use the work of the internal audit function, the external auditor
shall

1) Discuss the planned use of its work with the function as a basis for coordinating their
respective activities.

2) Read the reports of the internal audit function relating to the work of the function that the
external auditor plans to use to obtain an understanding of the nature and extent of audit
procedures it performed and the related findings.

3) Perform sufficient audit procedures on the body of work of the internal audit function as a
whole that the external auditor plans to use to determine its adequacy for purposes of the
audit.

Discussion and Coordination with the Internal Audit Function

In discussing the planned use of their work with the internal audit function as a basis for
coordinating the respective activities, it may be useful to address the following:

1)  The timing of such work.
2) Thenature of the work performed.

3) Theextent of audit coverage.

4) Materiality for the financial statements as awhole (and, if applicable, materiality level or levels
for particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures), and performance
materiality.
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5) Proposed methods of item selection and sample sizes.
6) Documentation of the work performed.
7) Review and reporting procedures.

Coordination between the external auditor and the internal audit
function is effective when, for example:

1) Discussions take place at appropriate intervals throughout the period.

2) Theexternal auditor informs the internal audit function of significant matters that may affect
the function.

3) The external auditor is advised of and has access to relevant reports of the internal audit
function and is informed of any significant matters that come to the attention of the function
when such matters may affect the work of the external auditor so that the external auditor is
able to consider the implications of such matters for the audit engagement.

DETERMINING WHETHER, IN WHICH AREAS, AND TO WHAT
EXTENT INTERNAL AUDITORS CAN BE USED TO PROVIDE

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

1) Direct assistance refers to the use of internal auditors to perform audit procedures under the
direction, supervision and review of the external auditor.

2) The external auditor may be prohibited by law or regulation from obtaining direct assistance
frominternal auditors.

3) If using internal auditors to provide direct assistance is not prohibited by law or regulation,
and the external auditor plans to use internal auditors to provide direct assistance on the audit,
the external auditor shall evaluate the existence and significance of threats to objectivity and
the level of competence of the internal auditors who will be providing such assistance.

4) The external auditor's evaluation of the existence and significance of threats to the internal
auditors' objectivity shall include inquiry of the internal auditors regarding interests and
relationships that may create a threat to their objectivity.

5) The external auditor shall not use an internal auditor to provide direct assistance if:
a) Therearesignificant threats to the objectivity of the internal auditor; or
b) Theinternal auditor lacks sufficient competence to perform the proposed work.

6) The external auditor shall not use internal auditors to provide direct assistance to perform
procedures that:

a) Involve makingsignificant judgments in the audit;
b) Relate to higher assessed risks of material misstatement where the judgment required in
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performing the relevant audit procedures or evaluating the audit evidence gathered is more
thanlimited;

¢) Relate to work with which the internal auditors have been involved and which has already
been, or will be, reported to management or those charged with governance by the internal
audit function; or

d) Relate to decisions the external auditor makes in accordance with this SA regarding the
g internal audit function and the use of its work or direct assistance.

7) Prior to using internal auditors to provide direct assistance for purposes of the audit, the
external auditor shall:

a) Obtain written agreement from an authorized representative of the entity that the
internal auditors will be allowed to follow the external auditor's instructions, and that the
entity will not intervene in the work the internal auditor performs for the externdl
auditor; and

b) Obtain written agreement from the internal auditors that they will keep confidential
specific matters as instructed by the external auditor and inform the external auditor of
any threat to their objectivity.

BASICS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Distinction between Internal Financial Control and Internal Control over financial reporting
1) The term Internal Financial Controls (IFC) refers to the policies and procedures put in place
by companies
a) Forensuring reliability of financial reporting,
b) Effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
c) Compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
d) Safeguarding of assets and prevention and detection of frauds.

2) On the other hand, Internal controls over financial reporting is required where auditors are
required to express an opinion on the effectiveness of an entity's internal controls over
financial reporting, such opinion is in addition to and distinct from the opinion expressed by the
auditor on the financial statements.

3) Therefore, “internal financial control” is a wider term where as "internal controls over financial
reporting” is a narrower term restricted to entity's internal controls over financial reporting
only.
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Forming an Opinion and Reporting
SA 700

on Financial Statements

Introduction

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

This SA deals with the following:

a) Auditor's responsibility to form an opinion on the financial
statements.

b) Form and content of the auditor's report issued as a result of an
audit of financial statements.

The requirements of this SA are aimed at addressing an appropriate
balance between the need for consistency and comparability in auditor
reporting globally and the need to increase the value of auditor reporting by
making the information provided in the auditor's report more relevant to
users.

This SA promotes consistency in the auditor's report, but recognizes the
need for flexibility to accommodate particular circumstances of individual
jurisdictions.

Consistency in the audifor's report, when the audit has been conducted in
accordance with SAs, promotes credibility in the global marketplace by
making more readily identifiable those audits that have been conducted in
accordance with globally recognized standards.

It also helps to promote the user's understanding and to identify unusual
circumstances when they occur.

Objective of

The objectives of the auditor as per SA 700 (Revised) are:

the, duditor a) To form an opinion on the financial statements based on an evaluation of
the conclusions drawn from the audit evidence obtained; and
b) To express clearly that opinion through a written report.
To form an 1)  The auditor shall form an opinion on whether the financial statements are
opinion - prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable
AudiTor to financial reporting framework.
obtain 2) Inorder to form that opinion, the auditor shall conclude as to whether the
reasonable auditor has obtained reasonable assurance about whether the financial
ASSCRSUCS statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
3) That conclusionshall take into account:

a)  Whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained;

b)  Whether uncorrected misstatements are material, individually or in
aggregate;

c) Theevaluations
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Form of Unmodified | The auditor shall express an unmodified opinion when the auditor
Opinion Opinion concludes that the financial statements are prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.

Modified The auditor shall modify the opinion in the auditor's report in

Opinion accordance with SA 705 if the auditor:

a) Concludes that, based on the audit evidence obtained, the
financial statements as a whole are not free from material
misstatement; or

b) Is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to conclude that the financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement.

AUDITOR'S REPORT

The auditor's report shall be in writing. This SA- 700 requires the use of specific headings, which
are intended to assist in making auditor's report more recognizable, where audit is conducted in
accordance with the relevant Standards on Auditing.

Title

‘ Addressee

' Auditor's Opinion
Basis for Opinion

Going Concern
Key Audit Matters
Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Location of the description of the auditor's responsibilities

Other Reporting Responsibilities

Signature of the Auditor

Place of Signature
Date of the Auditor's Report

EEE@EE @

1) Title The auditor's report shall have a title that clearly indicates that it is the
(Independent | report of anindependent auditor.

Auditor's For example, “Independent Auditor's Report,” distinguishes the independent
Report) auditor's report from reports issued by others.
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2) Addressee | a) The auditor's report shall be addressed, as appropriate, based on the

(To the circumstances of the engagement. Law, regulation or the terms of the
Members engagement may specify to whom the auditor's report is to be addressed.
of the b) The auditor's report is normally addressed to those for whom the report

Company) is prepared, of ten either to the shareholders or to those charged with
governance of the entity whose financial statements are being audited.
¢) Incase of a company, the report is addressed to the shareholders of the

company.
3) Auditor's The first section of the auditor's report shall include the auditor's opinion,
Opinion and shall have the heading “"Opinion.”

The Opinion section of the auditor's report shall also:

a) Identify the entity whose financial statements have been audited:;

b) State that the financial statements have been audited;

¢) Identify the title of each statement comprising the financial statements;

d) Refer to the notes, including the summary of significant accounting
policies; and

e) Specify the date of, or period covered by, each financial statement
comprising the financial statements.

Note: While expressing unmodified opinion he shall use the following

a) Incase of Fair Presentation Framework

Inour opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in
all material;respects, ....inaccordance with the applicable FRF,

or

Inour opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair
view of ... Inaccordance with applicable FRF.

The phrases “present fairly, in all material respects,” and “give a true
and fair view" are regarded as being equivalent

, b) Incase of Compliance Framework

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in all material
‘ respectsinaccordance with applicable FRF.
4) Basis

for Opinion

The auditor's report shall include a section, directly following the Opinion

section, with the heading "Basis for Opinion”, that:

a) States that the audit was conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing; :

b) Refersto the sectionof the auditor's report that describes the auditor's
responsibilities under the SAs;

¢) Includes a statement that the auditor is independent of the entity in
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accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to the audit
and has fulfilled the auditor's other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

d) States whether the auditor believes that the audit evidence the auditor
has obtained is sullcient and appropriate to provide a basis for the
auditor's opinion.

Thus, the Basis for opinion section provides important context about the

auditor's opinion.

5) 6Going Where applicable, the auditor shall report in accordance with SA 570
Concern (Revised).

6) Key Audit 1) For audits of complete sets of general purpose financial statements of
Matters listed entities, the auditor shall communicate key audit matters in the

auditor's report in accordance with SA 701,

2) Law or regulation may require communication of key audit matters for
audits of entities other than listed entities.

3) The auditor may also decide to communicate key audit matters for other
entities, including those that may be of significant public interest, for
example because they have a large number and wide range of stakeholders
and considering the nature and size of the business.

7) Management's | The auditor's report shall include a section with a heading "Responsibilities of
Responsibilities| Management for the Financial Statements."

f?r' fh.e This section of the auditor's report shall describe management's
Financial responsibility for:
Statements:

a) Preparing the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary fo enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due o fraud or error.

b) Assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and
whether the use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate as
well as disclosing, if applicable, matters relating to going concern.

Note:

a) Thedescription of management's responsibilities in the auditor's report
includes reference to both responsibilities as it helps to explain to users
the premise onwhich anaudit is conducted.

b) SA 210 requires the auditor to agree management's responsibilities in an
engagement letter or other suitable form of written agreement.

c) Oversight of the financial reporting process: This section of the
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auditor's report shall also identify those responsible for the oversight
of the financial reporting process, when those responsible for such
oversight are different from Management. In this case, the heading of
this section shall also refer to "Those Charged with Governance” or
such term that is appropriate in the context of the legal framework
applicable to the entity.

8) Auditor's The auditor's report shall include a section with the heading "Auditor's
) Responsibilities Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements.”

for the Audit (Refer Note 1 discussed below.)
of the Financial

Statements
9) Location of The description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
the description | financial statements required by this SA shall be included:
of the a) Within the body of the auditor's report;
auditor's

. b) Within an appendix to the auditor's report, in which case the
responsibilities

. auditor's report shall include a reference to the location of the
for the audit -
of the appendix; or
i ¢) By aspecific reference within the auditor's report to the location of
financial such a description on a website of an appropriate authority, where law,
statements regulation or national auditing standards expressly permit the auditor
todoso..

10) Other a) If the auditor addresses other reporting responsibilities in the
reporting auditor's report on the financial statements that are in addition to the
responsibilities auditor's responsibilities under the SAs, these other reporting
(Report on other responsibilities shall be addressed in a separate section in the
legal & auditor's report with a heading titled-

Regulatory b) "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” or otherwise

Requirements) as appropriate to the content of the section, unless these other

reporting responsibilities address the same topics as those presented
under the reporting responsibilities required by the SAs in which case
the other reporting responsibilities may be presented in the same
sectionas the related report elements required by the SAs.

c) If other reporting responsibilities are presented in the same section
as the related report elements required by the SAs, the auditor's
report shall clearly dillerentiate the other reporting responsibilities
from the reporting that is required by the SAs.

d) If the auditor's report contains a separate section that addresses
other reporting responsibilities, the requirements stated above shall
be included under a section with a heading "Report on the Audit of the

! @ 7507545533 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com

Page- 1F.6



CA Rishabh Jain SA 700 Ser‘ies.

Financial Statements.” The “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” shall follow the "Report on the Audit of the Financial
Statements.”

11) Signature | q) The auditor's report shall be signed. The report is signed by the auditor
of auditor (i.e. the engagement partner) in his personal name.

b) Where the firm is appointed as the auditor, the report is signed in the
personal name of the auditor and in the name of the audit firm.

¢) The partner/proprietor signing the audit report also needs to mention the
membership number assigned by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

d) They also include the registration number of the firm, wherever
applicable, as allotted by ICAI, in the audit reports signed by them.

12) P.Iace of The auditor's report shall name specific location, which is ordinarily the city
Signature | 1o re the audit report is signed.
(Auditor's
Address)

13) Date of 1) The auditor's report shall be dated no earlier than the date on which the
Auditor's auditor has obtained sullcient appropriate audit evidence on which to base
report the auditor's opinion on the financial statements, including evidence that:

a) All the statements that comprise the financial statements, including
the related notes, have been prepared:; and

b) Those with the recognized authority have asserted that they have
taken responsibility for those financial statements.

2) The date of the auditor's report informs the user of the auditor's report
that the auditor has considered the ellect of events and transactions of
which the auditor became aware and that occurred up to that date.

3) Theresponsibility for events and transactions after the date of auditor's
report is addressed in SA 560.

1) It was noticed that financial documents/ certificates attested by third person
misrepresenting themselves as CA Members were misleading the Authorities and
Stakeholders.

2) ICATIalsoreceived humber of complaints of signatures of CAs being forged by non CAs. To curb
the malpractices, the Professional Development Committee of ICAI implemented in phased
manner an innovative concept of UDIN.e. Unique Document Identification Number.

3) All Certificates were made mandatory with effect from 1st February, 2019 as per the Council
decision faken at its 379th Meeting held on17th - 18th December, 2018.
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4)

5)

1)

2)

3)

Chartered Accountants having full-time Certificate of Practice can register on UDIN Portal
and generate UDIN by registering the certificates attested/certified by them.

Accordingly, an auditor is required to mention the UDIN with respect to each audit report
being signed by him, alongwith his membership number while signing an audit report.

NOTE 1: AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

(I)This section of the auditor's report shall state:

I

Objectives of
the auditor

That reasonable level of
assurance is high level of
assurance and not gaurantee

Auditors responsibility
section to state

-~y

=

Objectives of
the auditor

That the objectives of the auditor are to:

a) Obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

b) Issue an auditor's report that includes the auditor's opinion.
That reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists; and

That misstatements can arise from fraud or error, and either:

a) Describe that they are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Financial statements; or

b) Provide a definition or description of materiality in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

(II) The Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial

Statements section of the auditor's report shall further:
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( State that audi‘r; (To identify and assess the
exercises risks of material
professional 1t misstatement y
judgement and i .
maintains To obtain an
professional understanding of the
| skepticism i | internal control system
Auditors . S p
responsibility ——— Describe an audit To evaluate the
section to further by stating that I appropriateness of
auditors 1 accounting policies
responsibilities :_
L are : | To conclude the
appropriateness of
[ Describe auditor's | management’s use of
responsibility in L going concern )
group audit ¥ :
- To evaluate the overall
presentation, structure
and content of financial
g statements

1) State that, as part of an audit in accordance with SAs, the auditor exercises professional
Jjudgment and maintains professional skepticism throughout the audit; and

2) Describe an audit by stating that the auditor's responsibilities are:

a) To identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error; to design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and to obtain audit evidence that is sullcient and appropriate to provide a basis
for the auditor’s opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) To obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

c) To evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) To conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's
ability to continue as a going concern.

e) When the financial statements are prepared in accordance with a fair presentation
framework, to evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
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the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

3)  When SA 600 applies, further describe the auditor’s responsibilities in a group audit
engagement by stating:
The division of responsibility for the financial information of the entity by indicating the
extent to which the financial information of components is audited by the other auditors have

been included in the financial information of the entity, e.g., the number of
divisions/branches/subsidiaries or other components audited by other auditors.

(III) The Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial

Statements section of the auditor's report also shall:

1)  State that the auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that the auditor identifies during the
audit;

2)  For audits of financial statements of listed entities, state that the auditor provides those
charged with governance with a statement that the auditor has complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on the auditor's independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards; and

3)  Foraudits of financial statements of listed entities and any other entities for which key audit
matters are communicated in accordance with SA 701, state that, from the matters
communicated with those charged with governance, the auditor determines those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. The auditor describes these matters in the
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure.

NOTE 2: SPECIFIC EVALUATIONS BY THE AUDITOR

The auditor shall evaluate whether:
a) The financial statements adequately disclose the significant accounting policies selected and
applied; ,
* b) The accounting policies selected and applied are consistent with the applicable financial
reporting framework and are appropriate;
¢) Theaccounting estimates made by management are reasonable;

d) The information presented in the financial statements is relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable;

e) The financial statements provide adequate disclosures to enable the intended users to
understand the effect of material transactions and events on the information conveyed in the
financial statements; and

f) The terminology used in the financial statements, including the title of each financial
statement, is appropriate.
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Note:

Further, when the financial statements are prepared in accordance with a fair presentation
framework, the evaluation mentioned above shall also include an evaluation by the auditor as to
whether the financial statements achieve fair presentation which shall include consideration of :

a) Theoverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements; and
b) Whether the financial statements, including the related notes, represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

The auditor shall evaluate whether the financial statements adequately refer to or describe
the applicable financial reporting framework.

NOTE 3: QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY'S

ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

1)  Management makes a number of judgments about the amounts and disclosure sin the financial
statements.

2) SA 260 (Revised) contains adiscussion of the qualitative aspects of accounting practices.

3) Inconsidering the qualitative aspects of the entity's accounting practices, the auditor may
become aware of possible bias in management's judgments. The auditor may conclude that lack
of neutrality together with uncorrected misstatements causes the financial statements to be
materially misstated.

4) Indicators of alack of neutrality include the following:

a) Theselective correction of misstatements brought o management's attention during the
audit.

b) Possible management bias in the making of accounting estimates.
5) SA 540addresses possible management bias in making accounting estimates.

NOTE 4 - DEFINITION

1) General purpose financial statements - Financial statements prepared in accordance with a
general purpose framework.

2) General purpose framework - A financial reporting framework designed to meet the common
financial information needs of a wide range of users. The financial reporting framework may be
a fair presentation framework or a compliance framework.

Note:

a) Fair presentation framework - The term "fair presentation framework" is used to refer o a
financial reporting framework that requires compliance with the requirements of the
framework and:

(i) Acknowledges explicitly or implicitly that, to achieve fair presentation of the financial
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statements, it may be necessary for management to provide disclosures beyond those
specifically required by the framework; or

(i) Acknowledges explicitly that it may be necessary for management to depart from a
requirement of the framework to achieve fair presentation of the financial statements.
Such departures are expected to be necessary only in extremely rare circumstances.

For example - FS of a company under Companies Act 2013.

7 b) Compliance framework - FRF requiring compliance with requirements of the framework that
does not contain acknowledgement as above.

The term “compliance framework” is used to refer to a financial reporting framework that
requires compliance with the requirements of the framework, but does not contain the
acknowledgements in (i) or (ii) above.

NOTE 5: AUDITOR'S REPORT PRESCRIBED BY LAW

OR REGULATION (ONLY FOR REFERENCE)

1) SA 200 explains that the auditor may be required to comply with legal or regulatory
requirements in addition to SAs. When the differences between the legal or regulatory
requirements and SAs relate only to the layout and wording of the auditor's report, the
requirements stated below in points (a)-(m) set out the minimum elements to be included in the
auditor's report to enable a reference to the Standards on Auditing.

2) Where specific requirements in a particular law or regulation do not conflict with SAs, the
layout and wording required by this SA assist users of the auditor's report in more readily
recognizing the auditor's report as a report of an audit conducted in accordance with SAs.

3) If the auditor is required by law or regulation to use a specific layout, or wording of the
auditor's report, the auditor's report shall refer to Standards on Auditing only if the
auditor's report includes, at a minimum, each of the following elements:

a) Atitle.

b) Anaddressee, as required by the circumstances of the engagement.

¢) An Opinion section containing an expression of opinion on the financial statements and a
reference to the applicable financial reporting framework used to prepare the financial
statements.

d) Anidentification of the entity's financial statements that have been audited.

e) A statement that the auditor is independent of the entity in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to the audit, and has fulfilled the auditor's other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The statement shall refer to the
Code of Ethics issued by ICAT.

f)  Where applicable, a section that addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the reporting
requirements relating to going concern as per SA 570 (Revised).

g) Where applicable, a Basis for Qualified (or Adverse) Opinion section that addresses, and
is not inconsistent with, the reporting requirements relating to going concern as per SA
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570 (Revised).

h) Where applicable, a section that includes the information required by SA 701, or
additional information about the audit that is prescribed by law or regulation and that
addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the reporting requirements in that SA.

i) A description of management's responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements and an identification of those responsible for the oversight of the financial
reporting process that addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the requirements as
contained in this SA 700.

J)  Areference to Standards on Auditing and the law or regulation, and a description of the
auditor's responsibilities for an audit of the financial statements that addresses, and is
not inconsistent with, the requirements as contained in this SA 700.

k) Theauditor's signature.
I)  ThePlace of signature.
m) Thedate of the auditor's report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Sample Report Format)

To the Members of ABC Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion:

We have audited the standalone fihancial statements of ABC Company Limited (“the Company"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 20XX, and the statement of Profit and Loss,
(statement of changes in equity) and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information [in which are included the Returns for the year ended on that date audited
by the branch auditors of the Company's branches located at (location of branches)].

Inour opinion and Yo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of allairs of the Company as at March 31, 20XX, and profit/loss,
(changes in equity) and its cash flows for the year ended on that date..

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sullcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with SA 701 ]

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements:
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
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Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
(changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with6é the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating ellectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Paragraph 40(b) of this SA explains that the shaded material below can be located in an Appendix
to the auditor's report. Paragraph 40(c) explains that when law, regulation or applicable auditing
standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a website of an appropriate authority that
contains the description of the auditor's responsibilities, rather than including this material in
the auditor's report, provided that the description on the website addresses, and is not
inconsistent with, the description of the auditor's responsibilities below.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Idenhfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sullcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
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misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
. accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attentioninour auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, Yo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events inamanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter:

We did not audit the financial statements/ information of .................. (number) branches included
in the stand alone financial statements of the Company whose financial statements/financial
information reflect total assetsof * ...............asat 31st March 20XX and the total revenue of *
................... for the year ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial
statements/information of these branches have been audited by the branch auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and
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disclosures included in respect of branches, is based solely on the report of such branch
auditors.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)  Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books [and proper returns adequate for the
purposes of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by us.]

¢) [The reports on the accounts of the branch ollces of the Company audited under Section
143(8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with
by us in preparing this report.]

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account [and with the returns
received from the branches not visited by us].

e) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts)Rules, 2014,

f)  We do not have any observation or comment on the financial statements or matters which
have any adverse effect on the functioning of the company.

g) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
20XX taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 20XX from being appointed as a director in terms of Section164 (2) of the Act.

h)  Wedo not have any qualification, reservation or adverse remark relating to the maintenance
of accounts and other matters connected herewith.

i) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating ellectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in"Annexure A"

J) With respect to the other matters fo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position inits
financial statements - Refer Note XX to the financial statements; [or the Company does
hot have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position]
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2) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts - Refer Note XX to the financial statements; [or the Company did
not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.]

3) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company {or, following are the instances
of delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company or there were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company}.

4)

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or

" loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether

" recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
~ other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of

_ the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material
mis-statement.

5) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

6) The company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software and the
audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by
the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.
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For XYZ & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.)

Signature

(Name of the Member Signing the Audit Report)

Place of Signature: (Desighation)
Date: (Membership No. XXXXX)

UDIN: 20037320AAAAAHI111
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SA 701

Communicating Key Audit Matters In
The Independent Auditor's Report

Introduction

SA 701 deals with the auditor's responsibility to communicate key audit
matters in the auditor's report. It is intended to address both the auditor's
judgement as to what to communicate in the auditor's report and the form and
content of such communication.

Definition

Those matters that, in the auditor's professional judgment, were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period.
Key audit matters are selected from matters communicated with those
charged with governance.

Objectives of
the Auditor

regarding Key
Audit Matters

As per SA 701, “"Communicating Key Audit Matters in The Independent
Auditor's Report”, the objectives of the auditor are to determine key audit
matters and, having formed an opinion on the financial statements,
communicate those matters by describing them in the auditor's report.

P""P°se_°f | @) As per SA 701, “"Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Auditor's
Communicating Report”, the purpose of communicating key audit matters is to enhance
Key Audit the communicative value of the auditor's report by providing greater
Matters transparency about the audit that was performed.

b) Communicating key audit matters provides additional information to
intended users of the financial statements to assist them in
understanding those matters that, in the auditor's professional
judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period.

c) Communicating key audit matters may also assist intended users in
understanding the entity and areas of significant management
Jjudgment in the audited financial statements.

Determining 1) The auditor shall determine, from the matters communicated with those
I;AeYl'tAUd” charged with governance, those matters that required significant auditor
atters

attention in performing the audit.
2) In making this determination, the auditor shall take into account the
following:
a) Areas of higher assessed risk of material misstatement, or
significant risks identified in accordance with SA 315,

b) Significant auditor judgments relating to areas in the financial
statements that involved significant management judgment,
including accounting estimates that have been identified as having
high estimation uncertainty.

7507545533
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3)

c) The effect on the audit of significant events or transactions that
occurred during the period.

The auditor shall determine which of the matters determined, as stated

above, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements

of the current period and therefore are the key audit matters.

Communicating
Key Audit
Matters

The auditor shall describe each key audit matter, using an appropriate
subheading, in a separate section of the auditor's report under the heading
"Key Audit Matters”. The introductory language in this section of the
auditor's report shall state that:

a)

b)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditor's professional
Jjudgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements [of the current period]; and

These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor's opinion thereon, and
the auditor does not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Communicating
Key Audit
Matters- not
a substitute
for disclosure
in the Financial
Statements
efc.

Communicating key audit matters in the auditor's report is in the context of
the auditor having formed an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
Communicating key audit matters in the auditor's report is not:

a)

b)

d)

A substitute for disclosures in the financial statements that the
applicable financial reporting framework requires management to make,
or that are otherwise necessary to achieve fair presentation;

A substitute for the auditor expressing a modified opinion when
required by the circumstances of a specific audit engagement in
accordance with SA 705 (Revised);

A substitute for reporting in accordance with SA 570 when a material
uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may. cast
significant doubt onan entity's ability to continue as a going concern; or

A separate opinion on individual matters.

Communication
with Those
Charged with
Governance

The auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance:

a)
b)

Those matters the auditor has determined to be the key audit matters; or

If applicable, depending on the facts and circumstances of the entity and
the audit, the auditor's determination that there are no key audit
matters to communicate in the auditor's report.
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APPLICABILITY OF SA 701

1)

2)

3)

It is intended to address both the auditor's judgment as to what to communicate in the
auditor's report and the form and content of such communication

This SA applies to audits of complete sets of general purpose financial statements of :

a) listed entities and

b) circumstances when the auditor otherwise decides to communicate key audit matters in
the auditor's report and

c) required by law or regulation fo communicate key audit matters in the auditor's report

However, SA 705 (Revised) prohibits the auditor from communicating key audit matters when

the auditor disclaims an opinion on the financial statements, unless such reporting is required

by law or regulation
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SA 705

Modifieation To The Opinion In
The Independent Auditor's Report:

Introduction

SA 705 "Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor's Report”
deals with the auditor's responsibility to issue an appropriate report in
circumstances when, in forming an opinion in accordance with SA 700 (Revised)
"Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements”, the auditor
concludes that a modification to the auditor's opinion on the financial
statements is necessary

Objective of
the Auditor
(Circumstances

As per SA 705 the objective of the auditor is to express clearly an
appropriately modified opinion on the financial statements when:

sufficient and
appropriate
evidence

a) The auditor concludes based on the audit evidence obtained, that the
when a . :
- ] financial statements as a whole are not free from material
modification to A
the Auditor's misstatements; or

. b) The auditor is unable fo obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
opinion is conclude that the financial statements as a whole are free from material
required) misstatements.

Types of a) Agqualified opinion

Medified b) Anadverse opinion

Opinions ¢) Adisclaimer of opinion

Nature of Auditor's judgment about the pervasiveness of the effects or possible
matter giving | effects of the matter on financial statements

rise to the

modification Material but not pervasive Material and pervasive
Financial

statements are Qualified Opinion Adverse Opinion
materially

misstated

Inability to

obtain Qualified Opinion Disclaimer of Opinion

Description of
Auditor's
Responsibilities
for the Audit
of the Financial

Statements

When the auditor disclaims an opinion on the financial statements due fo an
inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, the auditor shall
amend the description of the auditor's responsibilities required by SA 700
(Revised) fo include only the following:

(@) 7507545533
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When the a) Astatement that the auditor's responsibility is to conduct an audit of the
Auditor entity's financial statements in accordance with Standards on Auditing
Disclaims an and to issue anauditor's report;
O_p""°'_‘ on the b) A statement that, however, because of the matter(s) described in the
Financial Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section, the auditor was not able to
Statements obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on the financial statements; and
< c) The statement about auditor independence and other ethical

responsibilities required by SA 700 (Revised).

Considerations | n|ess required by law or regulation, when the auditor disclaims an opinion on
When the the financial statements, the auditor's report shall not include a Key Audit

Auditor Matters section inaccordance with SA 701 .
Disclaims an

Opinion on the
Financial
Statements

Communication | When the auditor expects to modify the opinion in the auditor's report, the
with those auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance the
charged with | ircumstances that led to the expected modification and the wording of the
GONERIONCS modification.

NOTE 1: DEFINITION OF PERVASIVE

A termused, in the context of misstatements, to describe the effects on the financial statements
of misstatements or the possible effects on the financial statements of misstatements, if any, that
are undetected due to aninability to obtain sullcient appropriate audit evidence.

Pervasive effects on the financial statements are those that, in the auditor's judgment:
a) Are not confined to specific elements, accounts or items of the financial statements;

b) If so confined, represent or could represent a substantial proportion of the financial
statements; or

c) In relation to disclosures, are fundamental to users' understanding of the financial
statements.
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NOTE 2: MEANING OF QUALIFIED, ADVERSE AND

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION [AS PER ICAI MODULE]

Qualified Opinion

The auditor shall express a qualified opinion when:

a) The auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, concludes that
misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are material, but not pervasive, to the
financial statements; or

b) The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on which to base the
opinion, but the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of
undetected misstatements, if any, could be material but not pervasive.

Adverse Opinion

The auditor shall express an adverse opinion when the auditor, having obtained sullcient appropriate
audit evidence, concludes that misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are both
material and pervasive to the financial statements.

Disclaimer of Opinion

a) The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when the auditor is unable to obtain sullcient appropriate
audit evidence on which to base the opinion, and the auditor concludes that the possible
effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if any, could be both
material and pervasive.

b) The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when, in extremely rare circumstances involving multiple
uncertainties, the auditor concludes that, notwithstanding having obtained sullcient
appropriate audit evidence regarding each of the individual uncertainties, it is not possible to
form an opinion on the financial statements due to the potential interaction of the
uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on the financial statements.

FORM & CONTENT OF AUDITOR'S REPORT WHEN

THE OPINION IS MODIFIED

When the auditor modifies the audit opinion, the auditor shall use the heading "Qualified Opinion,"
"Adverse Opinion,” or "Disclaimer of Opinion," as appropriate, for the Opinion section.

Wordings of Qualified Opinion

When the auditor expresses a qualified opinion due to a material misstatement in the financial
statements, the auditor shall state in the opinion paragraph that, in the auditor's opinion,
except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph:
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a) The financial statements present fairly, in all material respects (or give a true and fair
view) in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework when reporfmg in
accordance with a fair presentation framework; or -

b) The financial statements have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
the applicable financial reporting framework. (Compliance framework)

Note: When the modification arises from an inability o obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence, the auditor shall use the corresponding phrase “except for the possible effects of
the matter(s)..." for the modified opinion.

Wordings of Adverse

When the auditor expresses an adverse opinion, the auditor shall state that, In the auditor's
opinion, because of the significance of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Adverse
Opinion paragraph:

a) The financial statements do not present fairly (or give a true and fair view) in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework when reporting in accordance with a fair
presentation framework;

or

b) The financial statements have not been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework. (Compliance framework).

Wordings of Disclaimer of Opinion

When the auditor disclaims an opinion due to inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence, the auditor shall:

a) Statethat the auditor does not express an opinion on the accompanying FS.

b) State that, because of the significance of the matter(s) described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section, the auditor has not been able to obtain SAAE to provide a
basis for anaudit opinion on the Financial statements.

c) Amend the statement in the opinion section, which indicates that the financial
statements have been audited, to state that the auditor was engaged to audit the
‘ financial statements.

NOTE 4 - WHICH TYPE OF OPINION IS APPROPRIATE?

The decision regarding which type of modified opinion is appropriate depends upon:

a) The nature of the matter giving rise to the modification, that is, whether the financial
statements are materially misstated or, in the case of an inability to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence, may be materially misstated; and

b) The auditor's judgment about the pervasiveness of the effects or possible effects of the
matter on the financial statements.
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NOTE 5 - BASIS FOR OPINION

When the auditor modifies the opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall, in addition to
the specific elements required by SA 700 (Revised):

a) Amend the heading "Basis for Opinion” required by para of SA 700 (Revised) to “Basis for
Qualified Opinion,” "Basis for Adverse Opinion,” or “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion,” as
appropriate; and

b) Within this section, include a description of the matter giving rise to the modification.

Following points should be kept in mind while including content under “Basis for Opinion”

Paragraph:

1) If there is a material misstatement of the financial statements that relates to specific
amounts in the financial statements (including quantitative disclosures in the notes to the
financial statements), the auditor shall include in the Basis for Opinion sectiona description and
quantification of the financial effects of the misstatement, unless impracticable.

2) If it is not practicable to quantify the financial effects, the auditor shall so state in this
section.

3) If there is a material misstatement of the financial statements that relates to narrative
disclosures, the auditor shall include in the Basis for Opinion section an explanation of how the
disclosures are misstated.

4) If there is a material misstatement of the financial statements that relates to the non-
disclosure of information required to be disclosed, the auditor shall:

a) Discuss the non-disclosure with those charged with governance;
b) Describe inthe Basis for Opinionsection the nature of the omitted information; and

¢) Unless prohibited by law or regulation, include the omitted disclosures, provided it is
practicable to do so and the auditor has obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the omitted information.

5) If themodificationresults fromaninability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, the
auditor shall include in the Basis for Opinion section the reasons for that inability.

6) When the auditor expresses a qualified or adverse opinion, the auditor shall amend the
statement about whether the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for the auditor's opinion required by SA 700 (Revised) to include the word "qualified”, or
"adverse", as appropriate.

7) When the auditor disclaims an opinion on the financial statements, the auditor's report shall
not include the following elements required by SA 700 (Revised).

a) A reference to the section of the auditor's report where the auditor's responsibilities
are described; and

b) A statement about whether the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for the auditor's opinion.

8) Evenif the auditor has expressed an adverse opinion or disclaimed an opinion on the financial
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statements, the auditor shall describe in the Basis for Opinion section the reasons for any
other matters of which the auditor is aware that would have required a modification to the
opinion, and the effects thereof.

. NOTE 6: CONSEQUENCE OF AN INABILITY TO OBTAIN
SUFFICIENT APPROPRIATE AUDIT EVIDENCE DUE TO A

MANAGEMENT -IMPOSED LIMITATION AFTER THE AUDITOR
HAS ACCEPTED THE ENGAGEMENT

1) If, after accepting the engagement, the auditor becomes aware that management has imposed
a limitation on the scope of the audit that the auditor considers likely to result in the need to
express a qualified opinion or to disclaim an opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall
request that management remove the limitation.

2) If management refuses to remove the limitation, the auditor shall communicate the matter to
those charged with governance, unless all of those charged with governance are involved in
managing the entity and determine whether it is possible fo perform alternative procedures to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

3) TIf the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, the auditor shall
determine the implications as follows:

a) If the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of
undetected misstatements, if any, could be material but not pervasive, the auditor shall
qualify the opinion; or

b) If the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of
undetected misstatements, if any, could be both material and pervasive so that a

qualification of the opinion would be inadequate to communicate the gravity of the
situation, the auditor shall:

() Withdraw from the audit, where practicable and possible under applicable law or
regulation; or

(i) Ifwithdrawal from the audit before issuing the auditor's report is not practicable
or possible, disclaim an opinion on the financial statements.

4) If the auditor withdraws as contemplated above , before withdrawing, the auditor shall
communicate fo those charged with governance any matters regarding misstatements
identified during the audit that would have given rise to a modification of the opinion.
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Inability to Obtain Sufficient Appropriate Audit Evidence Due to
a Management-Imposed Limitation after the Auditor has Accepted
the Engagement

remove the limitation

{ Request the management to ]

I

s

Management removes

the limitation
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—
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Proceed with audit ‘

procedures
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[ Management Refuses }

to remove the limitation
|
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Possible Effects Material [ Possible effects material |
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Opinion
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Practical Insight into Modification to the Opinion

Illustration 1: Qualified Opinion due to a Material Misstatement of the Financial
Statement

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ABC Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion -

We have audited the standalone financial statements of ABC Company Limited (“the Company"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 20XX, and the statement of Profit and Loss,
(statement of changes in equity)13 and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (in which are included the Returns for the year ended on that date
audited by the branch auditors of the Company's branches located at (location of branches))14.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31st, 2XX and profit/loss, (changes in equity) and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion -

The Company's inventories are carried in the Balance Sheet at ¥ XXX. Management has not stated
the inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value but has stated them solely at cost,
which constitutes a departure from the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Company's records indicate that, had management stated the
inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value, an amount of T xxx would have been
‘ required to write the inventories down to their net realizable value. Accordingly, cost of sales
would have been increased by X xxx, and income tax, het income and shareholders' funds would
have been reduced by T xxx, ¥ xxx and X xxx, respectively.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India fogether with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAT's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
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appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters -

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Inaddition to the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Other Matter -

We did not audit the financial statements/information of (number) branches included in the
standalone financial statements of the Company whose financial statements / financial
information reflect total assets of * yyyy as at 31st March, 20XX and total revenues of * zzzz for
the year ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial statements. The financial
statements/information of these branches have been audited by the branch auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these branches, is based solely on the report of such branch
auditors.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

For XYZ & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.)

Signature
(Name of the Member Signing the Audit Report)
(Designation)
Place of Signature: (Membership No. XXXXX)
Date:
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Illustration 2: Adverse Opinion due to a Material Misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ABC Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion -

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ABC Company Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group"), its associates and jointly controlled
entities, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2XXX, the consolidated
statement of profit and Loss, (consolidated statement of changes in equity)18 and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred
to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of
our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state
of affairs of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities, as at March 31, 20XX, of its
consolidated profit/loss, (consolidated position of changes in equity)19 and the consolidated cash
flows for the year thenended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion -

As explained in Note X, the Group has not consolldafed subsidiary XYZ Company that the Group
acquired during 20XX because it has not yet been able to determine the fair values of certain of
the subsidiary's material assets and liabilities at the acquisition date. This investment is
y therefore accounted for on a cost basis. Under the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, the Group should have consolidated this subsidiary and accounted for the acquisition based
on provisional amounts. Had XYZ Company been consolidated, many elements in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements would have been materially affected. The effects on ’rhe
consolidated financial statements of the failure to consolidate have not been determined.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, its associates and Jomﬂy
controlled entities, in accordance with the Code of Ethics and provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India under the
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Companies Act, 2013, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code of Ethics and the requirements under the Companies act, 2013. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse
opinion,

Key Audit Matters -

Except for the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section, we have determined
that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
For XYZ & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.)

Signature

(Name of the Member Signing the Audit Report)

Place of Signature: (Designation)
Date: (Membership No. XXXXX)
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Illustration 3: Qualified Opinion due to the Auditor's Inability to Obtain
Sufficient Audit Evidence Regarding a Foreign Associate

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ABC Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion -

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ABC Company Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group"), its associates and jointly controlled
entities, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 20XX, and the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, (consolidated statement of changes in equity)23 and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred
to as “the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state
of affairs as at March 31, 2XXX, consolidated profit/loss, (consolidated changes in equity),
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion -

The Group's investment in XYZ Company, a foreign associate acquired during the year and
accounted for by the equity method, is carried at * xxx on the consolidated balance sheet as at
March 31, 20XX, and ABC's share of XYZ's net income of xxx is included in ABC's income for the
year then ended. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
. carrying amount of ABC's investment in XYZ as at March 31, 2XXX and ABC's share of XYZ's net
income for the year because we were denied access to the financial information, management, and
' the auditors of XYZ. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to
these amounts were necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its associates and joint
ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
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of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters -

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
sighificance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statementsasa
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

For XYZ & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.)

Signature
(Name of the Member signing the Audit Report)
(Designation)
(Membership No. XXXXX)
Place of Signature:
Date:
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Illustration 4: Disclaimer of Opinion due to the Auditor's Inability to
Obtain Sufficient Appropriate Audit Evidence about a Single Element of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ABC Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclaimer of Opinion -

We were engaged to audit the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ABC Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 20XX, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss,
(consolidated statement of changes in equity) 28 and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion -

The Group's investment in its joint venture XYZ Company is carried at * xxx on the Group's
consolidated balance sheet, which represents over 90% of the Group's net assets as at March
31, 20XX. We were not allowed access to the management and the auditors of XYZ Company,
including XYZ Company's auditors' audit documentation. As a result, we were unable to
determine whether any adjustments were necessary in respect of the Group's proportional
: share of XYZ Company's assets that it controls jointly, its proportional share of XYZ Company's
liabilities for which it is jointly responsible, its proportional share of XYZ's income and expenses
' for the year, (and the elements making up the consolidated statement of changes in equity) 29
and the consolidated cash flow statement.

Responsibilities of Management :and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial statements in
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accordance with Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor's report. However, because of
the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
For XYZ & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.)
Signature
(Name of the Member signing the Audit Report)
(Designation)
(Membership No. XXXXX)
Place of Signature:
Date:

@ 7507545533 Page- 1F.39 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com



SA 700 Series CA Rishabh Jain

7507545533

@ www.ekatvamacademy.com

Page- 1F.40



S A 706 Emphasis of Matter Paragraph & other Matter
Paragraph in the Independent Auditor's Report

SA 706 deals with additional communication in the auditor's report when the auditor considers
it necessary to:

a) Draw users' attention to a matter or matters presented or disclosed in the financial
statements that are of such importance that they are fundamental to users’ understanding of
the financial statements; or

b) Draw users' attention to any matter or matters other than those presented or disclosed in
the financial statements that are relevant to user's understanding of the audit, the auditor's
responsibilities or the auditor's report.

OBJECTIVE OF THE AUDITOR AS PER SA 706

As per SA 706 (Revised) on "Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs In
The Independent Auditor's Report”, the objective of the auditor, having formed an opinion on the
financial statements, is to draw users' attention, when in the auditor's judgment it is necessary to
do so, by way of clear additional communication in the auditor's report, to:

a) A matter, although appropriately presented or disclosed in the financial statements, that is of
such importance that it is fundamental fo users' understanding of the financial statements; or

b) As appropriate, any other matter that is relevant to users’ understanding of the audit, the
auditor's responsibilities or the auditor's report.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER PARAGRAPH

Meaning A paragraph included in the auditor's report that refers to a matter
appropriately presented or disclosed in the financial statements that in the
auditor's judgment, is of such importance that it is fundamental to users
understanding of the financial statements.

Emphasis of If the auditor considers it necessary to draw users' attention to a matter
Matter presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor's
Paragraphs in | judgment,isof such importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding
the Auditor's | of the financial statements, the auditor shall include an Emphasis of Matter
Report paragraph in the auditor's report provided:

a) The auditor would not be required to modify the opinion in accordance
with SA 705 (Revised) as a result of the matter; and

b) When SA 701 applies, the matter has not been determined to be a key
audit matter to be communicated in the auditor's report.
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/

Separate
section for
Emphasis of
Matter
paragraph

When the auditor includes an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the
auditor's report, the auditor shall:

a) Include the paragraph within a separate section of the auditor's report
with an appropriate heading that includes the term “Emphasis of
Matter”;

b) Include in the paragraph a clear reference to the matter being
emphasized and to where relevant disclosures that fully describe the
matter can be found in the financial statements. The paragraph shall
refer only to information presented or disclosed in the financial
statements; and

¢) Indicate that the auditor's opinion is not modified in respect of the
matter emphasized.

Examples
where EOM
may be
necessary

a)  Anuncertainty relating to the future outcome of exceptional litigation
orregulatory action.

b) A significant subsequent event that occurs between the date of the
financial statements and the date of the auditor's report.

c) Early application (where permitted) of a new accounting standard that
has amaterial effect onthe financial statements.

d) A major catastrophe that has had, or contfinues to have, a significant
effect on the entity's financial position.

The inclusion
of an Emphasis
of Matter
paragraph in
the auditor's
report does
not affect the
auditor's
opinion

An Emphasis of Matter paragraph is not a substitute for:

a) A modified opinion in accordance with SA 705 (Revised) when required by
the circumstances of a specific audit engagement;

b) Disclosures in the financial statements that the applicable financial
reporting framework requires management to make, or that are otherwise
necessary to achieve fair presentation; or

c) Reporting in accordance with SA 570 (Revised) when a material
uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast
sighificant doubt on an entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

' OTHER MATTER PARAGRAPH

Meaning

A paragraph included in the auditor's report that refers to a matter other
than those presented or disclosed in the financial statements that in the
auditor's judgment, is relevant to users understanding of the audit, the
auditor's responsibilities or the auditor's report.
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Separate When the auditor includes an other Matter paragraph in the auditor's report,
section for the auditor shall include the paragraph within a separate section with the
Other Matter heading "Other Matter,” or other appropriate heading.

paragraph

OM Para in the | Tf the quditor considers it necessary to communicate a matter other than
Auditor's those that are presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the
Report auditor's judgment, is relevant to users' understanding of the audit, the

auditor's responsibilities or the auditor's report, the auditor shall include an
Other Matter paragraph in the auditor's report, provided:

a) Thisisnot prohibited by law or regulation; and

b) When SA 701 applies, the matter has not been determined to be a key
audit matter to be communicated in the auditor's report.

Note: Examples where OM para might be suitable -
« Refer SA 510, 710, 600, 560 & 720
+ Otherreporting responsibilities

Note 1: Communication with Those Charged with Governance

If the auditor expects to include an Emphasis of Matter or an Other Matter Paragraph in the
auditor's report, the auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance regarding this
expectationand the proposed wording of this paragraph.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ABC Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 2

. Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements of ABC Company Limited (“the Company’}, which
¥ comprise the balance sheet as atMarch 31, 20X1, and the statement of Profit & Loss, (statement of changes

in equity) and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended. and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information {in which are included
the Retums for the year ended on that date audited by the branch auditors of the Company's branches located

at {focation of branches)) 13

In our opnion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the aforesaid
financial statements, give a true and fair view, in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2XXX and profitlloss, {changes in equity) and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audtt of the financial statements as per the ICAl's Code of Ethics and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and we have fuffiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter 14

We draw attention to Note X of the financial statements, which describes the effects of a fire in the Company's
production facilities. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with SA 701]
Other Matter

121 The sub-vie ‘Report on the Audit of the Standaline Financial Statements” is unnecessary in circumstances when the second sub-
utie *Report on Other Legal and Regulatary Requirerments 1s not applicable.

13 As may be applicable

14 As noted in paragraph Ath, an Emphacis of Matter paragraph may be presented either direcily before or akter the Key Audtt Matiers
section based on the auditor's judgment as to the relative signficance of the infarmation induded in the Emphasis of Mater paragraph.
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The financial statements of ABC Company for the year ended March 31, 20X0, were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 31, 20X1.

Responasibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
[Reporting in accordance with SA 700 {Revised) — see lliustration 1 in SA 700 (Revised) ]

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

[Reporting in accordance with SA 700 (Revised) - see lHlustration 1 in SA 700 (Revised) ]

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

[Reporting in accordance with SA 700 (Revised) - see lilustration 1 in SA 700 (Revised) )

For XYZ & Co
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration No.)

Signature
{Name of the Member signing the Audit Report)

(Designation 15)
(Membership No. XXXXX)
Place of Signature:
Date:
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S A 7 1 0 “Comparative Information - Corresponding
figures and Comparative Financial Statements”

Introduction 1) This SA deals with the auditor's responsibilities regarding comparative
information in an audit of financial statements.

2) When the financial statements of the prior period have been audited by a
predecessor auditor or were not audited, the requirements and guidance
in SA 510 regarding opening balances also apply.

Meaning 1) Comparative information

The amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements in
respect of one or more prior periods in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

2) Comparative financial statements

Comparative information where amounts and other disclosures for the
prior period are included for comparison with the financial statements of
the current period but, if audited, are referred to in the auditor's opinion.

The level of information included in those comparative financial
statements is comparable with that of the financial statements of the
current period.

3) Correspondin ures

a) Comparative information where amounts and other disclosures for
the prior period are included as an integral part of the current
period financial statements and are intended to be read only in
relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current
period (referred to as “current period figures").

b) The level of detail presented in the corresponding amounts and
disclosures is dictated primarily by its relevance to the current
period figures.

Audit The essential audit reporting differences between the approaches are:
Reporting a) Comparative financial statements: Auditor's Opinion refers to each
(difference period for which financial statements are presented and on which an audit
between two opinion is expressed.

approaches)

b) Corresponding Figures: Auditor's Opinion on financial statements refers
to current period only.

: @ 7507545533 Page- 1F.47 @ www.ekatvamacademy.com



SA 700 Ser'ies. CA Rishabh Jain

Objectives Asper SA 710, the objectives of the auditorare:
a) To obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether the

comparative information included in the financial statements has been
presented, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements
for comparative information in the applicable financial reporting
framework; and

. b) To reportinaccordance with the auditor's reporting responsibilities.
Audit 1) The auditor shall determine whether the Financial statements include
Procedure the comparative information required by the applicable Financial
regar'dmg. reporting framework and whether such information is appropriately
comparative classified. For this purpose, the auditor shall evaluate whether:
information

a) The comparative information agrees with the amounts and other
disclosures presented in the prior period; and

b) The accounting policies reflected in the comparative information are
consistent with those applied in the current period or, if there have
been changes in accounting policies, whether those changes have been
properly accounted for and adequately presented and disclosed.

2) Evaluating the impact on financial statement: If the auditor becomes
aware of a possible material misstatement in the comparative
informationwhile performing the current period audit,

a) the auditor shall perform such additional audit procedures as are
necessary in the circumstances to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to determine whether a material misstatement exists.

b) If the auditor had audited the prior period's financial statements,
the auditor shall also follow the relevant requirements of SA 560

3) Weritten Representation: As required by SA 580, the auditor should also
request written representation for all the period referred in the
auditor's opinion. He should also obtain a specific written representation
regarding any prior period item that is separately disclosed in current
year's financial statement.
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AUDIT REPORTING REGARDING CORRESPONDING FIGURES

When corresponding figures are presented, the auditor's opinion
shall not refer to the corresponding figures except in the following

circumstances:

1) If the auditor's report on the prior period, as previously issued, included a qualified
opinion, a disclaimer of opinion, or an adverse opinion and the matter which gave rise to the
modification is unresolved, the auditor shall modify the auditor's opinion on the current
period's financial statements. In the Basis for Modification paragraph in the auditor's
report, the auditor shall either:

a) Refer to both the current period's figures and the corresponding figures in the
description of the matter giving rise to the modification when the effects or possible
effects of the matter on the current period's figures are material; or

b) Inother cases, explain that the audit opinion has been modified because of the effects or
possible effects of the unresolved matter on the comparability of the current period's
figures and the corresponding figures.

2) If the auditor obtains audit evidence that a material misstatement exists in the prior
period financial statements on which an unmodified opinion has been previously issued, the
auditor shall verify whether the misstatement has been dealt with as required under the
applicable financial reporting framework and, if that is not the case, the auditor shall express a
qualified opinion or an adverse opinion in the auditor's report on the current period financial
statements, modified with respect to the corresponding figures included therein.

3) Prior Period Financial Statements Not Audited - If the prior period financial statements were
hot audited, the auditor shall state in an Other Matter paragraph in the auditor's report that
the corresponding figures are unaudited.

Such a statement does not, however, relieve the auditor of the requirement to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances do not contain misstatements
that materially affect the current period's financial statements.

Prior Period Financial Statements Audited by a Predecessor Auditor

If the financial statements of the prior period were audited by a predecessor auditor and the
auditor is permitted by law or regulation to refer to the predecessor auditor's report on the
corresponding figures and decides to do so, the auditor shall state in an Other Matter paragraph in
the auditor's report:

a) That the financial statements of the prior period were audited by the predecessor auditor;

b) The type of opinion expressed by the predecessor auditor and, if the opinion was modified,
the reasons therefore; and

¢) Thedateof that report.
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AUDIT REPORTING REGARDING COMPARATIVE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

When reporting on prior period financial statements in connection
with the current period's audit.

If the auditor's opinion on such prior period financial statements differs from the opinion the
« auditor previously expressed, the auditor shall disclose the substantive reasons for the dillerent
opinioninan Other Matter paragraph in accordance with SA 706.

Prior Period Financial Statements Audited by a Predecessor Auditor

1) If the financial statements of the prior period were audited by a predecessor auditor, in
addition to expressing an opinion on the current period's financial statements, the auditor shall
state inan Other Matter paragraph:

a)  That the financial statements of the prior period were audited by a predecessor auditor;

b) The type of opinion expressed by the predecessor auditor and, if the opinion was
modified, the reasons therefor; and

c) Thedate of that report,

2) Unless the predecessor auditor's report on the prior period's financial statements is revised
with the financial statements.

3) If the auditor concludes that a material misstatement exists that affects the prior period
financial statements on which the predecessor auditor had previously reported without
modification, the auditor shall communicate the misstatement with the appropriate level of
management and those charged with governance and request that the predecessor auditor be
informed.

4) If the prior period financial statements are amended, and the predecessor auditor agrees to
issue a new auditor's report on the amended financial statements of the prior period, the
auditor shall report only on the current period.

’ Prior Period Financial Statements Not Audited

» 1) If the prior period financial statements were not audited, the auditor shall state in an Other
Matter paragraph that the comparative financial statements are unaudited.

2) Such d statement does not, however, relieve the auditor of the requirement to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances do not contain misstatements
that materially af fect the current period's financial statements.
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Example A - Corresponding Figures

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ABC Company Limited

Report on the Financial Statements -

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 20X1, and the statement of profit and loss, and
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements -

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, results of operations and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub- section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act"). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility-

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion -

As discussed in Note X to the financial statements, no depreciation has been provided in the
financial statements which constitutes a departure from the Accounting Standards referred to in
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sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act"). This is the result of a

decision taken by management at the start of the preceding financial year and caused us to qualify

our audit opinion on the financial statements relating to that year. Based on the straight-line method

of depreciation and annual rates of 5% for the building and 20% for the equipment, the loss for the

year should be increased by * XXX in20X1and * XXX in 20X0, property, plant and equipment should

be reduced by accumulated depreciation of © XXX in 20X1and * XXX in 20X0, and the accumulated
s loss should be increased by * XXX in20X1and ™ XXX in 20X0.

Qualified Opinion - :

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as of March 31, 20X1, and of its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 ("the Act").

Other Matters -

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 20X1, were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on June 30, 20X1.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements -

[Form and content of this section of the auditor's report will vary depending on the nature of the
auditor's other reporting responsibilities.]

For XYZ and Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number

Signature

(Name of the Member Signing the Audit Report)
(Designation)

Membership Number

*  Place of Signature:
Date:
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Example for Comparative Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ABC Company Limited

Report on the Financial Statements -

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company Ltd. (“the Company"),
which comprise the balance sheets as at March 31, 20X1 and 20X0, and the statements of profit
& loss, and cash flow statements for the years then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements -

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section
211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act"). This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility -

Our responsibility is to express an opihion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion -

As discussed in Note X to the financial statements, no depreciation has been provided in the
financial statements which constitutes a departure from the Accounting Standards referred to
in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act"). Based on the straight-
line method of depreciation and annual rates of 5% for the building and 20% for the equipment,
the loss for the year should be increased by * XXX in 20X1 and * XXX in 20X0, property, plant
and equipment should be reduced by accumulated depreciation of * XXX in 20X1 and * XXX in
20X0, and the accumulated loss should be increased by * XXX in 20X1 and * XXX in 20X0.

Qualified Opinion -

Inour opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as of March 31, 20X1 and 20X0 and of its results of operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended inaccordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of
section 211 of the Companies Act,1956 ("the Act”).

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements -

[Form and content of this section of the auditor's report will vary depending on the nature of the
auditor's other reporting responsibilities.]

For XYZ and Co.
Chartered Accountants Firm's
Registration Number

Signature
(Name of the Member Signing the Audit Report)
(Designation)
Membership Number
Place of Signature:
v Date:
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Practical Insight into Emphasis of Matter Paragraph in an audit report

: {2
Spicejet -
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of SpiceJet Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

4 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SpiceJet Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956, read
with General Circular 8/2014 dated April 4, 2014, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. This responsibility
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

Those Standards require that we comply with ethical reqmrements and plan and perform the audlt to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

As more detailed in note 34 (a) (i) of the financial statements, no provision has been made for interest of Rs.

74.71 million up to March 31, 2014 (Rs. 74.71 million in the previous year), relating to earlier years, on the

outstanding inter-corporate deposits taken by the Company. Had the same been accounted for, the net loss for
' the year ended March 31, 2014 and accumulated losses as at that date would have been higher by Rs. 74.71

million (Rs. 74.71 milfion in the previous year). Our audit report for the year ended March 31, 2013 was also
. qualified in respect of the above matter.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2014;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date: and

(c)in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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E;phams of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 (a) which indicates that the Company has incurred a
netloss of Rs 10,032.44 million during the year ended March 31, 2014 and as of that date, the Company's total
liabilities exceed its total assets by Rs 10,194.76 miilion. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth
in Note 2 (a), indicate the existence of a material uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's plans in this regard are more fully described in the said note.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement deait with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Exceptforthe matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956, read with General Circular 8/2014 dated Aprit 4,
2014, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs; and

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2014, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2014, from being
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act,
1956.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049wW

per S. Balasubrahmanyam
Partner
Membership Number: 053315

Place : Chennai
Date :May 16, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Spicedet Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SpicelJet Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

« Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. These Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements

give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, its loss
v and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

a. We draw attention to Note 2 (a) of the financial statements which indicates that the Company has incurred a net loss of
Rs. 6,870.54 million during the year ended March 31, 2015, and as of that date, the Company's total liabilities exceed
its total assets by Rs. 12,645.20 million. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2 (a), indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern.
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b. We draw attention to Note 42 of the financial statements regarding certain non-compliances of the requirements of the
Companies Act, and classification of advances received towards securities proposed to be issued

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that;

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) The going concern matter described in the Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

{f} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements
— Refer Note 35 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

For S.R. BATLIBOI! & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W

Aniruddh Sankaran
Partner
Membership Number: 211107

Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 28, 2015
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TATA CONSULTANCY SERVICES LIMITED

Annual Report 2016-17 )
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TATA CONSULTANCY SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consclidated nd AS financial statements of Tata Consuftancy Services Limited (‘the Company'| and its subsidiary
cormpames {the Company and its subsidiary companies together referied to as ‘the Group’| comprising the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at
b March 31, 2017, the Conselidated Staternent of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive incomet, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

and the Consolidated Staterment of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and @ summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (‘the consofidated Ind AS financial statements’).

Management's Responsthility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company ‘s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of thase consolidated Ind AS financial staterments in tenms of the requirements of the
Comparies Act, 2013 ['the Act'] that give a true and fair view of the consoligated financial position, consoligated financial performance including other
camprehensive income, consofidated changes in equity and consalidated cash flows of the Group i accordance with the sccounting prinziples generally
accepted in India, including the Indan Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Birectors of the
Comparty and its subsidiary comparies included in the Group are responsible far maintenance of adequate accounting records i accordance with the
previsions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and retecting frauds and nther irregulzities; the selection and application
of appropnale accounting policies; making judgraents and estimates that are reasonable and prodent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate inlernal financial controls, that were eperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated [nd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and ars free fom material misstatement,
erhether due o fraudor error, which have besn used for the purpese of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial staternents by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

Auditors” Responsibitity
Dur responsibility 15 to express an opinion: on these consolidated g AS financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have wsken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards en Auditing specified under Section 143110| of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirernents and plsn and performm 1he audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obitain audit evidence abeut the amwounts and the disclosures in the consolidated tnd AS Anancial statements.
The procedures selected depsnd on the auditers” judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal finansial contral relevant to the
Company's preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in arder to design audit procedures that aie appopriate
m the circumstancss. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates mase by the Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,

We believe that the audit evicence obtained by 1s and the audit evidence chtained by the other auditers in terms of their reports referred to in the ‘Gther
Matter’ below, is sufficient and sppropriate ta provide a basis for our udit opinion on the conselidsted Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opirior ard to the best of our mformation and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of the other
" auditors on szparate financial statements of the subsidiary companies referred to in the ‘Other hdatter’ below, the aforesaid consobdated Ind AS financial

statements give the information 1equired by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confarmity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, of the consclidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 207, and their consolidated profit, consalidated total
comprehensive income, consalidated changes in eguity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

We did not sudit the financial statements of 9 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of T 10,572 erores as a1 March 31, 2017, total
revenues of ¥ 17,102 crores and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 648 crores for the year ended on that date, a5 considered in the conschidated Ind AS
financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by ather auditors whose reports have been furnished 1o us by the maragement and our
ppinior en the consalidated Ind AS financisl statements in so far as it 1elates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and
our report in terms of Section 143(3 of the Act. insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinien on the consolidated Ind AS financial siatements above, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements belaw, is not modified in
respect of the above matters with respect to our refiance on the work dona and the 1eports of the cther auditors.
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Report on QOther Legat and Regulatory Requirements

As requirad by Section 14313} of the Az, based on our aucit and on the consideration of the repoit of the other auditors on sepatatz Tinancial statemerts
b

i
and the cther financial information: of the subsiciary companies, referrad in the ‘Other Marter' paragraph above. we rapert, 1 the extent spplicable, that:

(@ We have sought and obtainzd all the information and explanations eehich to the best of our knowisdge and belief were necsssary for the purposes of
cur audit of ths aforesaid consvidated Ind AS financial statements.

(b1 Inour opinicn, propar bocks of account as @ouired by law relsting to prepaiation of the afuresaid consolidated Ing AS fnancis! statements have been
kept 5o far as it appsars from our examination of those buoks sng the reports of the othar auditars.

{el  TheConsolidated Balance Sheet, the Consoliated Statement of Prafit ang Loss (inzluging other comprehensive incoms), the Consohdaled Staternent
cf Changes in Equity and the Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in greerment with the relevant books of account
mairtained for the purpese of pisparation of the consciidated Ind AS financial statements.

(dI I our opinion, the censolidatad ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Azcounting Standards prescribas under Section 133 of the Act,
as applicable.

1el  On the basis of the written rapresentations recaived fiom the Directars of the Company as an March 31, 2017 taken on record by ihe Board of
Directors of the Cornpany and the reparts of the statutory aucitors of its subsidwiry cempanies incorparated n Incia, none of the directors of the Group
companiss, incorporated in India is discualibed 35 on March 33, 2007 from being appainted as 2 dirsctor in terms of Section 164 2 of the Act,

ifi  With respect to the adequacy of he internal linancial controls aver financial rzporting and the upersting effectiveness of such contrals, refer to aur
separate Report in Yonexure A, which is based on the auditurs' reports of the Company and its subsidiary companies incarporated in India, Gur
report expresses an unmedifisd opinion on the aceuacy and cperating eXfectiveness af tha ntemal financial contrals over financial reporting of
Company and its subsidiary companies incorperated 1n India.

(gl With respext to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor's Repart in accorgance with Rule 11 of the Companies |Audit and Auditor's) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinicn and to the best of cur informatan and according 1o the explanaticns given to ws:

il The consolidated Inc A5 dinsncial staterments disclose the impact of penging iigatons on the consaliested finsncial position of the Group.

nf Provision has been made in the consolicated Ind AS financial statarments, as requirad under the applicsble faw or accounting standards, jor
rnatenal fareseeable lossas on long term contrazts including darvative contracts.

i) There has been no delay in transfernng amounts reguired to be transferred, 10 the lnvestor Education snd Protection Fund by the Cempany and
its subsidiary cempanies incorporated in India.

el The Company hes provided sequisite eistlosures in the consolidates Ind AS financial statements as regards the halging and deafings in
Specified Bank Notes as ozfined in the Notification $.0. 3407|E) dated November 8, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, curing the perisd fiom
November 8, 2016 to Decembar 30, 2018 of the Group entities a5 applicable Based on audit procedures performss and the representations
proviced to us by the managemant we report that the cisclosures are in accordance with the relevant boks of account maintamed by those
entities fo the purpose of preparation of the conscfidated Ind AS financisl stataments and as produced 1a us by the management of the
respective Group entities.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
IFure's Registration Moo 117366 /Wy - 100018

P R. RAMESH
Partrizr
Murrrbai, April 18, 2017 IMembership Ko, 70928
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Consolidated
Financial Statements

Independent Auditors Report
To the Members of
Tata Consultancy Services Limited (Holding Company)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of Tata Consultancy Services Limited (the
Holding Company) and its subsidiary companies listed in Annexure | (collectively referred to as the Group), which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, for the year then ended
including a summary of signicant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
consolidated Ind AS nancial statements).

Managements Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Companys Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated ind AS nancial
statements in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the Act) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated prot/loss (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash ows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal nancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations,'or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors Responsibility :

’

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS nancial statements based on our audit. While
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specied under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements are free from material misstatement. '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated

. Ind AS nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal nancial control relevant to the Holding Companys preparation
of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overali presentation of the
consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of managements use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast signicant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
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nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS nancial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the

Group as at 31 March 2018, its consolidated prot (including other comprehensive income), its consolidated changes in
equity and its consolidated cash ows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

Corresponding gures of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodied opinion dated 18 April 2017 on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements is not modied in respect of the above matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
ind AS nancial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

d)  Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies which are incorporated in India, as on 31 March 2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors
of respective companies, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualied as on
31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to adequacy of the internal nancial controls with reference to nancial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure A.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i The consolidated Ind AS nancial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
nancial position of the Group Refer Note 32 to the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements;

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, as required under the applicable law
or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Refer Note 20
to the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements;

fii. ~ There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2018; and

iv.  The disclosures regarding details of specied bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 to
30 December 2016 has not been made since the requirement does not pertain to nancial year ended
31 March 2018.
For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firms Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Yezdi Nagporewalla
Mumbai Partner
19 April 2018 Membership No: 049265
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

P To the Members of
ICICI Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ICICI Bank Limited (‘the Bank’), which
comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Standalone Profit and Loss Account, and
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the yearthen ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information (‘the standalone financial
statements’).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI") from time to
time ('RBI Guidelines’) in the manner so required for Banking companies and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Bank as at 31 March 2023, and its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs') specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. :

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

- — — — — — S

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Identification and provisioning of non-performing advances (NPA):

Total Loans and Advances (Net of Provision) as at 31 March 2023: ¥ 10,196,383,053 (in '000s)
Provision for NPA as at 31 March 2023: ¥ 248,358,100 (in '000s)
(Refer Schedule 9, Schedule 17(3) and Schedule 18(17))

The Reserve Bank of India's (“RBI") guidelines | Our audit procedures with respect to this matter
on Income recognition and asset classification & | included:

Provisioning ("IRAC") and other circulars and directives
issued by the RBI from time to time, which prescribe the

prudential norms for identification and

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls (including application controls) over
approval, recording, monitoring and recovery of loans,
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Key Audit Matter

classification of performing & non-performing assets
(“NPA") and the minimum provision required for such
assets. The Bank is required to have Board approved
policy as per IRAC guidelines for NPA identification &
classification of advances and provision thereon.

The provision on NPA is estimated based on ageing
and classification of NPAs, recovery estimates, nature
of loan product, value of security and other qualitative
factors and is subject to the minimum provisioning
norms specified by RBI and approved policy of the
Bank in this regard.

The Bank is also required to apply its judgement to
determine the identification and provision required
against NPAs by applying quantitative as well as
qualitative factors. The risk of identification of NPAs is
affected by factors like stress and liquidity concerns in
certain sectors.

Additionally, the Bank makes provisions on exposures |
that are not classified as NPA including advances

to certain sectors and identified advances or group

advances. These are classified as contingency

provisions.

Since the identification of NPAs and provisioning for
advances require significant level of estimation and
given its significance to the overall audit including
possible observation by RBI which could result into
disclosure in the financial statements, we have
ascertained identification and provisioning for NPAs as
a key audit matter.

7507545533
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

monitoring overdue / stressed accounts, identification
of NPA, provision for NPA and valuation of security and
collateral on a test check basis. Further obtained an
understanding of the contingency provision carried by
the Bank and verified the underlying assumptions used
by the Bank for such estimate.

Tested application controls included test of automated
controls, reports and system reconciliations.

Reviewed existence and effectiveness of monitoring
mechanisms such as Internal Audit, Systems Audit, and
Concurrent Audit as per the policies and procedures of
the Bank;

Evaluated the governance process and review controls
over calculations of provision of non-performing
advances, basis of provisioning in accordance with the
Board approved palicy.

Selected a sample of borrowers based on quantitative
and qualitative risk factors for their assessment of
appropriate identification & classification as NPA
including computation of overdue ageing to assess
its correct classification and provision amount as per
extant IRAC norms and the Bank policy.

Performed other substantive procedures included and
not limited to the following:

> Selected samples of performing loans and
assessed independently as to whether those
should be classified as NPA;

> For samples selected, reviewed the collateral
valuations, financial statements and other
qualitative information

> Considered the accounts reported by the Bank
and other Banks as Special Mention Accounts
(“SMA™} in RBI's Central Repository of Information
on Large Credits (CRILC) to identify stress.

> For selected samples, assessed independently,
the accounts that can potentially be clossified as
NPA and Red flagged accounts.

> Inquired with the credit and risk departments to
ascertain if there were indicators of stress or an
occurrence of an event of default in a particular
loan account or any product category which
needed to be considered as NPA.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

) Examined the accounts under watchlist report

provided by the risk department.

Discussed with the management of the Bank on
sectors where there is a perceived credit risk and
the steps taken to mitigate the risks to identified
sectors.

Selected and tested samples for accounts which
dre restructured as per RBI Master Circular -
Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning pertaining to
Advances; and

Assessed appropriateness & the adequacy of
disclosures against the relevant accounting
standards and RBI requirements relating to NPAs.

' Evaluation of Litigations included in contingent liabilities.

(Included under contingent liabilities) (in '000)

Particulars aal o

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Legal Cases - 3,027,295 | 3,201,365
Taxes B _ 78,935,723 79,637,364
Total Claims against Bank not acknowledged as Debt 81,963,017 82,838,729

(Refer Schedule 12 I, Schedule 17({12) and Schedule 18(36))

The Bank has material open tax litigations including
matters under dispute which involve significant
judgement to determine the possible outcome of these
disputes.

Significant management judgement is needed in
determining whether an obligation exists and whether
a provision should be recognised as at the reporting
date, in accordance with the accounting criteria set
under Accounting Standard 29 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets ('AS 29'), or whether it
needs to be disclosed as a contingent liability. Further,
significant judgements are also involved in measuring
such obligations, the most significant of which are:

> Assessment of Liability: Judgement is involved in
determination of whether outflow in respect of
identified material matters are probable and can

be estimated reliably.
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Our Audit procedures with respect to this matter
included:

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of the
Bank's key controls over the estimation, monitoring
and disclosure of provisions and contingent liabilities
on test check basis.

Our substantive audit procedures included and were
not limited to the following:

> Obtained an understanding of Bank's process
for determining tax liabilities, tax provisions
and contingent liabilities pertaining to legal and

taxation matters;

> Obtained a list of cases /matters in respect of
which the litigations were outstanding as at

reporting date:
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

> Adequacy of provisions: The appropriateness of o For significant legal matters, we obtained
assumption and judgements used in estimation of external confirmations and corroborated
significant provisions; and with management's documented conclusions

on the assessment of outstanding litigations

> Adequacy of disclosures of provision for liabilities against the Bank:

and charges, and contingent liabilities. [

. For significant taxation matters, we involved
our tax specialists to gain an understanding
of status of the litigations including
understanding of various orders/ notices
received by the Bank and management's

Since the assessment of these open litigations requires grounds of appeals before the relevant

significant level of judgement in interpretation of law, appellate authorities.

we have included this as a key audit matter.

The Bank’s assessment is supported by the facts of
matter, their own judgement, experience, and advises
from legal and independent tax consultants wherever
considered necessary.

> Evaluated the merit of the subject matter under

consideration with reference to the grounds

| presented therein and available independent legal
| / tax advice;

) Inquired with appropriate level of the management
including status update, expectation of outcomes
with the basis, and the future course of action
contemplated by the Bank;

> Reviewed minutes of meetings with Board, and
Audit committee in this regard

»  Agreed underlying tax balances to supporting
documentation including correspondence with the
Tax authorities; and

) Assessed the appropriateness & adequacy
of disclosures within the standalone financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements of RBI in
this regard.
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Key Audit Matter

| How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Information Technology (‘IT") systems and controls impacting financial controls.

The Bank has a complex IT architecture to support
its day-to-day business operations. High volume of
transactions is processed and recorded on single or
multiple applications.

The reliability and security of IT systems plays a key

| role in the business operations of the Bank. Since

large volume of transactions are processed daily, the
IT controls are required to ensure that applications
process data as expected and that changes are made
in an appropriate manner.

Appropriate [T general controls and application controls
are required to ensure that such IT systems are able to
process the data, as required, completely, accurately
and consistently for reliable financial reporting.

We have identified ‘IT systems and controls’ as key
audit matter because of the high level gutomation,
significant number of systems being used by the
management and the complexity of the IT architecture
and its impact on the financial reporting system.

7507545533
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Our Audit procedures with respect to this matter
included: -

For testing the IT general controls, application controls
and IT dependent manual controls, we involved IT
specialists as part of the audit. The team also assisted
in testing the accuracy of the information produced by
the Bank's IT systems. |
|

Obtained o comprehensive understanding of IT
applications landscape implemented at the Bank. It
was followed by process understanding, mapping of
applications to the same and understanding financial |
risks posed by people-process and technology. :
Key IT audit procedures includes testing design and
operating effectiveness of key controls operating over
user access management {which includes user access
provisioning, de-provisioning, access review, password
configuration review, segregation of duties and privilege
access), change management (which include change
release in production environment are compliant to the
defined procedures and segregation of environment is
ensured), program development (which include review
of data migration activity), computer operations (which
includes testing of key controls pertaining to, backup,
Batch processing (including interface testing), incident
management and data centre security), System
interface controls. This included testing that requests
for access to systems were appropriately logged,
reviewed, and authorized.

In addition to the above, the design and operating
effectiveness of certain automated controls, that were
considered as key internal system controls over financial
reporting were tested. Using various techniques such
as inquiry, review of documentation / record / reports,
observation, and re-performance. We also tested few
controls using negative testing technique.

Tested compensating controls and performed alternate
procedures, where necessary. In addition, understood
where relevant changes made to the IT landscape

during the audit period.
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Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Derivatives

(Contd.)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

{Included under contingent liabilities) (in ‘000)

Particul As at As at
s | 31March2023 31 March 2022
Notional amounts 40,984,024,707  37,056,016,613

(Refer Schedule 12.1lI, 12.V1, 12.Vil and 18(14))

Derivatives are valued through models with external
inputs. The derivatives portfolio of the Bank primarily
includes transactions which are carried out on behalf
of its clients (and are covered on a back-to-back basis)
and transactions to hedge the Bank's interest and
foreign currency risk.

A significant degree of management judgement is
involved in the application of valuation technidques
through which the value of the Bank's derivatives
is determined. The financial statement risk arises
particularly with respect to complex valuation models,
valuation parameters, and inputs that are used in
determining fair values.

Considering the significance of the above matter to
the financial statements, significant management
estimates and judgements, and auditor attention
required to test such estimates and judgements, we
have identified this as a key audit matter for current
year audit.

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to,
the following:

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design,
and tested the operating effectiveness of the key
controls over the valuation processes, including: |

> independent price verification performed by a
management expert; and model governance and
validation.

On o sample basis, we performed an independent
reassessment of the valuation of derivatives and
evaluated significant models and methodologies used
in valuation, to ensure compliance with the relevant
RBI regulations, reasonableness of the valuation
methodology and the inputs used.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

6.

The Bank's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Annual Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing

so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.
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When we read the Annual Report, if. we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to

communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the
relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

7. The Bank's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards spéciﬁed under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, and provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949
and circulars and guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time (‘RBI Guidelines’). This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the RBI Guidelines for
safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation

of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. '

8.  In preparing the standalone financial statements, Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

10.  Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

11. Aspartof an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
?missions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control:

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Bank has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

144 )

7507545533

@ www.ekatvamacademy.com

[ Page- 16.16 |




CA Rishabh Jain Practical Insight into Audit Report

Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Contd.)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management;

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern;

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone! financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12.  We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

13.  We clso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year, and are therefore, the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and Section 133 of the Act and the relevant rules issued thereunder.

16. As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we report that:

da.  We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory;

b.  The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of the Bank.

c.  Since the key operations of the Bank are automated with 1 "2 key applications integrated to the core banking
system, the audit is carried out centrally as all the necessary records and data required for the purposes of our
audit are available therein. We have visited 156 branches to examine the records maintained at the branches
for the purpose of our audit.

17. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

¢.  The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;
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d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
3 under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder, to the extent they are not inconsistent
with the accounting policies prescribed by the RBI;

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of the Bank and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A"; and

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements {Refer Schedule 12, Schedule 17(12) and Schedule 18(41));

i.  The Bank has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting stondards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts ((Refer Schedule 17(12)
and Schedule 18(41));

ii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Bank during the year ended 31 March 2023;

iv. (1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
schedule 18(57} to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaneéd or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Bank to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 6r on
behalf of the Bank (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(2) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
schedule 18(57) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Bank
from any person(s)/entity(ies}, including foreign entities {“Funding Parties"), that the Bank has directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Uttimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(3) Based on such audit procedures performed, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
i circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the management
representations under $ub-clauses (1) and (2) above contain any material misstatement.

1 v.  The Bank has declared and paid dividend during the year which is in compliance with section 123 of the
Act and the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

vi.  As the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended), which provides for
the accounting software used by the Bank for maintaining its books of account to have the feature for
recording of audit trail (edit log) facility and related matters, is applicable for the Bank only with effect from
financial year beginning 1 April 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 is currently not applicable.
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h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, the Bank is a banking Company as defined under Banking Regulation
Act, 1949. Accordingly, the requirements prescribed under Section 197 of the Act do not apply.

For M S K A & Associates For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.105047W (Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

ICAI Firm Registration No.105146W/W100621

Tushar Kurani Gautam Shah

Partner Partner

Membership Number.: 118580 Membership Number.: 117348
UDIN: 23118580BGXR0OY2671 UDIN: 23117348BGSZH01617
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 22 April 2023 Date: 22 April 2023
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditorfs report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of ICICI Bank Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

[Referred to in paragraph “17(f)” under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of
even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Opinion
1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of ICICI Bank

Limited (“the Bank"} as at 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Bank for the year ended on that date.

2. In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial
statements criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl} {the "Guidance Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3. The Bank's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Bank considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility:

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

5. Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,

¢ and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone finaricial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

6.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtairied is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statemeénts

7. Bank's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the: reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Bank's internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
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dispositions of the assets of the bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the bank are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the bank's assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.105047W (Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

ICAI Firm Registration No.105146W/W 100621

Tushar Kurani Gautam Shah

Partner Partner

Membership Number.: 118580 Membership Number.: 117348
UDIN: 23118580BGXR0OY2671 UDIN: 23117348BGSZHO1617
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 22 April 2023 Date: 22 April 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To The Members of Reliance Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial
Statements of RELIANCE INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the
Company) which includes its joint operations, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2023,

and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us; the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in

the manner so required and give a true and fair view

in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (Ind AS) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31t March, 2023, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Key Audit Matter

Estimates of Oil and Gas Reserves

Sr.
No.
1.

Significant judgment and estimates are involved in
estimating oil and gas reserves which require consideration of
factors such as the availability of geolegical and engineering
data, reservoir performance data, acquisition and divestment
activity, drilling of new wells and commodity prices. The
quantum of oil and gas reserves have a direct impact on
determination of depletion charge for the Companys oil and
gas assets and on the assessment of the'recoverability of the
carrying values of development rights,

Accordingly, the estimation of oil and gas reserves has been
considered as a key audit matter in view of the significant
judgements and estimates involved.

Refer Notes B.2 (d) and Note C (A) to the Standalone
Financial Statements.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements in accordance with the Standards on

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the

Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditors Responsibility for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section

of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAls Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

Auditors Response

Our audit procedures included and were not limited to the
following:

Performed walk-through of the estimation process

associated with the oil and gas reserves. Tested the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the controls
established by the Company in the process of estimation of oil
and gas reserves.

Assessed the objectivity and competence of the Companys
internal specialists involved in estimating oil and gas reserves.

Performed substantive testing of the depletion computation.
Involved internal specialists to assess the reasonableness of
valuation assumptions and appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used in assessing the recoverability of the
carrying value of exploration and evaluation assets included in
intangible assets under development.

Reviewed the disclosures made by the Company in the
Standalone Financial Statements for compliance with the
applicable authoritative pronouncements.
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Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

Litigation matters

The Company has certain significant ongoing legal Our audit procedures included and were not limited to the
proceedings for various complex matters with the following:

Government of India and other parties, continuing from
earlier years, which are as under:

1. Matters in relation to Qil and Gas:

(a) Disallowance of certain costs under the production
sharing contract, relating to Block KG-DWN-98/3
and consequent deposit of differential revenue on
gas sales from D1D3 field to the gas pool account
maintained by Gail (India) Limited,

(b) Claim against the Company in respect of gas said to
have migrated from neighbouring blocks (KGD&).

(c) Claims relating to limits of cost recovery, profit
sharing and audit and accounting provisions of the
public sector corporations etc., arising under two
production sharing contracts entered into in 1994,

(d

Suit for specific performance of a contract for supply
of natural gas before the Honble Bombay High Court.

Refer Notes 36.3, and 36.4 to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

2. Matter relating to trading in shares of Reliance
Petroleum Limited (RPL):

Securities Appellate Tribunal judgement dated Novemnber
5, 2020, dismissing the Companys appeal made in
relation to Order passed by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) under Section 11B of the SEBI

Act, 1992 in connection with trades by the Company in
the stock exchanges in 2007 in the shares of Reliance
Petroleumn Limited, then subsidiary of the Company.

Refer Note 37.(IV) to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Due to complexity involved in these litigation matters,
managements judgement regarding recognition,
measurement and disclosure of provisions for these legal
proceedings is inherently uncertain and might change over
time as the outcomes of the legal cases are determined.

Accordingly, it has been considered as a key audit matter.

Fair Valuation of Investments

Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the controls established by the Company in the process of
evaluation of litigation matters.

Assessed the managements position through discussions
with the in-house legal expert and external legal opinions
obtained by the Company (where considered necessary) on
both, the probability of success in the aforesaid cases, and the
magnitude of any potential loss.

Discussed with the management on the developments in
respect of these litigations during the year ended 31t March
2023 till the date of approval of the financial statements.

Rolled out of enquiry letters to the Companys legal counsel
and assessed the responses received.

Assessed the objectivity and competence of the Companys
legal counsel involved in the process.

Reviewed the disclosures made by the Company in the
financial statements.

Obtained Management representation letter on the
assessment of these matters.

As at 31* March, 2023, the Company has investments of Our audit procedures included and were not limited to the following:

% 78,093 crore in Equity and Preference Shares of Jio Digital
Fibre Private Limited (JDFPL) which are measured at fair
value as per Ind AS 109 read with Ind AS 113,

These investments are Level 3 investments as per the fair
value hierarchy in Ind AS 113 and accordingly determination
of fair value is based on a high degree of judgement and
input from data that is not directly observable in the market.
Further, the fair value is significantly influenced by the
expected pattern of future benefits of the tangible assets of
JDFPL (fibre assets).

Accordingly, it has been considered as a key audit matter.

Refer Notes 2 and 39A to the Standalone Financial
Statements.
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Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the controls established by the Company in the process of
determination of fair value of the investments.

Reviewed the fair valuation reports provided by the
management by involvement of internal valuation specialists.

Assessed the assumptions around the cash flow forecasts
including discount rates, expected growth rates and its
effect on business and terminal growth rates used and the
valuation methodology inter-alia through involvement of the
internal specialists.

Discussed potential changes in key drivers as compared

to previous year / actual performance with management
to evaluate the inputs and assumptions used in the cash
flow forecasts.

Assessed the objectivity and competence of our internal
specialist and Companys external experts involved in
the process.

Reviewed the disclosures made by the Company in the
financial statements.

Obtained Management Representation Letter as regards to fair
valuation of these investments

@ www.ekatvamacademy.com



Practical Insight info Audit Report

CA Rishabh Jain

Sr.

No. Key Audit Matter

4. Information Technology (IT) systems and controls over
financial reporting

We identified IT systems and controls over financial reporting
as a key audit matter for the Company because its financial
accounting and reporting systems are fundamentally

reliant on IT systems and IT controls to process significant
transaction volumes, specifically with respect to revenue and
raw material consumption. Also, due to such large transaction
volumes and the increasing challenge to protect the integrity
of the Companys systems and data, cyber security has
become more significant. Automated accounting procedures
and IT environment controls, which include T governance,
T general controls over program development and changes,
access to program and data and IT operations, IT application
controls and interfaces between IT applications, are required
to be designed and to operate effectively to ensure accurate
financial reporting.

Auditors Response

Our procedures included and were not limited to the following:

Assessed the complexity of the IT environment by engaging
IT specialists and through discussion with the head of IT and
internal audit at the Company and identified [T applications
that are relevant to our audit.

Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of IT general controls over program development and changes,
access to program and data and IT operations by engaging

IT specialists.

Performed inquiry procedures with the head of cybersecurity at
the Company in respect of the overall security architecture and
any key threats addressed by the Company in the current year.

Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of IT application controls in the key processes impacting
financial reporting of the Company by engaging IT specialists.
Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of controls relating to data transmission through the different
IT systems to the financial reporting systems by engaging

IT specialists.

Information Other than the Financial
Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

The Companys Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does
not include the Consolidated Financial Statements,
Standalone Financial Statements and our auditors
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statements, or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and
Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Companys Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
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in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation

and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Companys
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board

of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Companys Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Companys financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibility for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
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in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)()) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of managements use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Companys ability

to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that

a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures
in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced.
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We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative
factors (i) in planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone
Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with

a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended 31%* March, 2022, prepared in accordance
with Ind AS have been audited by the predecessor auditors.
The report of the predecessor auditors dated 6 May, 2022,
expressed an unmadified opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

c¢)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

Integrated Annual Report 2022-23 3N
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial

Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

e)  On the basis of the written representations

received from the directors as on 31t March, 2023

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31t March,

2023 from being appointed as a director in terms

of section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure A Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Companys internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Staterment.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included

in the Auditors Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the Act.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included

in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
in its Standalone Financial Statements
Refer Note 37 to the Standalone
Financial Statements.

ii.  The Company has made provision,
as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iil.  There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company except for an amount of
% 2 crore which are held in abeyance due to
pending legal cases.

312 Reliance Industries Limited
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iv.

V.

(@ The Management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries),
with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented,
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Parties), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures
performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule
1(e) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

The final dividend proposed in the previous
year, declared and paid by the Company
during the year is in accordance with section
123 of the Act.

As stated in Note 46 to the Standalone
Financial Statements, the Board of Directors
of the Company have proposed final
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dividend for the year which is subject to the to the Company w.e.f. 1 April, 2023, and
approval of the members at the ensuing accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Annual General Meeting. The dividend Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
proposed is in accordance with section 123 is not applicable for the financial year ended
of the Act. 31 March, 2023.
vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies 2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors Report)

{(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining Order, 2020 (the Order) issued by the Central
books of account using accounting Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act,
software which has a feature of recording we give in Annexure B a statement on the matters
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firms Registration No. 117366W/W-100018 Firms Registration No, 101720W/W-100355

Abhijit A. Damle Sandesh Ladha

Partner Partner

Membership No.102912 Membership No. 047841

UDIN: 23102912BGXWAX6993 UDIN: 23047841BGVNMN5308

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: July 21, 2023 Date: July 21, 2023
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Annexure A
To The Independent Auditors Report

CA Rishabh Jain

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial
Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements under Clause (i)
of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)

We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

of RELIANCE INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the Company)
which includes its joint operations as of 31% March, 2023
in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date. -

Managements Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Companys management is responsible for
estaplishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India: These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to companys policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Companys internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under -section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
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about whether adequate internal financial controls

with reference to Standalone Financial Statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Staternents, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors
judgement, inciuding the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Companys internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls
With reference to Standalone Financial
Statements -

A companys internal financial control with reference to
Standalene Financial Statements is a process designed

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A companys
internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance

with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the companys assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls With reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firms Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Abhijit A. Damle

Partner

Membership No.102912

UDIN: 23102912BGXWAX6993

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 21, 2023
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31
March, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial
control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial |
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firms Registration No. 101720W/W-100355

Sandesh Ladha

Partner

Membership No. 047841

UDIN: 23047841BGVNMN5908

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 21, 2023
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Annexure B

CA Rishabh Jain

To the Independent Auditors Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of Reliance Industries Limited
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us
and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and
to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that;

i a (A) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

b)  The Company has a program of verification of
Property, Plant and Equipment so as to cover
all the items once in every three years which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program, certain items
of Property, Plant and Equipment were due for
verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year.
According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

c)  With respect to immovable properties (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the Company) disclosed in the Standalone
Financial Statements included in Property, Plant
and Equipment, according to information and
explanations given to us and based on verification
of the registered sale deed/ Transfer deed/
Conveyance deed provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds of such immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company as at balance
sheet date, except for leasehold land as disclosed

in Note 1.7 to the Standalone Firiancial Statements

in respect of which the allotment letters are
received and supplementary agreements entered;
however, lease deeds are pending execution.

d)  The Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets during the year,

e)  No proceedings have been initiated during
the year or are pending against the Company
as at 31 March, 2023 for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and Rules
made thereunder.

(i) a  Theinventories except for goods in transit
were physically verified during the year by
the Management at reasonable intervals. In
our opinion and accerding to the information

(iif)

and explanations given to us, the coverage

and the procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to size
of the Company and the nature of its operations.
In respect of goods in transit, the said goods have
been received subsequent to the year-end. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventories were noticed on such
physical verification when compared with books
of account,

b)  According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of T 5 crore, in
aggregate, at points of time during the year, from
banks on the basis of security of current assets.
In our opinion and according to information and
explanations given to us, and as disclosed in Note
21.4 of the Standalone Financial Statements,
the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks are in agreement with
the books of account of the Company of the
respective quarters.

The Company has made investments in, provided
guarantee or security and granted loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties during the year, in respect of which:

a)  The Company has provided loans and guarantee
(in respect of loans) during the year and details of
which are given below:

R in crore}

Loans Guarantees

Aggregate amount granted/

provided during the year

- Subsidiaries 70,297 -
- Joint Ventures = 1,900

Balance outstanding as at

balance sheet date

- Subsidiaries 23,043 2,966
- Joint Ventures - 1,900

The Company has not provided advances in the
nature of loans or security to any other entity
during the year.

b)  The investments made, guarantees provided and
the terms and conditions of the grant of all the
above-mentioned loans and guarantees provided
during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the Companys interest.

¢  Inrespect of loans granted by the Company,
the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments or receipts are regular.
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d)  According to information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans granted by the
Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

&)  No loans granted by the Company which had
fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to
settle the overdue of existing loans given to the
same parties.

f)  According to information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, the Company has not granted any
loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
3(ii))(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)  The Company has not granted loans or provided any
guarantees or securities to parties covered under
section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied
with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments
made and guarantees and securities provided,
as applicable.

(v)  The Company has neither accepted deposits from the
public nor accepted any amount which are deemed
to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable.

(vii) (a)

Practical Insight into Audit Report

We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended, prescribed by the Central Government
for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the
manufacturing activities and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been
made and maintained by the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other material statutory dues applicable

to the Company have generally been regularly
deposited by it with the appropriate authority.

There were no undisputed amounts payable

in respect of goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at 31t March, 2023 for
a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause
(a) above which have not been deposited as on
3T March, 2023 on account of any dispute are
given below:

Amount Period to which the amount

Name of the statute Nature of the dues

(¥ in crore) relates

Central Excise Act, 1944
Service Tax

Forum where the dispute is pending

Excise Duty and “* FY 1990-91 to FY 1996-97 Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals)

89 FY 1991-92 to FY 2017-18 The Customs, Excise and Service Tax

Central Sales Tax Act, 1956
and Sales Tax Act of various  and Entry Tax

Appellate Tribunal

Sales Tax/ VAT/Octroi 26 FY 2000-01 to FY 2017-18 Joint Commissioner / Commissioner

(Appeals) of Sales Tax

SIAIES 34 FY 1999-00 to FY 2019-20 Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal
97 FY 2004-05 to FY 2013-14 High Court
Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty 20 FY 2017-18 The Customs, Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal
Goods and Services Tax Act, Goods and Services 1 FY2017-18 to 2021-22 Commissioner (Appeals)
2054 e * FY2017-18 10202122 Tribunal
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 356 AY 2013-14, AY 2014-15, Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
AY 2015-16, AY 2016-17,
AY 2017-18, AY 2021-22,
AY 2022-23
* Less than T 1 crore
(vili) There were no transactions relating to previously (ix) (@ Inouropinion, the Company has not defaulted

in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender
during the year.

unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed
as income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1967) during the year.
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(b)  The Company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our
opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for
the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facle,
not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e)  On an overall examination of Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

{f)  The Company has not raised loans during
the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

(x) (@ Inouropinion, monies received during the year
towards- unpaid calls related to right issue of
equity shares in the previous year have been,
prima facie, applied by the Company for the
purposes for which they were raised. The
Company has not raised moneys by way of
Initial Public Offer/ further public offer through

debt instruments.

(b)  During the year, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)
(b) of the Order is not applicable.

{xi) (@ Based upon the audit procedures performed for
the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the Standalone Financial Statements and
according to the information and explanations
given by the management, no fraud by the
Company or no material fraud on the Company

has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b} o the best of our knowledge, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by Cost Auditor or
Secretarial Auditor and us, in Form ADT 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2074 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date
of this report.

() We have taken into consideration the whistle
blower complaints received by the Company and
provided to us during the year when performing
our audit,

(&) 7507545533

(xi) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and
hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

{xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
for all transaction with related parties and details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the
Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (@  In our opinion, the Company has an adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the

size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit
reports issued during the year and till the
date of the audit report covering period upto
31 March, 2023,

(xv) In our opinion, during the year, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@)  The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
and is not required to obtain CoR for such
activities from the Reserve Bank of India.

{©)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company
as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{d) Asrepresented by the management, the
Group does not have more than one Core
Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group
as per the definition of Group contained in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during
the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory
auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note
42 to the Standalone Financial Statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other informaticn
accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of

‘Page- 16.32



CA Rishabh Jain Practical Insight into Audit Report

the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the Company as and when they fall due.

audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all

{(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount
towards Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) and
there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year
requiring a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VII
of the Act or special account in compliance with the
provision of sub-section (6} of section 135 of the said
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firms Registration No. 117366W/W-100018 Firms Registration No. 101720W/W-100355
Abhijit A. Damle Sandesh Ladha

Partner Partner

Membership No.102912 Membership No. 047841

UDIN: 23102912BGXWAX6993 UDIN: 23047841BGVYNMN53908

Place: Mumbai Place; Mumbai

Date: July 21, 2023 Date: July 21, 2023

@ www.ekatvamacademy.com

7507545533

Page- 16.33



| e

With the Blessings of
My Dear. Farents,
Brother, Sister

Dedicated to (LLL
Peloved Students




PREFACE

Dear students,

It gives me immense joy and pleasure to present a completely updated CA Inter - Auditing & Ethics
Module 1 strictly as per ICAI New Syllabus.

This new version of Standards on Auditing (SA) Module contains the following:
A: Detailed discussion on SA 200 Series to 700 Series

B: Practical Insight of respective SA's with the help of "Real Life Examples”
C: Practical Insight into Audit Reports of RIL, TCS, ICICI Bank etc.

This book was prepared with the aim of making sure that anyone who reads this gets not only a
substantial coverage over the SA syllabus but also, resounding confidence over their practical
applicability when you are working in the corporate world.

Having been a professor for 10 years and counting, I have observed that, for you to succeed in
exam and your professional career you need a great understanding of the concept and its real-
life application. Majority students get stuck in the rat race of just passing the exam by any
means, this may help you to pass a competitive exam but not in the exam of your professional
life.

I have worked for more than 6 years in Big 4's like PWC ‘and Deloitte in my initial years of
professional career and the lessons learned during that time has inspired me to ensure that my
students get a "Practical Approach” to this so called "Theoretical world of Auditing”.

The journey of a Chartered Accountant is not a rapid T-20 match. It is equivalent to a 5-day test
match, if you will. Rather than rushing and blasting through your preparation, it is crucial to be
consistent and disciplined. My cricket coach once said to me something that has stuck with me
since my college days - 'Wicket pe bane raho, runs aapne aap ban jaayenge!'

I wishyouall the best and hope that you be greatly benefited from this book!
Happy Learning,

Regards

CA Rishabh Jain
rishabhrgolchha@gmail.com
www.ekatvamacademy.com

‘Failure will never overtake me if my determination to succeed is strong enough!'
- Late Dr. A P J Abdul Kalam
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« Having cracked the CA exam at the age of 21. RJ Sir became
one of the youngest Chartered Accountants in India.

- Hesimplifiesall conceptsin the easiest way possible.

+ His Extra-ordinary rapport/contact with students, make him
highly accessible for their numerous difficulties.

» He is always available for Advice, related to CA course and
beyond the course.

* He applies simulation techniques used by MNC's and Big 4's
and provides example of actual & audit setting which in turn

gives students a peek into industry methodologies. C_ A R .
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« Only Audit Professor in India with more than 6 years' 5 J

experience in Big4s (PWC & Deloitte).

+ He has mentored over 20,000 students in a short span of 10
years.

« Engages students with real-world scenarios, from his prior
experience with Fortune 500 clients.

« Mentored many of his students who are now successful
professionals.

« Placed many of his students in Big Four firms across India.

« Conducts exclusive speaker sessions on Startups and New
Emerging Technologies.
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